
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), D'Agorne, Firth, Funnell, 

Horton, Hudson, Hyman, Jamieson-Ball, Moore, Morley, 
Pierce, Potter (Vice-Chair), Reid, Simpson-Laing, 
B Watson and Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 24 September 2009 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
The Site Visit will commence at 12.30pm on  

Wednesday 23 September 2009 at Memorial Gardens. 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the Planning Committee 
meetings held on 27 August 2009. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5.00pm on Wednesday 23 September 2009. 
Members of the public can speak on specific planning applications 
or on other agenda items or matters within the remit of the 
committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 



 
4. Plans List   

 

This item invites Members to determine the following planning 
applications: 
 

a) Sim Hills, Tadcaster Road, Dringhouses, York (09/01313/FULM)  
(Pages 11 - 26) 
 

Construction of park and ride facility to create 1,250 vehicle car 
park space with associated access and passenger terminal 
building, wind turbine and open space. [Dringhouses and 
Woodthorpe Ward] [Site Visit] 
 

b) Proposed University Campus Lying between Field Lane and 
Low Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York 
(09/01472/REMM)  (Pages 27 - 38) 
 

Reserved matters application for the erection of catalyst building 
along with access cycle parking and landscaping [Heslington 
Ward]. 
 

5. Fulford Road Conservation Area Appraisal: Consultation Draft  
(Pages 39 - 80) 
 

This report requests that the draft appraisal of the Fulford Road 
Conservation area at Annex A is approved for public consultation 
together with the consultation method proposed. 
 

6. Appeals Performance  (Pages 81 - 90) 
 

This report, which has also been presented to the area Sub-
Committees, informs Members of the Council’s performance in 
relation to appeals determined by the Planning Inspectorate in the 
12 and 3 month periods to 31 July 2009. 
 

7. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 



 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

SITE VISIT 

 

 Wednesday 23 September 2009 
 

The bus will depart from Memorial Gardens at 12:30pm  
 

TIME 

(Approx) 

 

SITE ITEM 

12.45pm Sim Hills, Tadcaster Road, Dringhouses, York   4a 

          

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Page 3



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 4



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE 27 AUGUST 2009 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS R WATSON (CHAIR), D'AGORNE, 
HORTON, HYMAN, JAMIESON-BALL, MOORE, 
MORLEY, REID, SIMPSON-LAING, B WATSON, 
WISEMAN, ORRELL (SUB FOR CLLR FIRTH), 
KING (SUB FOR CLLR POTTER), LOOKER (SUB 
FOR CLLR FUNNELL), BOWGETT (SUB FOR CLLR 
PIERCE) AND GILLIES (SUB FOR CLLR HUDSON) 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS FIRTH, FUNNELL, HUDSON, 
PIERCE AND POTTER 

 
9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interest they might have in the business on the agenda.  
 
Councillor Jamieson-Ball declared a personal prejudicial interest in Plans 
items 3a (Proposed University Campus lying between Field Lane and Low 
Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York) and 3b (University of York, 
University Road, Heslington, York) as he had spoken at the Planning 
Inquiry regarding the outline permission and he left the room and took no 
part in the discussion or voting thereon.   
 
Councillor Morley declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in Plans 
items 3a (Proposed University Campus lying between Field Lane and Low 
Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York) and 3b (University of York, 
University Road, Heslington, York) as a member of the Heslington East 
Community Forum. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general issues 
within the remit of the Committee. 
 
 

11. PLANS LIST  
 
Members considered reports of the Assistant Director (Planning and 
Sustainable Development), relating to the following planning applications, 
outlining the proposals and relevant planning considerations and setting 
out the views of consultees and officers. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 5



11a Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane and Low 
Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York (09/01228/REMM)  
 
Consideration was given to a major reserved matters application, 
submitted by the University of York, for the landscaping to Dean’s Acre link 
road.  
 
Officers updated that they were recommending an amendment to 
Condition 1 in the report to read “The landscape planting and fencing 
works hereby authorised shall be implemented within six months of 
substantive completion of construction of the Dean’s Acre Link Road.” 
Officers also confirmed that no comments had been received from 
Heslington Parish Council.  
 
Representations in support of the application were received from the 
applicant’s agent who referred to the background to the link road and to 
discussions, which they had undertaken with the Heslington Community 
Forum. He stated that the Forum had stressed the importance of retaining 
the views east from Field Lane to the Church and that the application 
proposed to retain this view and extend the tree planting and grassed area 
which had gained support from the Forum. 
 
In answer to questions Officers confirmed that the amendment to Condition 
1 was proposed to ensure that the condition was legally more precise and 
that substantive completion referred to the road and footways being 
available for use rather than final completion which could be much later.    
 
Members referred to the proposed implementation of the landscaping 
within six months and questioned how this would fit in with the planting 
seasons. The applicant’s agent confirmed that the link road works would 
be completed by the end of the year and that it was proposed to complete 
the landscaping works by the end of March 2010.  
 
RESOLVED:    i) That the application be approved subject to the 

amendment of Condition 1 as set out below and the 
remaining conditions listed in the report: 

 
1. The landscape planting and fencing works hereby 

authorised shall be implemented within six months of 
substantive completion of construction of the Dean’s Acre 
Link Road. 

 
ii) That in the event of landscaping works not progressing 

as proposed the Assistant Director (Planning and 
Sustainable Development) be given delegated 
authority to agree an amended completion date for 
these works. 

 
REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 

proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact 
upon the setting of Heslington church, impact upon the 

Page 6



character and appearance of Heslington Conservation 
Area, impact upon the landscape setting of Heslington 
and the built fringe of the wider urban area and impact 
upon delivery of the wider University Development 
Plan. As such the proposal complies with Policies 
GP9, ED9 and HE2 of the City of York Development 
Control Local Plan, Y1 of the Yorkshire and Humber 
Regional Spatial Strategy and Central Government 
advice on Planning Control within Conservation Areas 
outlined in PPG 15 "Planning and the Historic 
Environment". 

 
 
Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

 
 
 SS  

 
11b University of York, University Road, Heslington, York YO10 5DD 

(09/01254/REM)  
 
Members considered a reserved matters application, submitted by the 
University of York, for the construction of a central landscape vista. 
 
The Planning Officer updated Members in relation to the report on the 
following points:  

• Paragraph 4.4 - the drainage swale would run north/south through 
each bank of woodland out-falling into the lake to the south. 

• Paragraph 4.6 - the vista road would be constructed in resin bound 
gravel and not the hydropave as stated. 

 
Representations in support of the application were received from the 
applicant’s agent who confirmed that rapid progress was now being made 
on Cluster 1 of the Heslington East university development. He stated that 
this proposal was for an imaginative natural tree lined and grassed space 
to provide views of the new buildings and out into open countryside. 
 
Members questioned the type of planting, details of the swales and 
drainage arrangements and the gradient of the site towards the lake 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 

conditions listed in the report. 
 
REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 

proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to topography 
and mix of planting species, hard surfacing materials, 
location of public art and configuration of proposed 
service road. As such the proposal complies with 
Policies GP9 and ED9 of the City of York 
Development Control Local Plan. 

  
 

Page 7



 
Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

 
 
SS  

 
12. PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS - DRAFT CHARTER FOR 

CONSULTATION  
 
Consideration was given to a report, which asked for the Committee’s 
approval to consult upon a draft charter for Planning Performance 
Agreements (PPA’s). It was explained that a PPA was an agreement 
between the Council and applicants to provide a project management 
framework for handling large scale or complex planning applications. 
 
Officers updated that an amendment was required to the Draft Agreement 
(Annex A) in paragraph 17 – Member Involvement, with the deletion of the 
fifth bullet point “Executive Member Advisory Panel”. 
 
It was explained that Planning Performance Agreements had been 
introduced on 6 April 2008 and were designed to improve the quality of 
planning applications and the decision making process through 
collaboration between the Local Planning Authority, developer and key 
stakeholders at an early stage. 
 
Officers confirmed that this charter would be formalising the way in which 
larger planning applications were currently dealt with. 
 
Representations were made on behalf of Osbaldwick Parish Council in 
support of Planning Performance Agreements, which they hoped Members 
would approve. They felt such agreements would support transparent 
decision making and hopefully encourage real community engagement in 
an open and constructive manner.  
 
Consideration was given to the following options: 
Option A - Approve the charter as attached at Annex A for public 
consultation over a 3 week period. This option was recommended 
Option B - To approve the charter as attached at Annex A without public 
consultation. This option was not recommended 
Option C - To not approve and adopt the charter, and so not introduce 
Planning Performance Agreements. This option was not recommended. 
 
Members questioned the short length of the consultation period and 
subsequent reporting back together with details of the consultation groups. 
 
RESOLVED: i) That the Committee agree to Option A, to approve 

the charter for public consultation over a 6 week 
period, subject to the amendment of drafting errors, 
to include:- 
• Consultation with planning agents and 

consultants 
• Consultation with community groups and 

amenity bodies 

Page 8



• Consultation with statutory and the main non 
statutory consultees 

• Placement of the charter document on the 
Council’s website and in the Council Offices 

 
ii) That Members receive any comments arising 

from the consultation at the November Planning 
Committee meeting. 

 
REASON: To aim to provide a project management framework for 

handling large scale or complex major planning applications 
which will provide certainty for all development partners. 

 
  
 
Action Required  
1. Amend drafting errors and commence 6 week 
consultation as outlined.  
2. Report back on results of consultation to November 
Planning Committee meeting.   
 
 

 
 
SS  
 
SS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R WATSON, Chair 
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 5.10 pm]. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No:  4a 
Page 1 of 13 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Dringhouses and Woodthorpe 
Date: 24 September 2009 Parish: Dringhouses/Woodthorpe 

Planning Panel 
 
Reference: 09/01313/FULM 
Application at: Sim Hills Tadcaster Road Dringhouses York  
For: Construction of park and ride facility to create 1,250 vehicle car 

park space with associated access and passenger terminal 
building, wind turbine and open space 

By: Mr Paul Thackray 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 6 October 2009 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The Park and Ride facility at Askham Bar, currently designed to accommodate 540 
cars, has over a long period formed a significant element in the City's strategy to 
minimise car trips into the City Centre for a range of sustainability reasons. In recent 
times the site has suffered significant capacity problems and is in need of some 
refurbishment. As part and parcel of a scheme to improve the range and quality of 
Park and Ride accommodation serving the City permission is sought for the current 
development to provide 1,250 parking spaces (with 1,100 for immediate occupation). 
In addition to the parking area a sustainable terminal building, a wind turbine and an 
informal open space associated with a potential SINC (Site of Interest for Nature 
Conservation) would be provided. A formal statutory Environmental Impact 
Assessment has been submitted with the proposal and the site lies within the 
designated York Green Belt. The development site partially overlays a disused landfill 
site. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Contaminated Land GMS Constraints:  
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: West Area 0004 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP3 
Planning against crime 
  
CYGP4A 

Agenda Item 4aPage 11



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 13 

Sustainability 
  
CYGP6 
Contaminated land 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYGP11 
Accessibility 
  
CYNE7 
Habitat protection and creation 
  
CYGB1 
Development within the Green Belt 
  
CYT6 
Park and Ride 
  
CYNE5A 
Local Nature Conservation Sites 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL:- 
 
3.1 Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development raise no objection to the 
proposal subject to the incorporation of standard conditions relating to the 
safeguarding of archaeological remains, the submission of a detailed landscape 
planting scheme, the protection of existing trees and lengths of hedgerow and the prior 
written approval of hard surfacing materials. 
 
3.2 Engineering Consultancy-Structures and Drainage raise no objection to the 
proposal. 
 
3.3 City Development raise no objection to the proposal but wish to see any 
permission appropriately conditioned to require the submission of a detailed 
landscape scheme for written approval prior to the development commencing on site. 
 
3.4 Environmental Protection Unit raise no objection to the proposal subject to a 
number of standard conditions covering matters such as previous land contamination 
and potential gas migration are dealt with in any permission. 
 
3.5 Highway Network Management raise no objection to the proposal and suggest the 
addition of a number of standard conditions  to any permission. 
 
EXTERNAL:- 
3.6 Marston Moor Internal Drainage Board raise no objection to the proposal subject to 
the addition of conditions covering the design of surface water drainage works to any 
permission. 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 13 

 
3.7 York Natural Environment Panel raise no objection in principle to the proposal but 
wish to see some internal re-arrangement to create more of a green corridor around 
the eastern edge of the site. 
 
3.8 Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Planning Panel raise no objection in principle to the 
proposal but express some concern with regard to the detail of the landscaping 
submitted with the scheme , the need to develop links with the nearby Askham Bog 
Nature Reserve and the need develop a detailed management plan for the long term 
maintenance of the candidate SINC. 
 
3.9 Natural England raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
3.10 The Environment Agency were consulted with regard to the proposal on 15th July 
2009. No objection in principle has been raised to the proposal but additional time has 
been requested to consider potential impact from leachate upon the Askham Bog 
SSSI . Their detailed response will be reported orally to Members at the  Committee 
Meeting. 
 
3.11 Network Rail were consulted with regard to the proposal on 19th August 2009. No 
response has been forthcoming. 
 
3.12 Yorkshire Water Services were consulted with regard to the proposal on 15th July 
2009. No response has been forthcoming. 
 
3.13 The Highways Agency wish to make a holding objection in respect of the proposal 
whilst they further consider the submitted application details. 
 
3.14 Coun D Merrett has objected to the design of the access arrangement to the site 
in so far as it impinges upon the junction with the cycleway leading from the City 
Centre to Copmanthorpe. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT :- 
 
 4.1 PPG2 "Green Belts" in Para 3.17 identifies Park and Ride proposals as not 
inappropriate development in Green Belts provided that the site has been identified as 
the most sustainable following a thorough and comprehensive assessment of potential 
sites , the scheme would not compromise the open character or purposes of 
designation of the Green Belt , the proposal is included within the relevant Local 
Transport Plan and any new or reused buildings within the scheme provide only 
facilities essential for the operation of the site. 
 
4.2 Policy Y1(D)- Transport  of the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy 
(2008) sets up a requirement to implement stronger traffic demand management 
measures in York together with improvements in the capacity and quality of Park and 
Ride facilities in the York Area. 
4.3 Policy T6 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
presumption in favour of new Park and Ride facilities where they are well related to the 
York Outer Ring Road, they do not adversely affect the environment of local 

Page 13



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 13 

communities , they do not significantly detract from the open character of the Green 
Belt and they are located on or close to a major radial route. 
 
4.4 Policy GB1 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
requirement that planning permission will only be given within the Green Belt where 
the scale, location and design of such development would not detract from the open 
character of the Green Belt, it would not conflict with the purposes of including land 
within the Green Belt , it would not prejudice the setting and special character of York 
and is for the purposes of the provision of Park and Ride facilities. 
 
4.5 Policy NE7 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
presumption that development proposals will be required to retain important natural 
habitats and where possible include measures to enhance or supplement them and to  
promote public awareness and enjoyment of them. 
 
4.6 Policy NE 5a) of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
presumption against development which may have an adverse impact upon a Local 
Nature Reserve or other non-statutory site of nature conservation interest other than 
where the reasons for the development substantively outweigh the nature 
conservation value of the site. 
 
4.7 Policy GP11 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
framework requiring that where appropriate new development will be required to 
demonstrate that suitable provision has been made for those with particular mobility 
problems or sensory impairment. 
 
4.8 Policy GP9 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
framework requiring that where appropriate development proposals should 
incorporate a landscape scheme as an integral part of the proposals, include an 
appropriate range of indigenous species, reflect the character of the locality and the 
surrounding development and form a long term edge to developments adjoining or in 
open countryside. 
 
4.9 Policy GP6 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
framework for the development of sites which have in the past been contaminated . 
This requires the undertaking of an assessment of the level and nature of 
contamination and any measures necessary to remediate the contamination prior to 
determination of the application. 
 
4.10 Policy GP4a) of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
requirement for new development to have appropriate regard to the principles of 
sustainable development which include maintaining or increasing the economic 
prosperity of the City of York, being of a high quality design with the aim of conserving 
and enhancing the local character and distinctiveness of the City, minimising the use 
of non-renewable resources and pollution, conserving and enhancing natural areas 
and landscape features and maximising the use of renewable resources , making use 
of renewable energy sources on site. 
 
4.11 Policy GP3 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
requirement that where appropriate new development will incorporate crime 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 13 

prevention measures achieving the natural surveillance of public spaces, secure 
locations for car and cycle parking, satisfactory lighting and the provision of CCTV. 
 
4.12 Policy GP1 of the York Development Control Local Plan sets a firm policy 
requirement for new development to respect or enhance the local environment, be of a 
density, layout , scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring 
buildings, spaces and the character of the area, avoid the loss of important features 
that contribute to the quality of the local environment, retain, enhance and create 
urban spaces, public views and other townscape features which make a significant 
contribution to the character of the area and accord with sustainable design principles. 
 
KEY CONSIDERATIONS:- 
 
4.13 Key Considerations include:- 
i) Impact of the proposal upon the open character and purposes of designation of  the 
Green Belt; 
ii) Impact of the proposal upon  the Askham Bog SSSI ; 
iii) The inclusion of a potential SINC within the application site; 
iv)Proposed hard and soft landscaping associated with the scheme; 
v) Use of the principles of sustainability in the design of the scheme including the 
proposed terminal building and the use of renewable energy sources; 
vi) Treatment of possible land contamination within the site. 
vii) Design of the proposed surface water drainage system. 
viii) Access Design.  
 
4.14 IMPACT UPON THE GREEN BELT. 
 
PPG2 "Green Belts" in paragraph 3.17 clearly identifies the provision of park and ride 
facilities as appropriate development within the Green Belt providing certain criteria 
are fulfilled, these include that a comprehensive assessment of potential sites giving 
regard to sustainable principles has been undertaken, that the scheme is included in 
an up-to-date Local Transport Plan and any new buildings are kept to the minimum 
necessary for the efficient operation of the site. The current scheme envisages the 
relocation and expansion of the existing long standing Askham Bar Park and Ride 
facility on a larger site to the south west of the adjacent site on Tadcaster Road. Prior 
to selection of the application site an extensive exercise was undertaken to identify the 
most appropriate location in Green Belt terms  for the site. A total of eight potential 
sites were identified and the application site was identified as the most appropriate in 
sustainability terms and the least harmful in terms of its impact upon the open 
character of the Green Belt. No site lying outside of the Green Belt were felt to be 
suitable. In terms of impact upon the openness of the Green Belt , the layout of the site 
with built development being restricted to a physically compact area at the centre of 
the site with extensive areas of landscaping and habitat creation to the north east and 
south west , would lead to any impact being  minimal. The scheme takes a major place 
in the current Local Transport Plan for the City and the range of facilities encompassed 
within the Terminal Building represent the minimum necessary for the efficient 
operation of the site. The provision of a bridge across the East Coast Mainline 
between the application site and the Askham Bog SSSI as suggested by several of the 
consultees would however have a detrimental impact upon the openness of the Green 
Belt and should therefore be discounted. 
  

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 13 

4.15 IMPACT UPON  THE ASKHAM BOG SSSI. 
 
The application site lies some 45 metres from the boundary of the Askham Bog SSSI 
at its nearest point and there may be some transitory impact during construction from 
noise and dust generation at the most intensive periods of work . However the SSSI 
and the Park and Ride site are physically separated by the East Coast mainline which 
provides a significant physical barrier and the area of the site closest would be 
occupied by the most intensive area of landscape mitigation and any harm would not 
be of a serious or permanent nature The boundary of the site with the East Coast 
mainline would be provided with appropriate fencing to deter migration of newts and 
other protected species into the site from the SSSI. The East Coast mainline provides 
a substantial physical and visual barrier to the development of links between the 
application of the site and the SSSI. Any new bridge in this location  across the railway 
would add significantly to the impact of the proposal on the open character of the 
Green Belt in a detrimental fashion notwithstanding the importance of developing 
public access to the SSSI and should therefore be rejected. 
 
4.16 THE LOCATION OF A SINC WITHIN THE DEVELOPMENT SITE. 
 
The potential SINC comprises two areas of species rich grassland to the north, 
north-east and east of the site. Species present include the Pyramidal Orchid and the 
perforated St John's Wort. Construction work is to be very carefully designed and 
phased in order to minimise disruption to the SINC and long term management 
arrangement will be put in place to safeguard its nature conservation importance. The 
area of the SINC forms a significant element of the landscape mitigation for the overall 
proposal and to re-arrange the built footprint of the site relative to the area of the SINC 
would increase the impact of the proposal upon the open character of the Green Belt. 
On balance the terms of Draft Local Plan Policies NE5a) and NE7 would be complied 
with in relation to the proposed development. 
 
4.17 HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPE PROPOSALS. 
 
The central section of the site comprising the main concentration of built development 
would be subject to a mix of hard and soft landscaping incorporating native shrub and 
bulb planting with small but well defined areas of tree planting demarcating the parking 
bays and concentrated in the central square associated with the Terminal Building. 
The landscape detail submitted with the application has been largely indicative, details 
of species, density and a planting schedule will therefore be required to be submitted  
for further approval prior to commencement of the development. Details of the 
proposed boundary fencing to enable it to blend in with the characteristic boundary 
detail of the surrounding landscape will also be required by condition. In terms of hard 
landscaping the main parking area would be constructed in conventional tarmac, there 
would be some use of setts in the hard paved areas associated with the Terminal 
Building and the main pedestrian walkways. The use of setts would help reduce the 
tarmac "heat island" effect of the development in relatively open countryside. Details of 
the setts should again be reserved by condition for further approval. Lighting would be 
via 35 eight metre high "dark sky" compliant columns which would have a minimal 
impact upon the visual amenity of the area and would only be operational when the 
site is in use. Street furniture has been deliberately designed to be small scale with a 
light weight chrome finish to avoid detracting from the existing and proposed 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 7 of 13 

landscaping. It is furthermore proposed that the Terminal Building would have a 
cedum or wildflower roof to blend in further with the landscaping proposals. 
 
4.18 SUSTAINABILITY. 
 
The proposed Terminal Building has been designed to be iconic as a reception point 
for those arriving at the site and an introduction to the City and also as exemplar of 
sustainable construction. The principal construction material would be timber from 
sustainable sources , rainwater harvesting would be used to flush toilets and urinals , 
heating would be provided by either a ground source or air source heat pump and the 
roof would be constructed in sedum as a pilot project for other Council related 
developments. A single vertical axis wind turbine would be submitted as part of the 
scheme. This would parallel in terms of its design and appearance the turbine erected 
in the grounds of the nearby Tesco supermarket and would provide approximately 
10% of the site's overall energy needs. Noise levels from the turbine would not exceed 
42 decibels within 10 metres of the base of the mast. The turbine would be located in 
close proximity to the Terminal Building which has been identified as the most suitable 
location within the site in terms of wind speeds. The parking area would be constructed 
on the ground surface minimising the overall need for excavation with associated 
vehicle movements and the need to dispose of waste materials. 
 
4.19 LAND CONTAMINATION. 
 
The application site comprises a former landfill site and Policy G6 of the Draft Local 
Plan  sets out the detailed approach in terms of dealing with contamination issues prior 
to development. The applicant has submitted  in addition to the Environmental 
Statement , a Landfill Gas Study and an Assessment of Leachate Capacity. Taking the 
various reports together the applicant proposes to construct the development in such a 
manner as to avoid disturbance of the clay cap situated above the former landfill 
waste, discharges from the site during construction will be very carefully managed so 
as to minimise the risk of pollution of surface waters with silty or contaminated runoff, 
monitoring of potential landfill gas and discharge will take place during construction 
and additional measures will be put in place if required as a result of the monitoring. 
The Terminal Building itself will also incorporate a range of appropriate gas protection 
measures. Overall the nature of the development will bring a further degree of 
protection from leachates arising from the previous landfill operation and subject to the 
conditions suggested by the Environmental Protection Unit being appended to any 
permission then the terms of Policy G6 of the Draft Local Plan would thus be complied 
with in relation to the proposal. 
 
4.20 PROPOSED SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM. 
 
The applicant because of the nature of the site has submitted a detailed Flood Risk 
Assessment. Indicative details of surface water drainage suggesting the use of 
swales, filter drains and wet lands have been submitted with the application. The final 
details of the drainage scheme have not to date been submitted as the written consent 
of Network Rail may be required to access a suitable surface water outfall. It is 
therefore recommended that full details of the proposed surface water drainage 
arrangements be made subject to condition for further approval on any permission. 
 
4.21 ACCESS DESIGN 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 8 of 13 

 
Concern has been expressed in respect of the access design for the proposal and 
specifically the impact upon the Copmanthorpe cycleway that passes the site 
entrance. The scheme has been the subject of a detailed Stage 1 Safety Audit which 
was submitted as part of the planning application. This identifies vegetation clearance 
measures to improve visibility at the site entrance as an effective means of dealing 
with issue of impact upon the Copmanthorpe cycleway. Notwithstanding that, the 
detailed junction design should be made the subject of further approval by condition on 
any permission in accordance with the recommendation of the Highway Authority. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The Park and Ride Facility at Askham Bar has been in existence since 1990 
catering for 540 cars and has been a key element of the traffic management strategy 
for the City  as a whole. Considerable pressure has however been experienced in 
relation to site capacity in recent times and the site as a whole is in need of 
refurbishment. Permission has therefore been sought to relocate and expand the site 
to allow for the creation of some 1,250 parking spaces (with 1,100 for immediate 
occupation). The site lies within the designated York Green Belt and lies above a 
former landfill site. PPG2 identifies Park and Ride facilities as appropriated 
development with in the Green Belt providing no suitable non-Green Belt sites are 
available and any impact upon the openness of the Green Belt is minimal. No suitable 
non-Green Belt sites have been identified and the development has been designed in 
order to minimise any impact upon the openness of the Green Belt. In order to further 
minimise the impact of the proposal extensive landscaping and habitat  creation 
measures have  also been proposed. As the focal point of the site a terminal building 
designed according to sustainable principles has been suggested with a vertical axis 
wind turbine designed to supply 10% of the site's energy requirements located in close 
proximity. In terms of impact upon the former landfill site the proposal has been 
designed to give rise to as little disturbance as possible and appropriate measures 
have been designed to avoid gas leachate into the Terminal Building and the wider 
surroundings.  The scheme is considered to be acceptable in planning terms and 
approval is therefore recommended. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with 
the following plans:- 
 
 Drawing Refs: CBHAEL500/01 Rev B, HE_DEC08010353_001, 
HE_DEC08010353_007A, HE_DEC08010353_008, HE_DEC08010353_009, 
HE_DEC08010353_010, HE_DEC08010353_011, 0863-01, 0863-02, 0863-03. Date 
Stamped 7th July 2009.  
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
as amendment to the approved plans. 
 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 9 of 13 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out 
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings or 
in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used  on the Terminal Building shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development.  The development shall be carried out using the approved materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 4  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings or 
in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the hard surfacing 
materials  to be used in non-Tarmac areas shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development.  The development shall be carried out using the approved materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 5  Details of all means of enclosure to the site boundaries shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development 
commences and shall be provided before the development is occupied. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 6  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees , shrubs and other planting.  
This scheme shall be implemented within a period of six months of the substantive  
completion of the development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years 
from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 
 7  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised , including 
all earth movements, introduction of utilities, importing of materials or other building 
operations, a method statement covering protection measures for the existing trees 
and hedgerows shown to be retained on the approved drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall include 
details of protective fencing, phasing of works, site access during site 
preparation/construction, parking arrangements for site vehicles, storage of materials 
and location of site cabin. The development shall thenceforth be implemented in strict 
accordance with the details thereby approved. 
 
Reason: To protect existing trees and lengths of hedgerow which are considered to 
make a significant contribution to the amenity of the area and the wider development. 
 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 10 of 13 

 8  Notwithstanding the application details hereby approved full details of the wind 
turbine including height, colouring, location and technical configuration shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before work on 
site commences. Development shall thenceforth be undertaken in strict accordance 
with the details thereby approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is operated according to sustainable 
principles and to secure compliance with Policy GP4a) of the York Development 
Control Local Plan. 
 
 9  Prior to the occupation of the Terminal Building hereby approved the developer 
shall submit in writing a formal BREEAM assessment or equivalent, for the Design and 
Procurement stages for the building hereby approved. All assessments shall be 
followed by a BREEAM Post Construction review to be submitted after construction at 
a time to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All assessments shall 
confirm the minimum "Very Good" rating or equivalent, anticipated in the preliminary 
BREEAM assessment submitted with the application, and be agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development, in accordance with the 
requirements of Policy GP4a) of the York Development Control Local Plan and the 
Council's planning guidance Interim Planning Statement(IPS) on Sustainable Design 
and Construction. 
 
10  No work shall commence on site until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work (a watching brief on all ground 
works by an approved archaeological unit) in accordance with a specification supplied 
by the Local Planning Authority.  This programme and the archaeological unit shall be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development commences. 
 
Reason:  The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the 
development will affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded 
during the construction programme. 
 
11  Development shall not begin until details of foul and surface water drainage 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
and carried out in accordance with these approved details. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for 
the proper drainage of the site. 
 
12  During the development of the site, all demolition and construction works and 
ancillary operations, including deliveries to and despatch from the site, shall be 
confined to the following hours: 
 
Monday to Friday 07.00 to 19.00 
Saturday                  07.00 to 13.00 
Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area and to secure compliance 
with Policy GP1 of the York Development Control Local Plan. 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 11 of 13 

 
13  Prior to work commencing on site , a construction environmental management 
plan (CEMP), incorporating measures detailed in Section 7 of the submitted 
Environmental Statement, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The CEMP shall identify the steps and procedures that will be 
implemented to minimise the creation and impact of noise, vibration and dust resulting 
from the demolition, site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the 
development. Once approved, the CEMP shall be adhered to at all times, unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To secure the amenity of the surrounding area and to secure compliance with 
Policy GP 1 of the York Development Control Local Plan. 
 
14  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised , a gas 
protection system based upon the results of detailed monitoring of landfill gas 
migration through the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details of the system shall include provision for the long term 
verification and monitoring of the gas protection system and shall be implemented in 
strict accordance with the details thereby approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from landfill gas to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
15  In the event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when 
undertaking the development it must be reported immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which is subject to 
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of the 
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be 
prepared, which will be subject to the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
16  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised, full details 
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority of the design of the 
following junctions: 
 

i) the new signalised junction of the A1036 Tadcaster Road and the A64 slip 
road; 

 
ii)  the existing Park and Ride access road roundabout which will form the new 

access point for bus services. 
   
These details shall be supported by detailed capacity calculations of the performance 
of the junctions both in the year of opening and 15 years after that date. The design will 
also require stage 1, 2 and 3 safety audits to be submitted for written agreement by the 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 12 of 13 

Local Planning Authority prior to the site being first brought into use. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety 
 
17  Prior to the commencement of any works, full details shall be agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority of the Construction of the Park and Ride facility, 
including cycle parking facilities, drainage, lighting, signing and lining , barrier control 
equipment, CCTV equipment and surfacing materials. 
 
Reason: In the interests of Highway Safety 
 
18  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised, a detailed 
method of works statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This statement shall include the precautions to be taken to ensure 
the safety of the general public, the method of securing the site, access to the site and 
the route to be taken by vehicles transporting the construction materials, and the hours 
during which this will be permitted. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the works are out in a safe manner and with the minimum 
disruption to users of the adjacent public highway. 
 
19  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby authorised, details shall 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the arrangements for 
maintaining the movement of traffic in the vicinity of the site, during the periods when 
construction work is taking place in relation to the provision of new access points 
serving the Park and Ride facility. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
20  Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the highways adjoining 
the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the results of which shall be 
agreed in writing with the LPA. 
 
Reason:   In the interests of the safety and good management of the public highway. 
 
21  Prior to the development commencing details of the measures to be employed 
to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public highway, and 
details of the measures to be employed to remove any such substance from the public 
highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Such measures as shall have been approved shall be employed and adhered to at all 
times during construction works. 
 
Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material creating a hazard on the 
public highway. 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to impact of the proposals on the open character and 

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01313/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 13 of 13 

purposes of designation of the Green Belt, impact of the  proposal upon the Askham 
Bog SSSI ,the inclusion of a potential SINC within the development site, proposed 
hard and soft landscaping associated with the scheme, use of sustainability principles 
in the design of the scheme particularly in relation to the Terminal Building and 
associated wind turbine, treatment of possible land contamination within the site, 
design of the proposed surface water drainage system and design of the access to the 
site. As such the proposal complies with Policy YH9 and Y1C of The Yorkshire and 
Humber Plan, policies GP1, GP3, GP4a), GP6, GP9, GP11, NE7, NE5a) T6 and GB1 
of the City of York Development Control Local Plan and Government policy contained 
within Planning Policy Guidance note 2 'Green Belts'. 
 
 2. CONSENT FOR HIGHWAY WORKS: 
 
You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the Highway 
Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 (unless 
alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below).  For further 
information please contact the officer named: 
 
Works in the highway - Section 171/Vehicle Crossing/Temporary Highway Closure - 
Section 184 - Stuart Partington (01904) 551361 
 
 3. CONTACT UTILITIES: 
   
You are advised that this proposal may have an affect on Statutory Undertakers 
equipment.  You must contact all the utilities to ascertain the location of the equipment 
and any requirements they might have prior to works commencing. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Erik Matthews Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551416 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
������������	�������������������������������	
������

����������	
���	��	��������	������	���	���	��	����������
�
	��	����������	�
	���	���������	����������	�

���	�	�����
��������	�   !

"����������	������������	��
������	�����	��������	���	���
����	��	�����������	��	�����	�����������!

��������	


�
��������

�	�
��	��

����	���

��	

���	��

�������

�����������	
��
������
�
�������������

����������	
�������

������������������������������������

�����������	�����

 ��������������

�!�����

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b 
Page 1 of 10 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Heslington 
Date: 24 September 2009 Parish: Heslington Parish Council 
 
Reference: 09/01472/REMM 
Application at: Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane And 

Low Lane  A64 Trunk Road And Hull Road York   
For: Reserved matters application for the erection of catalyst building 

along with access cycle parking and landscaping 
By: University Of York 
Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application (13w) 
Target Date: 23 October 2009 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 This is a reserved matters application for the erection of a knowledge transfer 
building known as the Catalyst as part of the first phase (Cluster 1) of the new 
campus.  Knowledge transfer is a term used to describe the exchange of ideas, 
research results and skills between research organisations, business, the public 
sector and the wider community.   The building would provide accommodation for 
start-up businesses that develop university research and existing businesses that 
work with university researchers. The application is pursuant to outline planning 
permission 04/1700/OUT granted by the Secretary of State in June 2007 for the 
development of a university campus.  
 
1.2 The building would provide 2,750sqm of accommodation for up to 200 people 
over three floors.  It would be 24m high except where the roof is raised to 25.3m to 
accommodate a plant room. The building would be located at the western edge of 
Cluster 1, close to the pedestrian ribbon.   
 
The construction of the catalyst building marks the penultimate stage in the first 
phase of development at the new campus (Cluster 1).  The only other remaining 
piece of development land at Cluster 1 is in the north-west corner of the site. 
 
It is probably the last major building to be constructed in the foreseeable future as 
part of the first phase of the campus development (ie Cluster 1).  
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 

Agenda Item 4bPage 27



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 2 of 10 

CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CGP15A 
Development and Flood Risk 
  
CYNE7 
Habitat protection and creation 
  
CYED9 
University of York New Campus 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
Internal  
3.1 Environmental Protection Unit  - The various conditions of the outline consent 
relating to construction should be adhered to at all times during construction.  
 
3.2 Highways - No highway objections to the application subject to conditions, 
notably regarding provision of transport links including the University Transit System 
(UTS).  
 
3.3 Environment, Conservation, Sustainable Development (Landscape) -  the 
landscape scheme is in keeping with the Landscape Design Brief.  Whilst a 
landscape scheme and planting schedule have been a fully detailed a planting plan 
should be provided as a condition of approval to show how the planting schedule will 
be applied.   
 
3.4      Structures and drainage - No objection to the principle of the application.  
Development should not begin until (I) details of foul and surface water drainage 
works for the catalyst building have been submitted and approved (II)  part 2a of the 
central lake and the outlet control centre are complete and in operation. 
 
External  
3.5 Heslington Forum including Heslington Parish Council - The university 
circulated the proposals to forum members on 6 July 2009 prior to submission.  No 
specific comments on the proposals were received. 
 
3.6 Hull Road Planning Panel - No objections. 
 
3.7      The University should be pursuing excellence in the landscaping of the new 
campus. It should have more specific objectives, either for a high quality ornamental 
landscape or a high quality naturalistic scheme - this appears to be a hybrid of both. 
 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 3 of 10 

3.8 Osbaldwick Parish Council - No comments. 
3.9 North Yorkshire Police - No comments. 
 
3.10 Environment Agency  - No objections providing a sustainable drainage 
scheme is submitted for approval by the local planning authority.  
 
3.11 Yorkshire Water - No objection in principle to the layout.  However the 
drawings show no drainage proposals.   
 
3.12 Public Consultation - The consultation period expired on 22 September 2009.  
One objection has been received, from two residents of Field Lane.  The objection 
states that lack of parking will result in staff/visitors parking in local residential streets 
unless the university urgently provides the 350 additional parking spaces at Grimston 
Bar and a convenient and frequent UTS from peripheral car parks.  The objectors 
also consider that the multi-coloured patchwork of colours on the north elevation of 
the new building should be plainer, more like Goodricke College. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues 
Principle of the Use 
Scale and Appearance 
Transport  
Sustainability 
Drainage  
Landscape 
Phasing of Development  
 
Relevant Local Plan Policies  
4.2 Planning Policy Statement 1 (PPS1) sets out the government's overarching 
planning policies.  It sets out the importance of good design in making places better 
for people and emphasises that development that is inappropriate in context or fails 
to take the opportunities available for improving an area should not be accepted. 
 
4.3 PPS25 aims to: ensure that flood risk is taken into account in the planning 
process; avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding; and direct 
development away from areas at highest risk. 
 
4.4 The Draft Local Plan including the 4th set of changes was approved in April 
2005.  Policy GP1 - Development proposals will be expected to respect or enhance 
the local environment and be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that is 
compatible with neighbouring buildings, spaces and vegetation.  
 
4.5 GP4a  - Proposals for all development should have regard to the principles of 
sustainable development.   
 
4.6 GP9 - Where appropriate, development proposals should incorporate a 
suitable landscaping scheme that is an integral part of the proposals; includes an 
appropriate range of species, reflects the character of the area; enhances the 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 4 of 10 

attractiveness of key transport corridors; and includes a planting specification where 
appropriate. 
 
4.7 GP15a - Developers should ensure that the site can be developed, serviced 
and occupied safely and that discharges from new development should not exceed 
the capacity of existing/proposed sewers and watercourses.  
 
4.8 NE7 - Development proposals should retain and, where possible, enhance 
important natural habitats. 
 
4.9 ED9 - The scale, layout and design of the new campus at Heslington East 
should have regard to, inter alia, a comprehensive landscape scheme including 
publicly accessible public open space and a comprehensive network of 
pedestrian/cycle routes between campuses. 
 
4.10 T4 - Seeks to promote cycling and states that all new development should 
provide storage for cycles in accordance with the standards in the local plan. 
 
Principle of the Use 
4.11 Condition 5 of the outline consent restricts development on the campus  to 
university uses, including, among others, knowledge based activities.  These can 
include Science City York uses.  They would have to demonstrate that they need to 
be located on the site due to, for example, the sharing of research ideas, resources 
or personnel, or undertaking research at the university. The proposed knowledge 
transfer functions of the Catalyst building qualify as an acceptable use under 
Condition 5.  The co-location of these like minded businesses will provide 
opportunities for future collaboration and joint venture.  
 
4.12      Condition 5 also requires that the developer shall maintain a register of such 
knowledge transfer uses.  The register must show how each use complies with the 
criteria for occupation. The accommodation within the catalyst building will be 
available to selected tenants based on their ability to fulfill these criteria.  An up-to-
date record will be kept of businesses occupying the building.  The record will be 
made available to the local planning authority in line with the requirements of the 
condition. 
 
4.13      The use of the site as part of a new campus was accepted when the 
Secretary of State granted outline consent in 2007.  Moreover, the  use accords with 
the adopted development brief, the land use plan approved as part of the outline 
consent and the masterplan for the campus. 
 
Scale and Appearance 
4.14 The building will have an irregular shape with the frontage (north-east 
elevation) facing Academic Square formed by the other academic buildings of 
Cluster 1, ie Theatre Film and Television (TFTV), Law and Computer Science.  The 
north and north-east elevations of the new building will be clad in a random mix of 
clear glazing and coloured panels.  The large proportion of glazing will help to 
maximise natural light into the building. The south and south-west elevations will 
mainly comprise a solid screen of timber with relatively small windows in order to 
minimise solar gain.  The short, end elevation will feature escape stairs to soften the 

Page 30



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 5 of 10 

interface between the main elevations.  The materials and overall design of the 
building accord with the approved masterplan for the campus and the character of 
the adjacent buildings.  The building will be in keeping with the scale of adjacent 
buildings and within the height limit imposed by the outline consent. 
 
4.15 Conditions should be attached requiring submission of details of all external 
materials and external plant and equipment.   
 
Transport 
4.16      Service vehicles will gain access to the building via the service loop between 
the northern service road and the TFTV building. The only car parking will be a 
single disabled parking space adjacent to the Academic Square.  This parking space 
will be shared with users of the TFTV building.  As a condition of the outline consent 
only 150 vehicles are permitted to use the newly-formed Field Lane roundabout for 
parking within the new campus.  These will be provided alongside the bus 
interchange.  
 
4.17     48 cycle parking spaces for staff will be provided in a covered secure building 
to the western side of the service road.  Consent for the building is currently being 
sought as part of a separate application (09/01376/REM).  Four cycle spaces will be 
provided for visitors close to the main entrance to the building and will be monitored 
by the University's CCTV system.  This level of provision accords with council 
standards. 
 
4.18    Pedestrian and cycle access to the building will be available via the 
pedestrian-cycle ribbon to the north or via the movement spine to the south. Links 
will be available to the Heslington West campus and to the existing network of cycle 
routes throughout the City. 
 
4.19      A stopping point for the University Transit System (UTS) will be provided on 
the movement spine south of the Catalyst building.  This stop will be one of two UTS 
arrival points for Cluster one.  The UTS will link the new campus with Heslington 
West and peripheral car parks including the proposed new car park at Grimston Bar.  
The provision of a UTS has been a key element of the university's transport strategy 
for some years.  A condition should be attached requiring the UTS to be operational 
when the Catalyst building is first brought into use.  The condition, which has been 
attached to the approval of other buildings on Cluster one, such as TFTV and the 
Hub, is required due to the high number of people forecast to use the building, the 
associated peak flows, the distance from the proposed bus interchange and the 
limited on-site car parking.  
 
4.20      The parking and traffic impacts of the new campus (including the current 
building) on the local area is of great concern to the community forum and some 
local residents.  These concerns were addressed at the inquiry and subsequently by 
conditions of the outline consent. For example, traffic and parking availability will be 
monitored annually and mitigation measures agreed where appropriate.  Moreover, 
the university's sustainable travel plan is now due to be updated to take account of 
the new campus.    Officers consider that the measures outlined above, together with 
the provision of sustainable transport infrastructure and the parking restrictions 
imposed by the outline consent, will be sufficient to safeguard the local community 

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 6 of 10 

from the traffic and parking implications of the Catalyst building and the campus as a 
whole. 
 
Sustainability   
4.21 The sustainability statement submitted with the application is acceptable.  It 
includes: (a) effective carbon management principles and measures to reduce 
carbon emissions; (b) commitment to achieve at least a BREEAM rating of 'very 
good'; (c) efficient use of resources via energy and water conservation measures, 
the use of environmentally friendly materials and a commitment to achieve 10% 
renewable energy generation; and (d) integrated waste and recycling facilities.  
 
4.22 Conditions should be attached requiring a BREEAM assessment of 'very 
good', 10% of energy needs to be from renewable sources and Building Regulations 
Part L to be achieved as a minimum. 
 
Drainage 
4.23      The site is in flood zone 1 and should not suffer from river flooding.   Surface 
water from the building would be drained by gravity via proprietary and open 
channels (swales) to a lake along the southern side of the campus.  Drainage details 
for the building have not been submitted. They can be made a condition of approval.   
 
4.24 Of greater concern is the overall drainage strategy for the campus.  Surface 
water from the campus will be stored in the central part of the lake and released at 
agricultural rates into local watercourses.  On 25 June members resolved to approve 
the reserved matters application for the central lake (08/02543/REMM) subject to 
drainage details being delegated to officers.  However, sufficient details have still not 
been provided by the university to show that surface water will be properly 
attenuated.  This is despite the construction of the central lake being well underway.  
Nor have the temporary drainage arrangements been approved. Consequently the 
decision notice for the central lake has still not been issued. Officers are continuing 
to negotiate with the university to secure the details required.  The catalyst building 
will add to the surface water run-off into the lake.   Therefore officers recommend 
that, if members are minded to approve the current application, the decision notice 
should not be issued until the council has formally agreed satisfactory surface water 
drainage details for the campus as a whole.  Further, that development of the 
catalyst building should not begin until part 2a of the central lake and the outlet 
control centre are complete and in operation. 
 
4.25 Condition 20 of the outline consent requires details of foul drainage to be 
submitted for approval.  Foul water from the building would be fed by gravity to the 
south-west corner of Cluster 1 where it would be pumped by a new pumping station 
to a new main sewer that would run alongside the northern service road.  Yorkshire 
Water has no objection in principle to the separate systems of drainage on and off 
site subject to details being submitted for approval. 
 
Landscape 
4.26      The landscape scheme, hard and soft, is in keeping with the Landscape 
Design Brief and the emerging landscape for the rest of the campus.  Whilst the 
landscape proposals, including a planting plan, have been submitted full details 
should be provided as a condition of approval. Particularly the swale planting and 

Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 7 of 10 

ground cover amongst grass which, if successfully implemented, should be very 
effective. 
 
Phasing of Development 
4.27 Members have asked to be kept informed of the extent to which the reserved 
matters applications contribute to the quantum of development approved by the 
outline consent.   Condition 4 of the outline permission limits the developed footprint 
to 23% of the area allocated for development (the developed footprint is defined as 
including buildings, car parks and access roads). Previous reserved matters 
applications for the campus have included a schedule, prepared by the applicant, 
showing the contribution that the applications make towards the 23% maximum.  The 
schedule is being updated to include the Catalyst building.  The updated schedule 
will be tabled at the meeting. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1. The use of the building for knowledge transfer purposes accords with the outline 
approval for the campus. The building would be in keeping with the scale of adjacent 
buildings and within the height limit imposed by the outline consent.  The materials 
and overall design of the building accord with the approved masterplan for the 
campus and the character of the adjacent buildings. The landscape proposals 
accord with the approved landscape design guidelines for the campus. The 
application is therefore acceptable. However, whilst the catalyst building will add to 
surface water run-off the drainage arrangements for the campus as a whole have still 
not been agreed. Officers therefore recommend that the application be approved but 
that the decision notice not be issued until the council has formally agreed 
satisfactory drainage details for the campus as a whole. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
 1  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans: KT(PL)A001, A002, A003, A004, A005, A006, A007, A008, 
A009, A010, A012, L605 and L607 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority as amendment to the approved plans.  
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs.  This scheme 
shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 8 of 10 

suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 
 3  Within six months of commencement of development,  details of  external 
plant and equipment including soil and vent stacks, heating and air conditioning plant 
etc, including fume extraction and odour control equipment, with details of any 
external ducting, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
Reason:  In the interests of the design and external appearance of the building 
 
 4  Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority , within 
three months of commencement of development the developer shall submit in writing 
and be approved by the local planning authority a formal pre-design BREEAM 
assessment for the design and procurement stages of the development.  The 
developer shall submit a further BREEAM assessment after construction, at a time to 
be agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  The developer shall submit a 
completion assessment  when issued by the BRE.  All assessments shall confirm the 
minimum 'Very Good' rating anticipated in the preliminary BREEAM assessment 
submitted with the application 
 
Reason - To ensure the development complies with the principles of sustainable 
development 
 
 5  Within three months of the commencement of development full details of the 
following shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority (i) 
measures to reduce energy demand for the building hereby approved, and (ii) 
measures to reduce CO2 emissions to a level lower than required under Building 
Regulations Part L.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason - To ensure the development complies with the principles of sustainable 
development 
 
 6  No building work shall take place until details have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority, to demonstrate how the applicant 
will provide, from renewable sources, 10% of the building's total energy demand on 
land within the control of the applicant.  The development shall not be occupied until 
these works have been carried out in accordance with the submitted details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority (as part of an energy 
strategy for the Heslington East campus).  Not later than 12 months after the building 
has first been brought into use, the applicant shall submit an Energy Statement to 
the Local Planning Authority, which details the percentage of the buildings energy 
consumption that has been derived from renewable sources. Thereafter the Energy 
Statement shall be submitted on an annual basis unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development 
 
INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that no approval is to be assumed or 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 9 of 10 

implied as to the nature of any particular solution for 10% provision of renewable 
energy required by this condition. 
 
 7  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings 
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority within three months of commencement of the development.  The 
development shall be carried out using the approved materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 8  Within three months of commencement of the development details shall be 
agreed in writing with the LPA of shower facilities and locker facilities to be provided 
for use by cyclists employed within the building.  The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to occupation of the premises. 
 
Reason: to accord with the University's sustainable transport policy of promoting 
non-car journeys. 
 
 9  Prior to commencement of development, details of foul and surface water 
drainage works shall  be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and carried out in accordance with these approved details.  
 
Reason - In the interests of the proper drainage of the site. 
 
10  Development shall not begin until (I) part 2a of the central lake and (II) the 
outlet control centre, both approved under reserve matters application 
08/02543/REMM, have been constructed and are operational to the satisfaction of 
the local planning authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the proper 
drainage of the site during construction. 
 
11  Prior to occupation of the Catalyst building, the following transport links shall 
be operational for the benefit of students, staff and visitors seeking access to the 
premises: 
 
(i)   The length of the pedestrian/cycle ribbon that links Cluster 1 with the western 
end of the Movement Spine. 
 
(ii)   Pedestrian/cycle links to Field Lane via the new Central Access Roundabout. 
 
(iii) The University Transit System to a frequency and specification agreed by the 
local planning authority and providing a link between the Heslington West Campus 
(including it's peripheral car parks) and Cluster 1. The arrival point (Orchard 
Terminus) shall incorporate a shelter, seating and lighting for the benefit of 
passengers. 
 
Reason - In the interests of providing sustainable transport options for students, staff 
and visitors to the site. 

Page 35



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01472/REMM  Item No: 4b  
Page 10 of 10 

12  Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the only 
method of piling to be used will be continuous flight auger piling.  
 
Reason - To protect the Sherwood Sandstone acquifer 
 
13  HWAY18  Cycle parking details to be agreed  
 
14  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved 
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles (including cycles) have been 
constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such 
areas shall be retained solely for such purposes. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
15  HWAY31  No mud on highway during construction  
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Kevin O'Connell Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 552830 
 

Page 36



09
/0

14
72

/R
EM

M
C

AT
AL

YS
T 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

 
   

 
Planning Committee 24 September 2009 
 
Report of the Assistant Director (Planning and Sustainable Development) 

 

FULFORD ROAD CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL: 
CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Summary 

1. This report requests that a draft appraisal of the Fulford Road Conservation area 
is approved for public consultation.  A copy of the appraisal is at Annex A. 

 Background 

2. Fulford Road Conservation Area was designated in 1975. The date coincided 
with a review of the Central Historic Core Conservation Area which resulted in an 
extension of the designated area to include the city walls, bars and  several of the 
major approach roads into the city centre. The Fulford Road Conservation Area 
does not extend as far as the walled city centre and it became an area 
designated in its own right, its special characteristics being strongly influenced by 
the historic military presence along the route. Prior to the production of this draft 
appraisal the character of Fulford Road conservation area had been summarized 
in a conservation statement within the City of York Draft Local Plan.   

3. This draft appraisal has been developed from an initial report dated May 2008. 
The earlier report was commissioned around the time of the appraisal for Fulford 
Village Conservation Area. The two conservation areas share the same central 
spine road and it was considered important to understand how factors affecting 
both areas might contribute to the special character and appearance of each 
area. Unfortunately in 2008 resources did not allow both pieces of work to be 
taken to conclusion and only Fulford Village proceeded to full appraisal. The 
remaining work is being funded from the existing budget of the Design 
Conservation and Sustainable Development Section.  

4. The appraisal offers an opportunity to re-assess the designated area and its 
boundaries and to evaluate and record its special interest.  PPG 15 “Planning 
and the Historic Environment” 1994 section 4.4 states, “the more clearly the 
special architectural and historic interest that justifies designation is defined and 
recorded, the sounder will be the basis of local plan policies and development 
control decisions, as well as for the formulation of proposals for the preservation 
and enhancement of the character or appearance of an area”.  The appraisal 
should provide a basis for making sustainable decisions about the area through 
the development of management proposals.  

Agenda Item 5Page 39



5. The Fulford Road draft conservation area appraisal is attached at Annex A. The 
document has been carried out by an independent conservation consultant.  The 
format and content of the report have been discussed with officers in the Design 
Conservation and Sustainable Development Section of the City Strategy 
Directorate. 

6. If adopted the appraisal would form part of the review process incumbent on 
Local Authorities under section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act. An important part of this process is a reassessment of 
the conservation area boundary. 

7. Chapters 2-3 describe the context and development of the village and draw 
attention to factors which have contributed to the character of the area as it is 
today.   

8. Chapter 4 of the appraisal reviews the boundary of the conservation area. The 
recommendation is that several amendments to the Conservation Area are 
therefore proposed, and are shown labelled A-H on the map in Annex B. Of the 
eight areas put forward for consideration, five of them would consolidate the 
boundary enclosure of the road itself and improve the definition of the north end 
of the designated area.  The remaining three areas (B,C &D) would include new 
areas of housing of special historic, architectural or social interest. 

9. Chapter 5 describes the general character of the area, as revised.  Chapters 6-7 
present a more detailed analysis of the area as it appears through two 
identifiable sub-areas:  

• Northern area – Fishergate to Alma terrace, and Alma Terrace to Hospital 
Fields Road; and 

• Southern area – Hospital Fields Road to Fulford Cross, and Fulford Cross to St 
Oswald’s Road. 

10. The final part, Chapter 8, contains suggestions which could be incorporated into 
a future management strategy. 

Consultation  

11. This report seeks approval for a consultation process to take place.  If Members 
agree the draft appraisal, then a public consultation will be carried out based 
upon the methods used for other conservation areas.  This would take place over 
a six week period as follows: 

• A letter to consultees including Conservation Area Advisory Panel, the Local 
Ward Members, Fishergate Planning Panel, Fulford Parish Council and 
appropriate amenity bodies (see list of consultees in Annex C). 

• A leaflet summarising the appraisal, with a tear-off comments slip, will be 
distributed to all properties within and surrounding the existing conservation 
area (approximately 1668 households).  The map in Annex D shows the 
existing Conservation Area boundary, proposed amendments, and suggested 

Page 40



delivery area for the leaflet. 

• Copies of the appraisal document will be made available at the Council offices 9 
St Leonard’s Place, York Central Library, Fulford Library, the Council website 
and suitable local venues (subject to agreement). 

• We propose to attend the Ward Committee meeting on 6th October, rather than 
hold a separate meeting, and consider that this along with the extensive 
delivery area of the leaflet will provide sufficient coverage for the Appraisal. 

 
• A press release will be sent to the York Press.  

 
Options  

12. Option 1 – approve the draft document for consultation purposes and to approve 
the method and range of consultation 

13. Option 2 – amend the draft document and/or change the method and range of the 
consultation process 

14. Option 3 – do not approve the draft document for consultation  

Analysis 
 

15. Unless any obvious omissions or inaccuracies can be identified within the draft 
document, or concerning the consultation process proposed, option 1 would 
allow the consultation process to start in October. Subsequently feedback from 
this process would be assessed comprehensively rather than in stages as 
implied by option 2. Option 3 would halt the statutory process and this should only 
be considered in exceptional circumstances     

 

Corporate Priorities 

16. The appraisal would assist in improving the actual and perceived condition and 
appearance of Fulford Road Conservation Area. It would also provide a more 
informed basis for decision making and for policy formulation. 

17. The appraisal would contribute towards the Local Authority’s statutory obligations 
with regard to conservation areas in their control.  

 Implications 

18. Financial – Production of the consultation documents and delivery costs would 
be met by existing budgets 

19. Human Resources (HR) – No known implications 

20. Equalities – Different formats of the consultation leaflet will be made available 
on request. Documents will be lodged in accessible locations.  

21. Legal – No implications at this stage 

Page 41



22. Crime and Disorder – No known implications  

23. Information Technology (IT) – No implications 

24. Property – No implications 

 Risk Management 

25. There should be no additional risks 

 Recommendations 

26. Members are asked to approve the draft Fulford Road Conservation Area 
Appraisal, as proposed in Annex A, for use as a consultation document.  It is also 
requested that Members approve the consultation method proposed. 

Reasons: 

 (1) the document has been prepared in accordance with current guidance from 
English Heritage. It has adopted a rigorous approach to the assessment of 
the Fulford Road Conservation Area and as a consultation document it is 
clearly written and capable of being amended where required 

(2) the boundary review has been carried out in accordance with the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and it has adopted 
relevant criteria a set out in PPG 15 and also as described in the latest 
guidance documents from English Heritage 

(3) the proposed consultation process would be based on previous practice 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

 
Janine Riley 
Conservation Architect 
Tel 01904 551305 
 
Katherine Atkinson 
Community Planning Officer 
Tel 01904 551694 
 
Design Conservation and 
Sustainable Development 
 

Mike Slater  
Assistant Director (Planning & Sustainable 
Development) 
 
Report 
Approved ü 

Date 11 September 2009 

    

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  none 
 

Wards Affected – Fishergate  All  

 
 

Page 42



For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
PPG 15 Planning Policy Guidance: Planning and the Historic Environment HMSO 
1994 
Guidance on conservation area appraisals - English Heritage 2006 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A - Fulford Road Conservation Area Appraisal consultation draft 
Annex B - Map showing the proposed amendments to the existing conservation area 
Annex C - List of consultees  
Annex D – Map showing the proposed consultation area 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



  
F
U
L
F
O
R
D
 R

O
A
D
 C

O
N
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO

N
 A

R
E
A
 A

P
P
R
A
IS

A
L
 

 

 

Page 45



 
C
O
N
T
E
N
T
S 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

1 

 

1 
IN

TR
O
D
U
C
TI
O
N
 

Pa
ge
 2
 

T
hi
s 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa
l w

as
 p
re
pa
re
d 
in
 Ju

ly
 2
00
9 
by
 

Li
nd
sa
y 
C
ow

le
 (C

on
se
rv
at
io
n 
C
on

su
lta
nt
) o

n 
be
ha
lf 
of
 t
he
 C
ity
 

of
 Y
or
k 
C
ou

nc
il.
 T
he
 fo

rm
at
 a
nd
 c
on

te
nt
 w
er
e 
ag
re
ed
 w
ith

 t
he
 

D
es
ig
n,
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
an
d 
Su
st
ai
na
bl
e 
D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
Se
ct
io
n 
of
 

th
e 
C
ity
 o
f Y

or
k 
C
ou

nc
il,
 a
nd
 t
he
 d
oc
um

en
t 
w
as
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
by
 

th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
in
 ?
 

 T
hi
s 
A
pp
ra
isa
l a
ck
no

w
le
dg
es
 t
he
 h
ist
or
ic
al
 a
ss
ist
an
ce
 p
ro
vi
de
d 

by
 v
ar
io
us
 b
oo

ks
 o
n 
th
e 
ar
ea
, i
n 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
: 

 C
M
 v
an
 W

ils
on

 –
  ‘
T
he
 H
ist
or
y 
of
 a
 C
om

m
un
ity
’, 
19
84
 

C
M
 v
an
 W

ils
on

 –
  ‘
Be

yo
nd
 t
he
 P
os
te
rn
 G
at
e:
 a
 H
ist
or
y 
of
 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
 a
nd
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d’
, 1
99
6.
 

Iv
an
 B
ro
ad
he
ad
 –
  ‘
Be

yo
nd
 t
he
 B
ar
s’,
 1
98
9 

 T
he
 h
ist
or
y 
of
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
dr
aw

s 
on

 a
 p
ri
va
te
 s
tu
dy
 

T
he
 A
rm

y 
an
d 
a 
C
ity
’ b
y 
G
 H
ee
lis
 1
95
6.
 R
ep
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 o
ld
 

ph
ot
og
ra
ph
s 
is 
w
ith

 t
he
 c
on

se
nt
 o
f Y

or
k 
C
ity
 L
ib
ra
ry
. 

2 
LO

C
A
TI
O
N
 A
N
D
 C
O
N
TE

X
T
 

Pa
ge
 3
 

3 
H
IS
TO

RI
C
A
L 
D
EV

EL
O
PM

EN
T
 

Pa
ge
 5
 

4 
C
O
N
SE
RV

A
TI
O
N
 A
RE

A
 B
O
U
N
D
A
RY

 
Pa
ge
 9
 

5 
G
EN

ER
A
L 
C
H
A
RA

C
TE

R 
Pa
ge
 1
4 

6 
TH

E 
N
O
RT

H
ER

N
 A
RE

A
 

Pa
ge
 1
7 

7 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

ER
N
 A
RE

A
 

Pa
ge
 2
3 

8 
FU

TU
RE

 M
A
N
A
G
EM

EN
T 
SU

G
G
ES
TI
O
N
S 

Pa
ge
 2
8 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 46



1 
IN

T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO

N
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

2 

1.
1 

Se
ct
io
n 
69
 o
f t
he
 P
la
nn
in
g 
(L
is
te
d 

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 H
is
to
ri
c 
A
re
as
) A

ct
 1
99
0 

re
qu
ir
es
 lo

ca
l p
la
nn
in
g 
au
th
or
iti
es
 t
o 

de
si
gn
at
e 
as
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
s 
an
y 

‘a
re
as
 o
f s
pe
ci
al
 a
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
al
 o
r 
hi
st
or
ic
 

in
te
re
st
 t
he
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
r 
ap
pe
ar
an
ce
 o
f 

w
hi
ch
 it
 is
 d
es
ir
ab
le
 t
o 
pr
es
er
ve
 o
r 

en
ha
nc
e’
. I
n 
ad
di
tio

n,
 a
ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
ar
e 

re
qu
ir
ed
 t
o 
ca
rr
y 
ou

t 
pe
ri
od

ic
 r
ev
ie
w
s 

of
 t
he
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
s 
un
de
r 
th
ei
r 

co
nt
ro
l. 

1.
2 

Se
ct
io
n 
71
 o
f t
he
 s
am

e 
A
ct
 r
eq
ui
re
s 

lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to
 fo

rm
ul
at
e 
an
d 

pu
bl
is
h 
pr
op

os
al
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
pr
es
er
va
tio

n 
an
d 
en
ha
nc
em

en
t 
of
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
s 

an
d 
to
 s
ub
m
it 
th
em

 t
o 
a 
pu
bl
ic
 m

ee
tin

g 
fo
r 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n.
 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
de
sig

na
tio

n 
th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

ri
ty
, i
n 
ex
er
ci
si
ng
 it
s 

pl
an
ni
ng
 p
ow

er
s,
 m

us
t 
pa
y 
sp
ec
ia
l 

at
te
nt
io
n 
to
 t
he
 d
es
ir
ab
ili
ty
 o
f 

pr
es
er
vi
ng
 o
r 
en
ha
nc
in
g 
th
e 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 

or
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
of
 a
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
 

(S
ec
tio

n 
72
 o
f t
he
 A
ct
). 
 

   

1.
3 

Th
e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
co
ns
er
va
tio

n 
ar
ea
 

w
as
 d
es
ig
na
te
d 
by
 t
he
 C
ity
 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 
in
 1
97
5.
 It
 is
 lo

ca
te
d 
on

 t
he
 

so
ut
he
rn
 o
ut
sk
ir
ts
 o
f t
he
 c
ity
 (s
ee
 m

ap
) 

an
d 
th
re
ad
s 
its
 w
ay
 t
hr
ou

gh
 a
n 
ar
ea
 o
n 

th
e 
ea
st
 s
id
e 
of
 t
he
 R
iv
er
 O

us
e 
m
os
tly
 

oc
cu
pi
ed
 b
y 
19
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 e
xi
st
in
g 
or
 

fo
rm

er
 m

ili
ta
ry
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
an
d 
va
ri
ou

s 
ty
pe
s 
of
 h
ou

si
ng
 fr
om

 t
he
 1
9t
h 
 a
nd
 

ea
rl
y 
20
th
 c
en
tu
ri
es
. 

1.
4 

Th
is
 d
oc
um

en
t 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th

e 
fin
di
ng
s 
of
 a
 

ch
ar
ac
te
r 
ap
pr
ai
sa
l o

f t
he
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 

co
ns
er
va
tio

n 
ar
ea
 a
nd
 c
an
 b
e 
re
ga
rd
ed
 

as
 b
ei
ng
 in
 fo

ur
 p
ar
ts
. T

he
 fi
rs
t 
pa
rt
 

(C
ha
pt
er
s 
1-
3)
 s
et
s 
th
e 
sc
en
e 
by
 

an
al
ys
in
g 
th
e 
hi
st
or
y 
an
d 
ba
se
lin
e 

fa
ct
or
s 
of
 t
he
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
. T

he
 

se
co
nd
 p
ar
t 
(C

ha
pt
er
 4
) r
ev
ie
w
s 
th
e 

ex
is
tin

g 
ex
te
nt
 o
f t
he
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
 

an
d 
m
ak
es
 p
ro
po

sa
ls 
fo
r 
re
vi
si
on

 o
f i
ts
 

bo
un
da
ri
es
. T

he
 t
hi
rd
 p
ar
t 
de
sc
ri
be
s 

th
e 
ar
ea
 a
s 
re
vi
se
d,
 fi
rs
tly
 in
 g
en
er
al
 

te
rm

s 
(C

ha
pt
er
 5
) a
nd
 t
he
n,
 in
 m

or
e 

de
ta
il,
 a
s 
tw

o 
su
b-
ar
ea
s 
(C
ha
pt
er
s 
6-
7)
. 

Th
e 
fin
al
 p
ar
t 
(C

ha
pt
er
 8
) c

on
ta
in
s 

su
gg
es
tio

ns
 fo

r 
fu
tu
re
 m

an
ag
em

en
t. 

  

 

Fu
lfo

rd
 R
oa
d 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

Page 47



2 
L
O
C
A
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 C

O
N
T
E
X
T
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

3 

2.
1 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is 
a 

lin
ea
r 
co
ns
er
va
tio

n 
ar
ea
 o
n 
th
e 

so
ut
he
rn
 o
ut
sk
ir
ts
 o
f t
he
 c
ity
 w
hi
ch
 

cl
os
el
y 
fo
llo
w
s 
a 
1 
ki
lo
m
et
re
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 

th
e 
A
19
 t
ru
nk
 r
oa
d 
le
ad
in
g 
so
ut
hw

ar
ds
 

to
 S
el
by
 a
nd
 t
he
 m

od
er
n 
A
64
 Y
or
k 
by
-

pa
ss
. I
t 
is
 r
ou

gh
ly
 p
ar
al
le
l t
o 
th
e 
Ri
ve
r 

O
us
e 
ha
lf 
a 
ki
lo
m
et
re
 a
w
ay
 t
o 
th
e 
w
es
t, 

th
e 
ri
ve
r 
(a
nd
 t
he
 r
ou

te
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
its
 

ba
nk
) h

av
in
g 
be
en
 a
 m

aj
or
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 

th
e 
ci
ty
 t
hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
hi
st
or
y.
 A
t 
its
 

no
rt
he
rn
 e
nd
 t
he
 A
19
 c
ol
le
ct
s 
tr
af
fic
 

ci
rc
ul
at
in
g 
ro
un
d 
th
e 
an
ci
en
t 
de
fe
ns
iv
e 

w
al
ls
 o
f t
he
 c
ity
 c
en
tr
e 
an
d 
le
ad
s 
it 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a,
 in
iti
al
ly
 

to
 F
ul
fo
rd
 V
ill
ag
e 
w
hi
ch
 li
es
 im

m
ed
ia
te
ly
 

to
 t
he
 s
ou

th
. N

o 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 r
oa
ds
 

co
nn
ec
t 
to
 t
he
 A
19
 a
lo
ng
 t
he
 r
ou

te
. 

2.
2 

Th
e 
ar
ea
 is
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
lo
w
-ly
in
g 
an
d 

to
po

gr
ap
hi
ca
lly
 fe
at
ur
el
es
s,
 r
is
in
g 
no

 
m
or
e 
th
an
 5
0 
fe
et
 o
r 
so
 a
bo

ve
 t
he
 

Ri
ve
r 
O
us
e,
 w
hi
ch
 a
lth

ou
gh
 w
el
l i
nl
an
d 

is
 li
tt
le
 a
bo

ve
 s
ea
 le
ve
l. 
It 
is
 s
ta
nd
s 
on

 a
 

sl
ig
ht
ly
 e
le
va
te
d 
ri
dg
e 
of
 g
la
ci
al
 s
an
d 
an
d 

gr
av
el
, w

ith
 g
la
ci
al
 o
ut
w
as
h 
de
po

si
ts
 a
nd
 

al
lu
vi
um

 in
 t
he
 lo

w
er
 a
re
as
. L
ea
vi
ng
 t
he
 

ci
ty
 t
he
re
 is
 a
 d
ist
in
ct
 fa
ll 
in
 le
ve
l i
n 
th
e 

ce
nt
re
 o
f t
he
 A
re
a,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 r
eg
ai
ne
d 
on

 
ap
pr
oa
ch
in
g 
Fu
lfo
rd
 v
ill
ag
e.
  

 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
co
nt
ex
t 
m
ap
- Y

or
k 
C
ity
 C
en
tr
e 
(t
op

) F
ul
fo
rd
 v
ill
ag
e 
(b
ot
to
m
) 

Page 48



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

4 

2.
3 

Th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
lie
s 
w
ith

in
 a
 

fu
lly
 b
ui
lt-
up
 a
re
a 
of
 t
he
 c
ity
 s
ub
ur
bs
. I
ts
 

ch
ar
ac
te
r 
va
ri
es
 a
lo
ng
 t
he
 A
19
 r
oa
d 

w
hi
ch
 fo

rm
s 
its
 ‘b
ac
kb
on

e’
: s
om

e 
ar
ea
s 

ar
e 
st
ro
ng
ly
 m

ili
ta
ry
, r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
th
e 
tw

o 
im
po

rt
an
t 
ar
m
y 
ba
rr
ac
ks
 w
hi
ch
 w
er
e 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
he
re
 in
 t
he
 la
te
 1
8t
h 
an
d 

la
te
 1
9t
h 
ce
nt
ur
ie
s, 
pa
rt
s 
of
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 

si
nc
e 
be
en
 r
ed
ev
el
op

ed
 fo

r 
of
fic
e 
an
d 

in
du
st
ri
al
 u
se
. O

th
er
w
ise

 r
es
id
en
tia
l 

us
es
 p
re
do

m
in
at
e,
 m

os
tly
 in
 t
he
 fo

rm
 o
f 

Vi
ct
or
ia
n 
te
rr
ac
ed
 o
r 
m
id
-w

ar
 h
ou

si
ng
. 

D
ue
 t
o 
th
ei
r 
co
nv
en
ie
nt
 lo

ca
tio

n 
on

 a
 

m
ai
n 
en
tr
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 
ci
ty
 m

an
y 

re
si
de
nt
ia
l p
ro
pe
rt
ie
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

co
nv
er
te
d 
to
 h
ot
el
s 
or
 g
ue
st
 h
ou

se
s. 
 

2.
4 

Th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
ha
s 
re
la
tiv
el
y 

‘lo
os
e’
 b
ou

nd
ar
ie
s 
in
 m

an
y 
ar
ea
s 
an
d 

ha
s 
no

 d
ef
in
ite

 fo
ca
l p
oi
nt
 o
r 

co
m
m
un
ity
. A

t 
its
 s
ou

th
 e
nd
 it
 a
dj
oi
ns
 

th
e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 V
ill
ag
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

(a
s 
ex
te
nd
ed
 in
 2
00
8)
 w
hi
ch
 r
et
ai
ns
 it
s 

di
st
in
ct
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 a
s 
a 
vi
lla
ge
 a
nd
 

co
m
m
un
ity
. A

t 
its
 n
or
th
 e
nd
 it
 a
dj
oi
ns
 

th
e 
N
ew

 W
al
k 
/ T

er
ry
 A
ve
nu
e 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
w
hi
ch
 le
ad
s 
of
f t
o 

th
e 
Ri
ve
r 
O
us
e,
 b
ut
 o
th
er
w
is
e 
it 

m
er
ge
s 
in
to
 b
us
y 
st
re
et
s 
of
 le
ss
 

to
w
ns
ca
pe
 in
te
re
st
.  

2.
5 

A
pa
rt
 fr
om

 t
he
 a
dj
oi
ni
ng
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
as
 t
he
 A
re
a 
do

es
 n
ot
 in
cl
ud
e 
or
 

ad
jo
in
 a
ny
 a
re
as
 w
ith

 s
pe
ci
al
 

de
si
gn
at
io
ns
. H

ow
ev
er
, i
t 
fo
cu
ss
es
 o
n 
a 

m
aj
or
 v
eh
ic
ul
ar
 r
ou

te
 in
to
 t
he
 c
ity
 

w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ro
ss
ed
 (a

t 
H
os
pi
ta
l F
ie
ld
s 

Ro
ad
) b

y 
tw

o 
m
aj
or
 e
as
t-
w
es
t 
cy
cl
e 

w
ay
s 
(r
ou

te
s 
65
 a
nd
 6
6 
of
 t
he
 N

at
io
na
l 

C
yc
le
 N

et
w
or
k)
 le
ad
in
g 
to
 a
nd
 fr
om

 
th
e 
ne
w
 M

ill
en
ni
um

 B
ri
dg
e 
ov
er
 t
he
 

Ri
ve
r 
O
us
e 
to
 t
he
 w
es
t. 

2.
6 

D
ue
 t
o 
th
e 
vo
lu
m
e 
of
 t
ra
ffi
c 
no

w
 

en
te
ri
ng
 t
he
 c
ity
 fr
om

 t
he
 s
ou

th
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
in
g 

so
m
e 
pr
es
su
re
 fr
om

 t
hr
ou

gh
 t
ra
ffi
c,
 

w
hi
ch
 c
on

fli
ct
s 
w
ith

 it
s 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 
an
d 

re
du
ce
s 
its
 a
m
en
ity
 t
o 
re
si
de
nt
s 
an
d 

vi
si
to
rs
: t
ra
ffi
c 
re
du
ct
io
n 
m
ea
su
re
s 
ar
e 

th
er
ef
or
e 
be
in
g 
ex
pl
or
ed
. I
t 
is
 a
lso

 
ex
pe
ri
en
ci
ng
 s
om

e 
pr
es
su
re
 fr
om

 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l d
ev
el
op

m
en
t. 
Th

is
 is
 

th
er
ef
or
e 
an
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 t
im
e 
to
 

re
as
se
ss
 t
he
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
f t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
an
d 
en
su
re
 t
ha
t 
its
 

sp
ec
ia
l c
ha
ra
ct
er
 is
 n
ot
 c
om

pr
om

is
ed
. 

Page 49



3 
H
IS

T
O
R
IC

A
L
 D

E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

5 

3.
1 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is 
a 

di
st
in
ct
ly
 li
ne
ar
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea

 w
hi
ch
 

st
ra
dd
le
s 
th
e 
m
ai
n 
A
19
 t
ru
nk
 r
oa
d 

le
av
in
g 
Yo

rk
 in
 a
 s
ou

th
er
ly
 d
ir
ec
tio

n,
 

co
nn
ec
tin

g 
th
e 
ci
ty
 h
ist
or
ic
al
ly
 t
o 
th
e 

vi
lla
ge
 o
f F
ul
fo
rd
 e
n 
ro
ut
e 
fo
r 
Se
lb
y 
an
d 

D
on

ca
st
er
. U

nt
il 
re
la
tiv
el
y 
m
od

er
n 

tim
es
 it
 w
as
 in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 t
he
 p
ar
ish

 o
f 

Fu
lfo
rd
, w

hi
ch
 fi
ni
sh
ed
 c
lo
se
 t
o 
th
e 
ci
ty
 

w
al
ls
. 

3.
2 

It 
is
 t
ho

ug
ht
 t
ha
t 
th
e 
ro
ad
 is
 o
f R

om
an
 

or
ig
in
, p
ro
vi
di
ng
 a
 r
ou

te
 to

 a
nd
 fr
om

 
th
e 
ci
ty
 a
 s
ho

rt
 d
is
ta
nc
e 
ea
st
 o
f t
he
 

Ri
ve
r 
O
us
e 
w
he
re
 it
 c
ou

ld
 u
til
is
e 
th
e 

fir
m
 a
nd
 w
el
l-d

ra
in
ed
 g
ro
un
d 
of
fe
re
d 
by
 

th
e 
gr
av
el
 r
id
ge
, a
lth

ou
gh
 a
rc
ha
eo

lo
gi
ca
l 

ev
id
en
ce
 is
 la
ck
in
g.
 H
ow

ev
er
, d
es
pi
te
 

in
te
ns
iv
e 
Ro

m
an
 o
cc
up
at
io
n 
of
 t
he
 c
ity
 

an
d 
of
 a
ct
iv
ity
 in
 F
ul
fo
rd
 th

er
e 
is
 n
o 

ev
id
en
ce
 o
f R

om
an
 o
r 
ea
rl
ie
r 
pr
es
en
ce
 

in
 t
he
 a
re
a 
be
tw

ee
n.
 

3.
3 

Fo
llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
Ro

m
an
 o
cc
up
at
io
n 
it 
is
 

po
ss
ib
le
 t
ha
t 
an
ot
he
r 
ro
ut
e 
w
ith

 s
m
al
l 

se
tt
le
m
en
ts
 e
xi
st
ed
 c
lo
se
r 
to
 t
he
 r
iv
er
, 

on
 le
ss
 r
el
ia
bl
e 
gr
ou

nd
, w

hi
ch
 m

ay
 

ac
co
un
t 
fo
r 
th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 p
ar
is
h 
ch
ur
ch
 (-
 

th
e 
12

th
 c
en
tu
ry
 o
r 
ea
rl
ie
r 
C
hu
rc
h 
of
 S
t 

O
sw

al
d 
-)
 ju
st
 o
ut
si
de
 t
he
 s
ou

th
er
n 
en
d 

of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
  

3.
4 

D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
m
ed
ia
ev
al
 p
er
io
d 
th
e 
ar
ea
 

re
m
ai
ne
d 
un
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
ed
 

co
m
m
on

 g
ra
zi
ng
 la
nd
 s
ha
re
d 
be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 
C
ity
 a
nd
 S
t 
M
ar
y’
s 
A
bb
ey
, b
y 
th
en
 

th
e 
m
aj
or
 la
nd
ow

ne
r 
in
 F
ul
fo
rd
: t
he
 

an
ci
en
t 
Fu
lfo
rd
 C
ro
ss
 (w

hi
ch
 m

os
tly
 

su
rv
iv
es
, o

pp
os
ite

 t
he
 In

fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s)
 

da
te
s 
fr
om

 a
ro
un
d 
14
84
 a
nd
 p
ro
ba
bl
y 

de
fin
es
 t
he
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
of
 th

e 
gr
az
in
g 

ri
gh
ts
. T

he
 c
ro
ss
 w
as
 t
he
n 
a 
m
aj
or
 

fe
at
ur
e,
 p
ro
ba
bl
y 
us
ed
 a
s 
a 
m
ee
tin

g 
pl
ac
e 
an
d 
fo
r 
ce
re
m
on

ia
l p
ur
po

se
s, 
an
d 

in
 1
54
1 
th
e 
ci
ty
 le
ad
er
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 H
en
ry
 

Vl
ll 
he
re
 o
n 
th
ei
r 
kn
ee
s,
 in
 p
en
an
ce
 fo

r 
th
ei
r 
su
pp
or
t 
fo
r 
a 
lo
ca
l r
eb
el
lio
n.
  

 

3.
5 

In
 1
75
9 
th
e 
co
m
m
on

 la
nd
 w
as
 E
nc
lo
se
d 

to
 b
ec
om

e 
pa
rt
 o
f W

al
m
ga
te
 S
tr
ay
, a
nd
 

th
e 
la
nd
 t
o 
ei
th
er
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 

w
as
 d
iv
id
ed
 in
to
 fi
el
ds
 w
ith

 r
ou

gh
ly
 

pa
ra
lle
l b
ou

nd
ar
ie
s.
 T
he
se
 s
ep
ar
at
e 
la
nd
 

ho
ld
in
gs
 w
ou

ld
 d
ic
ta
te
 t
he
 fo

rm
 o
f 

m
uc
h 
of
 t
he
 b
ui
lt 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
du
ri
ng
 

th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ce
nt
ur
y.
 It
 is
 li
ke
ly
 t
ha
t 
St
 

O
sw

al
d’
s 
Ro

ad
 w
as
 c
re
at
ed
 a
t 
th
at
 

tim
e,
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
on

e 
of
 t
he
 n
ew

 
bo

un
da
ri
es
, t
o 
cr
ea
te
 a
 n
ew

 r
ou

te
 t
o 
St
 

O
sw

al
d’
s 
C
hu
rc
h 
w
hi
ch
 b
et
te
r 
su
ite

d 
th
e 
ne
w
 p
at
te
rn
 o
f l
an
d 
ow

ne
rs
hi
p.
  

3.
6 

Th
e 
O
S 
M
ap
 o
f 1

85
3 
(-
 t
he
 fi
rs
t 
de
ta
ile
d 

m
ap
 o
f t
he
 a
re
a 
-)
 s
ho

w
s 
th
e 
fie
ld
s 

bo
un
di
ng
 t
he
 r
iv
er
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
m
os
tly
 a
s 

ei
th
er
 n
ur
se
ri
es
 o
r 
gr
av
el
 p
its
, w

ith
 t
he
 

ci
ty
 h
ou

si
ng
 s
ub
ur
bs
 s
ta
rt
in
g 
to
 a
pp
ea
r 

on
 F
is
he
rg
at
e,
 a
nd
 t
w
o 
or
 t
hr
ee
 h
ig
h 

st
at
us
 h
ou

se
s 
in
 la
rg
e 
gr
ou

nd
s.
  

3.
7 

Th
e 
m
os
t 
im
po

rt
an
t 
ar
ri
va
l b
y 
th
at
 t
im
e 

w
as
 t
he
 C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s,
 b
ui
lt 
on

 t
he
 

ea
st
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
in
 1
79
5 
on

 
op

en
 la
nd
. T

hi
s 
w
as
 t
he
 s
ta
rt
 o
f a
 

m
ili
ta
ry
 p
re
se
nc
e 
w
hi
ch
 w
ou

ld
 

do
m
in
at
e 
th
e 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 
of
 t
he
 a
re
a 
un
til
 

th
e 
pr
es
en
t 
da
y.
 

Th
e 
an
ci
en
t 
Fu
lfo
rd
 c
ro
ss
 

Page 50



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

6 

3.
8 

Th
e 
C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
w
er
e 
op

en
ed
 in
 

17
95
 t
o 
ho

us
e 
tr
oo

ps
 o
f t
he
 m

ili
tia
 w
ho

 
ha
d 
pr
ev
io
us
ly
 b
ee
n 
bi
lle
te
d 
in
 in
ns
 

ar
ou

nd
 t
he
 C
ity
 a
nd
 t
he
 n
ei
gh
bo

ur
in
g 

co
un
tr
ys
id
e,
 a
nd
 r
el
ia
nt
 o
n 
a 
no

tic
e 
in
 

th
e 
ga
ze
tt
e 
to
 a
ss
em

bl
e 
fo
r 
in
sp
ec
tio

n.
 

By
 1
79
3 
Br
ita
in
 w
as
 p
re
pa
ri
ng
 fo

r 
w
ar
 

w
ith

 F
ra
nc
e,
 a
nd
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
w
er
e 
ne
ed
ed
 

in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 
ha
ve
 t
ro
op

s 
on

 h
an
d 
an
d 

im
m
ed
ia
te
ly
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
fo
r 
m
us
te
r.
 

3.
9 

Fu
lfo
rd
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
w
as
 o
ne
 o
f 1

01
 

ba
rr
ac
ks
 b
ui
lt 
in
 E
ng
la
nd
 b
et
w
ee
n 
17
93
 

an
d 
18
04
 b
y 
th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 M

as
te
r 

G
en
er
al
 a
nd
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
by
 Ja
m
es
 Jo

hn
so
n 

an
d 
Jo
hn
 S
an
de
rs
, t
he
 o
ffi
ci
al
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 

ar
ch
ite

ct
s.
 It
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
19
 a
cr
es
, o

f 
w
hi
ch
 1
2 
ac
re
s 
pr
ov
id
ed
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
fo
r 
4 

tr
oo

ps
 (2

32
 m

en
 a
nd
 h
or
se
s)
 o
f t
he
 

A
nc
ie
nt
 B
ri
tis
h 
Fe
nc
ib
le
s 
an
d 
7 
ac
re
s 
to
 

th
e 
so
ut
h 
pr
ov
id
ed
 a
 n
ur
se
ry
 g
ar
de
n.
 

Th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 In

n 
(n
ow

 th
e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 

A
rm

s)
 s
oo

n 
ap
pe
ar
ed
 n
ex
t 
do

or
. 

3.
10
 
D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
se
co
nd
 h
al
f o

f t
he
 1
9t

h  
ce
nt
ur
y 
th
e 
ba
rr
ac
ks
 s
ite
 w
as
 m

or
e 

in
te
ns
iv
el
y 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 in
cl
ud
e 

m
ar
ri
ed
 q
ua
rt
er
s,
 a
 c
hu
rc
h 
an
d 
a 
pr
is
on

, 
ex
tin

gu
is
hi
ng
 t
he
 n
ur
se
ry
 g
ar
de
n,
 a
nd
 a
 

M
ili
ta
ry
 H
os
pi
ta
l w

as
 b
ui
lt 
on

 t
he
 

op
po

si
te
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d.
  

 

 

                 

                   
O
rd
na
nc
e 
Su
rv
ey
 m

ap
 1
85
3 

Page 51



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

7 

3.
11
 
Te

rr
ac
ed
 h
ou

si
ng
 h
ad
 e
xt
en
de
d 
in
to
 t
he
 

ar
ea
 fr
om

 t
he
 c
ity
 a
nd
 s
ev
er
al
 u
se
s 
an
d 

bu
ild
in
gs
 h
ad
 s
pr
un
g 
up
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 

ba
rr
ac
ks
 (n

ot
ab
ly
 in
 W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
), 

m
ee
tin

g 
th
e 
gr
ow

in
g 
de
m
an
d 
fo
r 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 
an
d 
co
m
m
od

iti
es
. 

C
iv
ili
an
 a
nd
 m

ili
ta
ry
 a
pp
ea
r 
to
 h
av
e 

in
te
gr
at
ed
 w
el
l: 
th
e 
ba
rr
ac
ks
 w
er
e 
op

en
 

to
 t
he
 p
ub
lic
 o
n 
Su
nd
ay
s 
an
d 
vi
si
ts
 a
nd
 

m
ili
ta
ry
 p
ar
ad
es
 h
ad
 b
ec
om

e 
bi
g 
so
ci
al
 

ev
en
ts
. A

t 
th
e 
so
ut
he
rn
 e
nd
 o
f t
he
 a
re
a 

Fu
lfo
rd
 w
as
 b
ec
om

in
g 
an
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 

re
si
de
nt
ia
l a
re
a 
an
d 
ho

us
in
g 
ha
d 

ap
pe
ar
ed
 a
lo
ng
 S
t 
O
sw

al
d’
s 
Ro

ad
 a
nd
 

on
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
ne
ar
by
. 

3.
12
 
In
 1
87
7-
80
 a
 m

uc
h 
la
rg
er
 s
ite

 (3
5 
ac
re
s)
 

ad
jo
in
in
g 
th
e 
so
ut
h 
si
de
 o
f t
he
 C
av
al
ry
 

Ba
rr
ac
ks
 w
as
 d
ev
el
op

ed
 a
s 
an
 In

fa
nt
ry
 

Ba
rr
ac
ks
, r
e-
na
m
ed
 t
he
 Im

ph
al
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 

in
 1
95
1 
in
 c
om

m
em

or
at
io
n 
of
 

ca
m
pa
ig
ns
 in
 B
ur
m
a.
 T
he
 s
ite

 w
as
 

de
ve
lo
pe
d 
un
de
r 
th
e 
ne
w
 ‘C

ar
dw

el
l 

Re
fo
rm

’ p
ol
ic
y 
of
 c
om

bi
ni
ng
 r
eg
ul
ar
 a
nd
 

re
se
rv
e 
ba
tt
al
io
ns
 o
n 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
si
te
. T

he
 

W
es
t 
Yo

rk
sh
ir
e 
Re

gi
m
en
t 
14

th
 F
oo

t 
(-
 

so
on

 a
fte

r 
re
na
m
ed
 t
he
 P
ri
nc
e 
of
 W

al
es
 

O
w
n 
Re

gi
m
en
t 
-)
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
th
e 
no

rt
h 

si
de
 a
nd
 t
he
 2

nd
 W

es
t 
Yo

rk
 L
ig
ht
 

In
fa
nt
ry
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
th
e 
so
ut
h 
si
de
, w

ith
 a
 

sh
ar
ed
 p
ar
ad
e 
gr
ou

nd
 in
 b
et
w
ee
n.
  

3.
13
 
Th

e 
In
fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
w
er
e 
de
sig

ne
d 
at
 

th
e 
W

ar
 O

ffi
ce
 b
y 
M
aj
or
 H
C
 S
ed
do

n,
 

an
d 
th
e 
hi
gh
ly
 d
ef
en
si
ve
 K
ee
p 
fr
on

tin
g 

on
to
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 o
ne
 o
f t
he
 m

os
t 

di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
im
pr
es
si
ve
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 in
 

th
e 
ar
ea
.  

3.
14
   
By
 1
87
8 
th
e 
m
ili
ta
ry
 b
as
e 
w
as
 o
f s
uc
h 

hi
gh
 s
ta
tu
s 
th
at
 t
he
 N

or
th
er
n 

C
om

m
an
d 
H
ea
dq
ua
rt
er
s 
w
as
 m

ov
ed
 

fr
om

 M
an
ch
es
te
r 
to
 T
ow

er
 H
ou

se
 in
 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
, a
 s
ho

rt
 d
ist
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 

no
rt
h.
 T
he
 R
oy
al
 A
rm

y 
O
rd
na
nc
e 

C
or
ps
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 
its
 b
as
e 
be
hi
nd
 t
he
 

M
ili
ta
ry
 H
os
pi
ta
l i
n 
18
90
. 

3.
15
 
 In

 1
88
0 
th
e 
fir
st
 h
or
se
-d
ra
w
n 
tr
am

s 
ap
pe
ar
ed
 in
 Y
or
k,
 w
ith

 s
te
am

 t
ra
m
s 
to
 

Fu
lfo
rd
, f
ur
th
er
 h
as
te
ni
ng
 t
he
 s
pr
ea
d 
of
 

th
e 
ci
ty
 s
ub
ur
bs
.  
Th

e 
tr
am

 d
ep
ot
 w
as
 

lo
ca
te
d 
op

po
si
te
 t
he
 In

fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s, 

be
hi
nd
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
, p
re
su
m
ab
ly
 t
o 

he
lp
 li
nk
 t
he
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
to
 th

e 
C
om

m
an
d 

H
ea
dq
ua
rt
er
s 
an
d 
th
e 
ci
ty
 c
en
tr
e.
 T
he
 

te
rr
ac
ed
 h
ou

si
ng
 a
ro
un
d 
A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e 

be
ca
m
e 
a 
po

pu
la
r 
liv
in
g 
ar
ea
 fo

r 
th
e 

tr
am

 d
ri
ve
rs
 a
nd
 c
on

du
ct
or
s.
  T

he
 

tr
am

s 
w
er
e 
el
ec
tr
ifi
ed
 in
 1
91
0.
 

  

                  

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
tr
am

 d
ep
ot
 1
91
1 

C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
or
ig
in
al
 m

ai
n 
en
tr
an
ce
 c
19
10
 

Page 52



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

8 

3.
16
 
Th

e 
no

rt
he
rn
 p
ar
t 
of
 t
he
 c
iv
il 
pa
ri
sh
 

w
as
 a
m
al
ga
m
at
ed
 w
ith

 t
he
 b
or
ou

gh
 o
f 

Yo
rk
 u
nd
er
 t
he
 Y
or
k 
Ex
te
ns
io
n 
an
d 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 
A
ct
 o
f 1

88
4 
an
d 
th
e 
ar
ea
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
be
ca
m
e 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 c
ity
. T

he
 

ea
st
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
fr
om

 t
he
 

C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
to
 F
ul
fo
rd
 v
ill
ag
e 
w
as
 

pl
an
te
d 
w
ith

 t
re
es
 t
o 
en
ha
nc
e 
th
e 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 t
o 
th
e 
ci
ty
 c
en
tr
e.
 

3.
17
 
In
 1
91
3 
th
e 
fir
st
 ‘C

ou
nc
il 
ho

us
es
’ w

er
e 

bu
ilt
 in
 A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
 t
o 
re
ho

us
e 
fa
m
ili
es
 

di
sp
la
ce
d 
by
 t
he
 c
le
ar
an
ce
 o
f P

av
em

en
t 

w
he
n 
Pi
cc
ad
ill
y 
w
as
 c
re
at
ed
, a
nd
 fu

rt
he
r 

C
ou

nc
il 
ho

us
in
g 
fo
llo
w
ed
 b
eh
in
d 
th
e 

tr
am

 d
ep
ot
 a
t 
Fu
lfo
rd
 C
ro
ss
. 

Re
si
de
nt
ia
l e
xp
an
si
on

 w
as
 n
ot
 c
on

fin
ed
 

to
 w
or
ki
ng
 c
la
ss
 h
ou

si
ng
 b
ut
 s
til
l 

in
cl
ud
ed
 h
ig
h 
st
at
us
 p
ri
va
te
 v
ill
as
 s
uc
h 

as
 W

es
tfi
el
d 
H
ou

se
 (l
at
er
 t
he
 G
im
cr
ac
k 

H
ot
el
, a
 p
op

ul
ar
 v
en
ue
 fo

r 
th
e 
m
ili
ta
ry
), 

O
us
ef
ie
ld
, D

an
es
m
ea
d,
 a
nd
 t
he
 s
m
al
le
r 

bu
t 
w
el
l d
es
ig
ne
d 
ho

us
es
 o
pp
os
ite

 s
uc
h 

as
 T
he
 L
im
es
. I
n 
th
e 
19
30
’s
 n
ew

 m
id
dl
e 

cl
as
s 
pr
iv
at
e 
ho

us
in
g 
es
ta
te
s 
ap
pe
ar
ed
 

in
 K
ilb
ur
n 
Ro

ad
, M

ap
le
 G
ro
ve
 a
nd
 

Br
oa
dw

ay
 / 
Br
oa
dw

ay
 W

es
t. 

3.
18
 
Th

e 
m
ili
ta
ry
 e
st
ab
lis
hm

en
ts
 c
on

tin
ue
d 

to
 e
xp
an
d 
du
ri
ng
 t
he
 e
ar
ly
 2
0t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 

w
ith

 t
he
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
of
 th

e 
Ro

ya
l A

rm
y 

M
ed
ic
al
 C
or
ps
 o
n 
a 
si
te
 a
dj
oi
ni
ng
 t
he
 

ho
sp
ita
l, 
an
d 
fu
rt
he
r 
st
af
f 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n:
 h
ow

ev
er
, t
he
 

do
m
in
an
t 
m
ili
ta
ry
 p
re
se
nc
e 
de
cl
in
ed
 in
 

th
e 
la
tt
er
 p
ar
t 
of
 t
he
 c
en
tu
ry
 w
ith

 t
he
 

cl
os
ur
e 
of
 t
he
 C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
an
d 
th
e 

re
m
ov
al
 o
f m

os
t 
bu
ild
in
gs
 o
th
er
 t
ha
n 

th
e 
fr
on

t 
gu
ar
d 
ho

us
es
. T

he
 M

ili
ta
ry
 

H
os
pi
ta
l, 
RA

O
C
 a
nd
 R
A
M
C
 s
ite

s 
w
er
e 

al
so
 v
ac
at
ed
. N

ew
 in
du
st
ri
al
, o

ffi
ce
 a
nd
 

re
si
de
nt
ia
l b
ui
ld
in
gs
 h
av
e 
ap
pe
ar
ed
 b
ut
 

th
e 
fo
rm

er
 u
se
s 
ar
e 
st
ill
 e
m
bo

di
ed
 in
 

th
e 
st
re
et
 n
am

es
 (H

os
pi
ta
l F
ie
ld
s 
Ro

ad
, 

O
rd
na
nc
e 
La
ne
 e
tc
). 

3.
19
 
Th

e 
tr
am

 d
ep
ot
, w

hi
ch
 c
lo
se
d 
w
ith

 t
he
 

di
sa
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
of
 t
he
 tr
am

s 
in
 1
93
5,
 h
as
 

be
en
 r
em

ov
ed
 a
nd
 r
ep
la
ce
d 
by
 r
et
ai
l 

un
its
.

Page 53



4 
C
O
N
SE

R
V
A
T
IO

N
 A

R
E
A
 B

O
U
N
D
A
R
Y
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

9 

4.
1 
 
Th

e 
ex
is
tin

g 
bo

un
da
ry
 o
f t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is
 s
ho

w
n 
on

 t
he
 

m
ap
 o
ve
rl
ea
f. 
It 
is
 c
en
tr
ed
 o
n 
th
e 

m
ili
ta
ry
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
an
d 
re
la
te
d 
us
es
 w
hi
ch
 

w
er
e 
bu
ilt
 h
er
e 
fr
om

 t
he
 la
te
 1
8t

h  
ce
nt
ur
y 
on

w
ar
ds
, a
nd
 w
hi
ch
 w
er
e 
of
 

gr
ea
t 
im
po

rt
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 
ci
ty
; b
ut
 it
 a
ls
o 

in
cl
ud
es
 1
9t

h  a
nd
 e
ar
ly
 2
0t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 

ho
us
in
g 
bu
ilt
 a
lo
ng
 t
he
 A
19
 t
ru
nk
 r
oa
d 

w
hi
ch
 g
iv
e 
a 
di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 
to
 t
hi
s 

ci
ty
 a
pp
ro
ac
h.
 

4.
2 
 
Th

e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
w
as
 d
es
ig
na
te
d 

in
 1
97
5 
an
d 
ha
s 
re
m
ai
ne
d 
un
al
te
re
d 

de
sp
ite

 c
on

si
de
ra
bl
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
w
ith

in
 t
he
 

lo
ca
lit
y 
an
d 
a 
be
tt
er
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f i
ts
 

hi
st
or
y;
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
hi
s 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
a 
ap
pr
ai
sa
l t
he
 e
xt
en
t 
of
 t
he
 A
re
a 

an
d 
th
e 
ap
pr
op

ri
at
en
es
s 
of
 it
s 
bo

un
da
ry
 

ha
s 
th
er
ef
or
e 
be
en
 r
e-
as
se
ss
ed
.  

4.
3 
 
Th

e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is 
un
us
ua
lly
 

lo
ng
 a
nd
 n
ar
ro
w
, w

ith
 s
om

e 
fr
ag
ile
 

se
ct
io
ns
, a
nd
 m

od
er
n 
re
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 

ha
s 
ad
de
d 
to
 t
ha
t 
fr
ag
ili
ty
. E
ve
n 
so
, i
t 
is
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 t
ha
t 
th
e 
A
re
a 
st
ill
 r
et
ai
ns
 a
 

sp
ec
ia
l c
ha
ra
ct
er
, a
nd
 t
ha
t 
it 
co
nt
in
ue
s 

to
 ju
st
ify
 a
 h
ig
h 
de
gr
ee
 o
f c
on

tr
ol
.  

To
ge
th
er
 w
ith

 t
he
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
a 
to
 t
he
 s
ou

th
, a
nd
 t
he
 N

ew
 W

al
k 
/ 

Te
rr
y 
A
ve
nu
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
to
 

th
e 
no

rt
h,
 t
he
 A
re
a 
w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue
 t
o 

se
cu
re
 t
he
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
an
d 
en
ha
nc
em

en
t 

of
 t
hi
s 
im
po

rt
an
t 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 t
o 
th
e 
ci
ty
 

ce
nt
re
. 

4.
4 
 
In
 a
dd
iti
on

, i
t 
is
 n
ow

 a
pp
re
ci
at
ed
 t
ha
t 

th
e 
A
re
a 
ha
s 
an
 e
xc
ep
tio

na
lly
 r
ic
h 

di
ve
rs
ity
 o
f h

ou
si
ng
 t
yp
es
, w

hi
ch
 a
dd
s 

to
 it
s 
in
te
re
st
, a
nd
 t
ha
t 
so
m
e 
ad
jo
in
in
g 

ar
ea
s 
of
 h
ou

si
ng
 s
ho

ul
d 
be
 in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 

th
e 
ar
ea
 t
o 
in
cr
ea
se
 it
s 
su
bs
ta
nc
e 
an
d 

va
lu
e.
 T
he
 r
an
ge
 in
cl
ud
es
 e
ar
ly
 1
9t
h 

ce
nt
ur
y 
ru
ra
l v
ill
as
, V

ic
to
ri
an
 d
et
ac
he
d 

an
d 
se
m
i-d

et
ac
he
d 
vi
lla
s, 
Vi
ct
or
ia
n 
tw

o,
 

th
re
e,
 fo

ur
 a
nd
 fi
ve
-s
to
re
y 
te
rr
ac
es
, 

19
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 m

ili
ta
ry
 h
ou

si
ng
, e
ar
ly
 

20
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 d
et
ac
he
d 
an
d 
se
m
i-

de
ta
ch
ed
 h
ou

si
ng
, a
nd
 e
ar
ly
 2
0t
h 

ce
nt
ur
y 
co
un
ci
l h
ou

si
ng
. 

4.
5 
 
Se
ve
ra
l a
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 t
o 
th
e 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
ar
e 
th
er
ef
or
e 

pr
op

os
ed
, a
nd
 a
re
 s
ho

w
n 
la
be
lle
d 
A
-H

 
on

 t
he
 m

ap
 o
ve
rl
ea
f. 

 

  

 

 
 

So
ut
he
rn
 e
nd
 o
f F
is
he
rg
at
e 
 (A

re
a 
A
) 

A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
  (
A
re
a 
B)
 

Page 54



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

10
 

 
 

Ex
is
tin

g 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n

A
re
a 
Bo

un
da
ry

Pr
op

os
ed
 E
xt
en
sio

ns
 t
o 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a

Page 55



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

11
 

A
 -
 S
ou

th
er

n 
en

d 
of
 F

is
he

rg
at

e 

4.
6 
  
Th

is
 in
cl
ud
es
 N

os
 8
9 
-1
01
 F
is
he
rg
at
e 

(o
n 
th
e 
ea
st
 s
id
e)
 a
nd
 N

os
 1
26
-1
52
 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
 (o

n 
th
e 
w
es
t s
id
e)
, w

hi
ch
 a
re
 

co
nt
in
uo

us
 c
ur
ve
d 
te
rr
ac
es
 o
f m

id
–l
at
e 

Vi
ct
or
ia
n 
ho

us
es
. T

he
 c
ur
ve
 le
ad
in
g 
ou

t 
of
 F
is
he
rg
at
e 
is 
a 
di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
fe
at
ur
e 
of
 

th
e 
ro
ad
 a
nd
 g
iv
es
 t
he
se
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 

pr
om

in
en
ce
 fr
om

 b
ot
h 
di
re
ct
io
ns
.  

4.
7 
 
W

hi
ls
t 
th
es
e 
ho

us
es
 a
re
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 m

an
y 

ot
he
rs
 o
f t
he
 s
am

e 
da
te
 in
 Y
or
k 
N
os
 8
9 

-1
01
 a
re
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
un
sp
oi
le
d 
an
d 
du
e 
to
 

th
ei
r 
cu
rv
ed
 la
yo
ut
 t
he
y 
ac
t 
as
 a
 v
isu

al
 

‘s
to
p’
 t
o 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
w
he
n 

lo
ok

in
g 
no

rt
hw

ar
ds
 a
lo
ng
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d.
 

N
os
 1
26
-1
52
 a
re
 v
is
ua
lly
 le
ss
 w
el
l 

re
la
te
d 
to
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
bu
t 
ar
e 

ne
ve
rt
he
le
ss
 p
re
se
nt
ab
le
 h
ou

se
s 
w
hi
ch
 

te
rm

in
at
e 
w
ith

 t
he
 P
ri
or
y 
H
ot
el
, a
 la
te
 

19
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 o
rn
at
e 
bu
ild
in
g 
w
ith

 g
oo

d 
qu
al
ity
 s
to
ne
 d
et
ai
lin
g.
  

4.
8 

Th
e 
ad
di
tio

n 
of
 N

os
 1
26
-1
52
 t
o 
th
e 

co
ns
er
va
tio

n 
ar
ea
 w
ou

ld
 c
lo
se
 a
 s
ho

rt
 

ga
p 
w
hi
ch
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 e
xi
st
s 
be
tw

ee
n 
th
e 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
an
d 

th
e 
N
ew

 W
al
k 
/ T

er
ry
 A
ve
nu
e 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
 o
n 
th
e 
w
es
t 
si
de
 o
f 

th
e 
m
ai
n 
hi
gh
w
ay
. 

B
 -
 A

lm
a 
G
ro

ve
 

4.
9 
 
Th

is
 in
cl
ud
es
 a
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
of
 3
0 

ho
us
es
 b
ui
lt 
by
 t
he
 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il 
in
 1
91
3 

an
d 
ar
ra
ng
ed
 a
ro
un
d 
th
re
e 
si
de
s 
of
 a
 

la
nd
sc
ap
ed
 o
pe
n 
sq
ua
re
. I
n 
a 
ci
ty
 n
ot
ed
 

fo
r 
its
 r
ol
e 
in
 s
oc
ia
l h
ou

sin
g 
pr
ov
isi
on

 
(e
sp
ec
ia
lly
 t
he
 Jo

se
ph
 R
ow

nt
re
e 

Fo
un
da
tio

n)
 t
hi
s 
is
 a
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
of
 

so
m
e 
so
ci
al
 in
te
re
st
.  

4.
10
 
Th

e 
w
es
te
rn
 s
id
e 
of
 t
he
 s
qu
ar
e 
is
 

en
cl
os
ed
 b
y 
A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e,
 w
hi
ch
 

m
os
tly
 c
on

si
st
s 
of
 u
ne
xc
ep
tio

na
l 

te
rr
ac
ed
 h
ou

si
ng
 b
ut
 w
hi
ch
 a
t 
th
is
 p
oi
nt
 

in
cl
ud
es
 a
 fo

rm
er
 la
te
 1
9t
h 
ce
nt
ur
y 

po
lic
e 
st
at
io
n,
 n
ow

 c
on

ve
rt
ed
 t
o 
a 

gu
es
t 
ho

us
e 
(‘C

op
pe
r’
s 
Lo

dg
e’
). 
Th

e 
bu
ild
in
g 
do

m
in
at
es
 t
he
 w
es
te
rn
 s
id
e 
of
 

th
e 
sq
ua
re
 a
nd
 is
 o
f s
om

e 
ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
 

an
d 
so
ci
al
 in
te
re
st
, b
ei
ng
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
al
ly
 

pl
ac
ed
 c
lo
se
 t
o 
th
e 
ar
m
y 
ba
rr
ac
ks
 a
nd
 

w
ha
t 
w
er
e 
th
en
 t
he
 le
ss
 s
al
ub
ri
ou

s 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l a
re
as
 n
ea
rb
y.
 

4.
11
 
It 
is
 c
on

si
de
re
d 
th
at
 t
he
 a
re
a 
ha
s 

su
ffi
ci
en
t 
ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
 a
nd
 s
oc
ia
l 

in
te
re
st
 t
o 
ju
st
ify
 it
s 
in
cl
us
io
n 
in
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a,
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 in
 

as
so
ci
at
io
n 
w
ith

 W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 (s
ee
 

C
 b
el
ow

). 
  

C
 -
 W

en
lo
ck

 T
er

ra
ce

 

4.
12
 
Th

is
 in
cl
ud
es
 t
he
 t
er
ra
ce
 o
f t
w
el
ve
 5
-

st
or
ey
 h
ou

se
s 
on

 t
he
 s
ou

th
 s
id
e 
of
 

W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 a
nd
 t
he
 fi
ve
 id
en
tic
al
 

ho
us
es
 o
n 
th
e 
no

rt
h 
si
de
. T

he
se
 a
re
 

ve
ry
 la
rg
e 
ho

us
es
, a
tt
ra
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 

in
di
vi
du
al
ly
 d
et
ai
le
d 
an
d 
un
iq
ue
 t
o 
Yo

rk
. 

Th
ey
 w
er
e 
bu
ilt
 s
pe
cu
la
tiv
el
y 
in
 t
he
 la
te
 

19
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 t
o 
ap
pe
al
 b
ot
h 
to
 t
he
 h
ig
h-

ra
nk
in
g 
of
fic
er
s 
of
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 

an
d 
th
e 
hi
gh
er
 s
oc
ia
l s
tr
at
a 
of
 t
he
 c
ity
’s
 

po
pu
la
ce
.  

4.
13
 
D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
ea
rl
y 
20
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 t
w
o 

ho
us
es
 in
 t
he
 s
ou

th
er
n 
te
rr
ac
e 
w
er
e 

co
m
bi
ne
d 
to
 c
re
at
e 
a 
so
ld
ie
rs
’ r
es
t 

ho
m
e,
 s
ho

w
n 
on

 t
he
 1
93
1 
O
S 
m
ap
, 

w
hi
ch
 h
as
 s
om

e 
im
po

rt
an
ce
 in
 m

ili
ta
ry
 / 

nu
rs
in
g 
hi
st
or
y.
  S
ta
bl
es
 fo

r 
th
e 
of
fic
er
s 

w
er
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 t
he
 s
ou

th
-w

es
t 

co
rn
er
, (
N
os
 1
-7
 T
he
 S
ta
bl
es
 in
 

A
m
br
os
e 
St
re
et
, s
in
ce
 c
on

ve
rt
ed
 m

ew
s 

fla
ts
) a

nd
 o
th
er
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 in
 t
he
 s
tr
ee
t 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
oc
cu
pi
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
m
ili
ta
ry
 a
t 

va
ri
ou

s 
tim

es
. 

Page 56



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

12
 

4.
14
 
Th

e 
ho

us
es
 in
 W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 a
re
 

ve
ry
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 a
n 
ad
ja
ce
nt
 t
er
ra
ce
 

fr
on

tin
g 
on

to
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 

in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
bu
t 

w
hi
ch
 c
om

pr
ise

s 
fla
ts
 o
ve
r 
sh
op

 u
ni
ts
 

ra
th
er
 t
ha
n 
fu
ll 
he
ig
ht
 d
w
el
lin
g 
ho

us
es
. 

Th
er
e 
is
 e
qu
al
 ju
st
ifi
ca
tio

n 
fo
r 
W

en
lo
ck
 

Te
rr
ac
e 
to
 b
e 
in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 t
he
 A
re
a,
 

to
ge
th
er
 w
ith

 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 s
ta
bl
es
.  

D
 -
 O

rd
na

nc
e 
L
an

e 

4.
15
 
Th

is
 in
cl
ud
es
 t
he
 e
as
te
rn
 p
ar
t 
of
 

O
rd
na
nc
e 
La
ne
 a
nd
 a
 lo

ng
 n
ar
ro
w
 s
ite

 
ru
nn
in
g 
al
on

gs
id
e 
co
nt
ai
ni
ng
 h
ou

se
s 
an
d 

fla
ts
 p
ro
ba
bl
y 
bu
ilt
 fo

r 
st
af
f o

f t
he
 

m
ili
ta
ry
 h
os
pi
ta
l w

hi
ch
 it
 a
dj
oi
ne
d 
(n
ow

 
th
e 
Sh
ep
he
rd
 C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
of
fic
e 
si
te
). 

Th
e 
bu
ild
in
gs
 t
o 
th
e 
re
ar
 h
av
e 
so
m
e 

qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 a
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
al
 in
te
re
st
, a
s 
w
el
l 

as
 s
om

e 
so
ci
al
 in
te
re
st
. T

he
 a
re
a 
w
ou

ld
 

no
t 
ju
st
ify
 c
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
 s
ta
tu
s 
in
 

is
ol
at
io
n 
bu
t 
in
 a
ss
oc
ia
tio

n 
w
ith

 t
he
 

W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 h
ou

si
ng
 it
 is
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 t
o 
ad
d 
fu
rt
he
r 
in
te
re
st
 a
nd
 

di
ve
rs
ity
, a
nd
 t
o 
ju
st
ify
 in
cl
us
io
n.
 

E
 -
 C

av
al
ry

 B
ar

ra
ck

s 
Si
te

 

4.
16
 
Th

e 
m
aj
or
ity
 o
f t
hi
s 
si
te
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

re
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 r
ec
en
t 
ye
ar
s,
 le
av
in
g 

on
ly
 t
he
 g
ua
rd
 r
oo

m
s 
on

 t
he
 fr
on

ta
ge
, 

an
d 
in
 p
la
ce
s 
no

th
in
g 
m
or
e 
th
an
 t
he
 

hi
gh
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
w
al
l. 
Th

e 
ex
is
tin

g 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
ex
te
nd
s 
ra
th
er
 

de
ep
er
 in
to
 t
he
 s
ite

 in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 

th
e 
m
at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
w
hi
ch
 a
dd
 s
tr
en
gt
h 
to
 

th
e 
fr
on

ta
ge
, b
ut
 t
he
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
is 

in
de
te
rm

in
at
e 
an
d 
ei
th
er
 c
ut
s 
th
ro
ug
h 

or
 e
xc
lu
de
s 
so
m
e 
cr
iti
ca
l t
re
es
.  

4.
17
 
It 
is
 c
on

si
de
re
d 
de
si
ra
bl
e 
to
 r
el
at
e 
th
e 

bo
un
da
ry
 t
o 
ex
is
tin

g 
si
te
 fe
at
ur
es
 (-
 t
he
 

in
te
rn
al
 r
oa
d 
la
yo
ut
 -)
 a
nd
 e
ns
ur
e 

in
cl
us
io
n 
of
 t
he
 c
ri
tic
al
 t
re
es
.  

4.
18
 
A
t 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
tim

e 
it 
is 
pr
op

os
ed
 t
ha
t 
th
e 

ne
w
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
be
 e
xt
en
de
d 
no

rt
hw

ar
ds
 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 A
rm

s 
ca
rp
ar
k 
an
d 

th
e 
re
ar
 o
f t
he
 C
hr
ist
ia
n 
Sc
ie
nc
e 

C
hu
rc
h 
at
 t
he
 c
or
ne
r 
of
 K
ilb
ur
n 
Ro

ad
. 

Th
e 
pu
rp
os
e 
is 
no

t 
to
 p
ro
te
ct
 t
he
 

ch
ur
ch
 b
ut
 t
o 
en
su
re
 g
re
at
er
 c
on

tr
ol
 

ov
er
 t
hi
s 
co
rn
er
 s
ite

, w
hi
ch
 m

ar
ks
 t
he
 

st
ar
t 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
on

 t
he
  

ea
st
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
an
d 
if 
ev
er
 

re
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
w
ou

ld
 r
eq
ui
re
 a
 b
ui
ld
in
g 

fo
rm

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w
ith

 t
he
 p
ub
lic
 h
ou

se
 

an
d 
ba
rr
ac
ks
 a
dj
oi
ni
ng
. C

on
se
nt
 fo

r 
re
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
ha
s 
re
ce
nt
ly
 b
ee
n 

gr
an
te
d 
w
hi
ch
 m

ee
ts
 t
hi
s 
re
qu
ir
em

en
t. 

F 
- 
Fr

on
ta

ge
 t
o 
H
os

pi
ta

l F
ie
ld
s 
 

4.
19
 
Th

is
 s
ite

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 

re
ce
nt
 y
ea
rs
 a
s 
of
fic
es
 fo

r 
Sh
ep
he
rd
 

C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n.
 It
 o
cc
ur
s 
at
 a
 p
oi
nt
 

w
he
re
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
is 
fr
ag
ile
, 

du
e 
to
 n
ew

 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
on

 b
ot
h 
si
de
s 

of
 t
he
 r
oa
d,
 a
nd
 w
he
re
 a
 fi
rm

 d
ef
in
iti
on

 
of
 t
he
 h
ig
hw

ay
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
is
 e
ss
en
tia
l. 

4.
20
 
A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 r
ed
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
a 
st
ro
ng
 

bo
un
da
ry
 w
al
l h
as
 b
ee
n 
pr
ov
id
ed
, 

ba
ck
ed
 b
y 
oc
ca
si
on

al
 t
re
es
: h
ow

ev
er
, 

th
es
e 
fe
at
ur
es
 li
e 
ou

ts
id
e 
th
e 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
bo

un
da
ry
, a
nd
 it
 is
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 d
es
ir
ab
le
 t
o 
pr
ot
ec
t 
th
em

 
by
 s
et
tin

g 
th
e 
bo

un
da
ry
 5
 m

et
re
s 

be
hi
nd
 t
he
 h
ig
hw

ay
 fr
on

ta
ge
. T

he
 

m
at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
fu
rt
he
r 
w
ith

in
 t
he
 s
ite

 a
re
 

al
re
ad
y 
pr
ot
ec
te
d 
by
 T
re
e 
Pr
es
er
va
tio

n 
O
rd
er
s. 

Page 57



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

13
 

G
 -
 F
ro

nt
ag

e 
to

 r
et

ai
l s

to
re

 
co

m
pl
ex

 

4.
21
 
Th

is
 s
ite

 (f
or
m
er
ly
 t
he
 t
ra
m
 d
ep
ot
) h

as
 

be
en
 d
ev
el
op

ed
 in
 r
ec
en
t 
ye
ar
s 
as
 r
et
ai
l 

ou
tle

ts
 a
ro
un
d 
tw

o 
si
de
s 
of
 a
 s
ho

pp
er
s’
 

ca
r 
pa
rk
. T

he
 o
ld
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
 is
 

lo
ca
te
d 
ju
st
 t
o 
on

e 
si
de
 o
f t
he
 c
ar
pa
rk
 

en
tr
an
ce
. T

he
 c
om

pl
ex
 is
 o
f m

od
er
n 

de
si
gn
, u
nr
el
at
ed
 t
o 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
a,
 a
nd
 h
as
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
sc
re
en
in
g 
fr
om

 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d.
 

4.
22
 
A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 r
ed
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
a 
tr
ee
 

sc
re
en
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
pr
ov
id
ed
, s
et
 w
ith

in
 

w
al
le
d 
sh
ru
bb
ed
 a
re
as
. H

ow
ev
er
, t
he
 

tr
ee
s 
lie
 o
ut
sid

e 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

bo
un
da
ry
 a
nd
 a
re
 u
np
ro
te
ct
ed
: i
n 

ad
di
tio

n,
 t
he
 e
xi
st
in
g 
bo

un
da
ry
 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ac
kn
ow

le
dg
e 
th
e 
cr
os
s 
an
d 
th
e 

ne
ed
 t
o 
co
nt
ro
l a
 z
on

e 
ar
ou

nd
 it
 t
o 

en
su
re
 a
 p
ro
pe
r 
se
tt
in
g.
 It
 is
 t
he
re
fo
re
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 d
es
ir
ab
le
 t
o 
pr
ot
ec
t 
th
e 

tr
ee
s 
an
d 
se
tt
in
g 
of
 t
he
 c
ro
ss
 b
y 
se
tt
in
g 

th
e 
bo

un
da
ry
 5
 m

et
re
s 
be
hi
nd
 t
he
 

hi
gh
w
ay
 fr
on

ta
ge
. 

H
 -
 D

er
w
en

t 
R
oa

d 
/ B

ro
ad

w
ay

 

4.
23
 
Tw

o 
m
in
or
 a
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
po

se
d 

in
 t
hi
s 
ar
ea
. A

t 
pr
es
en
t 
th
e 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
in
cl
ud
es
 N

o 
1a
 

D
er
w
en
t 
Ro

ad
, w

hi
ch
 is
 a
 m

od
er
n 

bu
ng
al
ow

 b
ui
lt 
to
 t
he
 r
ea
r 
of
 N

o 
14
5 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d.
 W

hi
ls
t 
it 
st
an
ds
 in
 t
he
 

re
ar
 p
ar
t 
of
 w
ha
t 
w
as
 h
ist
or
ic
al
ly
 o
ne
 

pl
ot
 it
 is
 n
ow

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t 
an
d 
ou

t 
of
 

ch
ar
ac
te
r 
w
ith

 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

an
d 
th
e 
bo

un
da
ry
 o
ug
ht
 to

 b
e 
ad
ju
st
ed
 

to
 e
xc
lu
de
 it
. 

4.
24
 
A
t 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
tim

e 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
a 
ex
cl
ud
es
 t
he
 o
ri
gi
na
l h
ou

se
 N

o 
15
1 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
(‘B

ro
ad
w
ay
 L
od

ge
’),
 

at
 t
he
 c
or
ne
r 
w
ith

 B
ro
ad
w
ay
, w

hi
ch
 is
 a
 

sy
m
m
et
ri
ca
lly
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
an
d 
pr
es
en
ta
bl
e 

de
ta
ch
ed
 h
ou

se
 o
f t
he
 1
93
0’
s:
 it
 a
lso

 
oc
cu
pi
es
 a
 c
on

sp
ic
uo

us
 c
or
ne
r 
si
te
 a
t 

th
e 
en
tr
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
 

It 
is
 t
he
re
fo
re
 c
on

si
de
re
d 
de
si
ra
bl
e 
to
 

in
cl
ud
e 
th
is
 h
ou

se
 (a

nd
 o
f n

ec
es
si
ty
 N

o 
14
9)
 in
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
 N

o 
15
1 

ha
s 
be
en
 e
xt
en
de
d 
in
 r
ec
en
t 
ye
ar
s 
to
 

in
cl
ud
e 
N
os
 1
-3
 B
ro
ad
w
ay
, b
ut
 it
 w
ou

ld
 

no
t 
be
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
th
em

 in
 

th
e 
A
re
a.
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
  (
A
re
a 
C
 ) 

Re
ta
il 
co
m
pl
ex
 fr
on

ta
ge
  (
A
re
a 
G
) 

Page 58



5 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 C

H
A
R
A
C
T
E
R
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

14
 

5.
1 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 a
 la
rg
e 
sc
al
e 
ro
ad
 w
hi
ch
 

le
ad
s 
ou

t 
of
 t
he
 c
ity
 c
en
tr
e 
w
ith

 a
 g
re
at
 

se
ns
e 
of
 p
ur
po

se
. A

s 
a 
m
aj
or
 r
ou

te
 t
o 

an
d 
fr
om

 t
he
 c
ity
 c
en
tr
e 
si
nc
e 

m
ed
ia
ev
al
 t
im
es
 it
 h
as
 a
tt
ra
ct
ed
 d
iv
er
se
 

us
es
 w
hi
ch
 fo

r 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
re
as
on

s 
ha
ve
 

re
qu
ir
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
on

e 
ha
nd
 p
ro
xi
m
ity
 t
o 

th
e 
ci
ty
 c
en
tr
e 
an
d 
on

 t
he
 o
th
er
 h
an
d 

ea
se
 o
f d

ep
ar
tu
re
 t
o 
ot
he
r 
pa
rt
s 
of
 t
he
 

co
un
tr
y,
 o
r 
sp
ac
e,
 o
r 
am

en
ity
. 

5.
2 

Its
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
en
es
s 
as
 a
 r
es
id
en
tia
l a
re
a 

be
tw

ee
n 
th
e 
ci
ty
 c
en
tr
e 
an
d 
Fu
lfo
rd
 h
as
 

be
en
 lo

ng
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 
an
d 
ha
s 
re
su
lte

d 
in
 a
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 o
f h

ou
si
ng
 r
an
gi
ng
 fr
om

 
la
rg
e 
ea
rl
y 
19

th
 c
en
tu
ry
 s
em

i-r
ur
al
 v
ill
as
 

to
 d
en
se
ly
 p
la
nn
ed
 V
ic
to
ri
an
 t
er
ra
ce
s 

an
d 
m
id
-w

ar
 h
ou

sin
g 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
. 

Th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
va
lu
e 
of
 t
he
 a
re
a 
is
 

re
fle
ct
ed
 in
 t
he
 h
ig
h 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 h
ot
el
s 

an
d 
gu
es
t 
ho

us
es
, i
n 
co
m
m
on

 w
ith

 
ot
he
r 
m
aj
or
 r
ad
ia
l r
ou

te
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
th
e 

A
10
36
 fu

rt
he
r 
w
es
t. 

5.
3 

H
ow

ev
er
, u
nl
ik
e 
th
e 
ot
he
r 
m
ai
n 
ra
di
al
 

ro
ut
es
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
m
os
tly
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
th
ei
r 

ba
si
c 
su
bu
rb
an
 r
es
id
en
tia
l c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
r 

w
hi
ch
 fo

llo
w
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
st
ra
ys
 in
to
 t
he
 

ci
ty
, t
he
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
f t
he
 r
oa
d 
ha
s 
be
en
 

gr
ea
tly
 d
ic
ta
te
d 
by
 t
he
 C
av
al
ry
 a
nd
 

In
fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
bu
ilt
 in
 th

e 
la
te
 1
8t

h  
an
d 
19

th
 c
en
tu
ri
es
. T

he
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
ha
ve
 in
 

tu
rn
 a
tt
ra
ct
ed
 o
th
er
 s
pe
ci
fic
 fo

rm
s 
of
 

us
e 
an
d 
ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
e 
w
hi
ch
 d
o 
no

t 
ap
pe
ar
 e
lse

w
he
re
 in
 t
he
 c
ity
.  
 

5.
4 

A
s 
a 
co
ns
eq
ue
nc
e 
th
e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
ha
s 
a 
m
or
e 

fu
nc
tio

na
l a
nd
 p
ur
po

se
fu
l a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 

th
an
 e
qu
iv
al
en
t 
ro
ut
es
 in
to
 t
he
 c
ity
 

ce
nt
re
. I
t 
ha
s 
a 
di
ve
rs
e 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 
w
hi
ch
 

ch
an
ge
s 
al
on

g 
its
 le
ng
th
, m

ak
in
g 
it 

di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 g
en
er
al
ise

 o
th
er
 t
ha
n 
to
 

de
sc
ri
be
 it
 a
s 
lin
in
g 
a 
la
rg
e 
sc
al
e 
an
d 

ve
ry
 b
us
y 
ra
di
al
 r
ou

te
, t
he
 h
ig
hw

ay
 it
se
lf 

be
in
g 
of
 g
en
er
ou

s 
w
id
th
 a
nd
 e
nh
an
ce
d 

by
 b
ro
ad
 la
nd
sc
ap
ed
 v
er
ge
s 
an
d 
th
e 

m
at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
w
hi
ch
 li
ne
 m

os
t 
of
 t
he
 

ea
st
er
n 
si
de
. 

5.
5 

A
 u
se
fu
l w

ay
 o
f a
pp
ra
isi
ng
 t
he
 a
re
a 
is 
to
 

re
ga
rd
 it
 a
s 
co
m
pr
isi
ng
 4
 s
ec
tio

ns
 

tr
av
el
lin
g 
no

rt
h 
to
 s
ou

th
 v
iz
: 

Fi
sh

er
ga

te
 t
o 
A
lm

a 
T
er

ra
ce

, w
hi
ch
 

is
 p
ri
m
ar
ily
 r
es
id
en
tia
l i
n 
ch
ar
ac
te
r;
 

A
lm

a 
T
er

ra
ce

 t
o 
H
os

pi
ta

l F
ie
ld
s 

R
oa

d 
- t
he
 fo

rm
er
 C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
et
c 

(T
he
se
 t
w
o 
se
ct
io
ns
 c
om

pr
is
e 
th
e 

N
or
th
er
n 
A
re
a 
de
sc
ri
be
d 
in
 S
ec
tio

n 
6)
 

 H
os

pi
ta

l F
ie
ld
s 
R
oa

d 
to

 F
ul
fo
rd

 
C
ro

ss
 - 
th
e 
In
fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s; 
an
d 

 
 F
ul
fo
rd

 C
ro

ss
 t
o 
St

 O
sw

al
d’
s 

R
oa

d,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 r
es
id
en
tia
l i
n 
ch
ar
ac
te
r. 

(T
he
se
 t
w
o 
se
ct
io
ns
 c
om

pr
is
e 
th
e 

So
ut
he
rn
 A
re
a 
de
sc
ri
be
d 
in
 S
ec
tio

n 
7.
0)
 

 
 

Page 59



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

15
 

 
 

M
ap
 s
ho

w
in
g 
vi
su
al
ly
 p
ro
m
in
en
t 
tr
ee
s 

Page 60



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

16
 

M
ap
 s
ho

w
in
g 
bu
ild
in
g 
us
es
 

R
es
id
en
tia
l

R
et
ai
l /
 O

ffi
ce

Le
is
ur
e 
an
d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

n

Pl
ac
es
 o
f w

or
sh
ip

M
ed
ic
al
 / 
H
ea
lth

 S
er
vi
ce
s

M
ili
ta
ry

Page 61



6 
T
H
E
 N

O
R
T
H
E
R
N
 A

R
E
A
 

(s
ee
 p
la
n 
pa
ge
 2
2)
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

17
 

Fi
sh

er
ga

te
 t
o 
A
lm

a 
T
er

ra
ce

 

6.
1 

Th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
be
gi
ns
 w
ith

 t
he
 

Pr
io
ry
 H
ot
el
 o
n 
th
e 
w
es
t 
si
de
 o
f 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
, w

hi
ch
 a
pp
ea
rs
 t
o 
co
m
pr
is
e 

tw
o 
la
rg
e 
or
ig
in
al
 h
ou

se
s 
bu
ilt
 in
 1
87
5.
 

Th
ey
 a
re
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
an
d 

di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
du
e 
to
 t
he
ir
 o
ge
e 
ga
bl
es
, 

po
ly
ch
ro
m
e 
br
ic
kw

or
k,
 d
ec
or
at
iv
e 

st
on

e 
dr
es
si
ng
s,
 a
nd
 o
rn
at
e 
gr
ou

nd
 

flo
or
 b
ay
 w
in
do

w
s. 

6.
2 

Th
e 
re
m
ai
nd
er
 o
f F
is
he
rg
at
e 
is
 li
ne
d 
by
 

op
po

si
ng
 t
er
ra
ce
s 
of
 m

id
 V
ic
to
ri
an
 

ho
us
es
, t
ho

se
 t
o 
th
e 
w
es
t 
se
t 
be
hi
nd
 

at
tr
ac
tiv
e 
w
al
le
d 
an
d 
ra
ile
d 
ga
rd
en
s.
 

Th
ey
 a
re
 t
yp
ic
al
 o
f Y

or
k 
fo
r 
th
ei
r 
ag
e,
 

ha
vi
ng
 d
ec
or
at
iv
e 
do

or
 s
ur
ro
un
ds
, b
ay
 

w
in
do

w
s,
 e
av
es
 d
et
ai
ls
 a
nd
 b
ri
ck
w
or
k,
 

bu
t 
th
ey
 a
re
 u
nu
su
al
 in
 b
ei
ng
 c
ur
ve
d 
to
 

fo
llo
w
 t
he
 s
w
ee
p 
of
 t
he
 r
oa
d,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 a
 

di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
fe
at
ur
e 
of
 t
he
 to

w
ns
ca
pe
, 

an
d 
th
ei
r 
ro
of
s 
ar
e 
st
ill
 u
ni
nt
er
ru
pt
ed
 

by
 la
te
r 
do

rm
er
s. 
Th

e 
ea
st
er
n 
bl
oc
k 

he
lp
s 
to
 fo

rm
 a
 v
is
ua
l ‘
st
op

’ t
o 
Fu
lfo
rd
 

Ro
ad
 w
he
n 
lo
ok

in
g 
no

rt
h.
 T
he
 

sh
op

fr
on

t 
an
d 
fo
re
co
ur
t 
to
 N

o 
15
2 
at
 

th
e 
co
rn
er
 o
f G

ra
ng
e 
St
re
et
 a
re
 r
at
he
r 

al
ie
n 
an
d 
co
ul
d 
be
ne
fit
 fr
om

 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t. 

6.
3 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
 is
 jo

in
ed
 b
y 
C
em

et
er
y 
Ro

ad
 

to
 b
ec
om

e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d,
 w
ith

 t
he
 

G
ra
de
 ll
 li
st
ed
 C
on

se
rv
at
iv
e 
C
lu
b 
in
 

be
tw

ee
n,
 fa
ci
ng
 a
 w
al
le
d 
am

en
ity
 a
re
a 

w
he
re
 t
he
 r
oa
ds
 m

ee
t. 
Th

e 
C
lu
b 
w
as
 

bu
ilt
 a
s 
a 
ho

us
e 
ar
ou

nd
 1
81
0,
 s
ta
nd
in
g 

in
 is
ol
at
io
n:
 it
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
al
te
re
d 
by
 la
te
r 

ba
y 
w
in
do

w
s 
an
d 
m
ar
re
d 
by
 m

od
er
n 

w
in
do

w
s 
bu
t 
it 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 v
is
ua
l ‘
st
op

’ 
to
 t
he
 n
or
th
 e
nd
 o
f F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d,
 

to
ge
th
er
 w
ith

 t
he
 t
re
es
 in
 t
he
 a
m
en
ity
 

ar
ea
. 

6.
4 

Tr
av
el
lin
g 
so
ut
hw

ar
ds
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 

qu
ic
kl
y 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
as
 a
 w
id
e,
 b
us
y 
ro
ad
 

w
ith

 h
ou

se
s 
on

 e
ith

er
 s
id
e.
 T
ho

se
 t
o 

th
e 
ea
st
 c
om

pr
ise

 1
93
0’
s 
ho

us
in
g 
w
hi
ch
 

is
 o
ut
si
de
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
bu
t 

th
os
e 
to
 t
he
 w
es
t 
co
m
pr
is
e 
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
l 

de
ta
ch
ed
 a
nd
 s
em

i-d
et
ac
he
d 
vi
lla
s 
in
 

sp
ac
io
us
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
ga
rd
en
s 
fr
on

te
d 
by
 

de
co
ra
tiv
e 
ir
on

 g
at
es
 a
nd
 r
ai
lin
gs
. T

he
y 

ar
e 
sim

ila
r 
to
 t
ho

se
 in
 F
ish

er
ga
te
 b
ut
 o
f 

la
rg
er
 s
iz
e 
an
d 
hi
gh
er
 s
ta
tu
s.
 S
om

e 
ha
ve
 

ch
ar
m
in
g 
or
 in
te
re
st
in
g 
de
ta
ils
 s
uc
h 
as
 

se
m
i-c
ir
cu
la
r 
he
ad
ed
 d
or
m
er
 w
in
do

w
s 

or
 r
oo

f t
ur
re
ts
. N

os
 1
56
 -1

58
 a
re
 

la
rg
er
 s
ca
le
 h
ou

se
s 
in
 y
el
lo
w
 b
ri
ck
 

de
co
ra
te
d 
w
ith

 p
ol
yc
hr
om

e 
an
d 

m
ou

ld
ed
 b
ri
ck
, d
ec
or
at
iv
e 
pa
ne
ls
 a
nd
 

de
co
ra
tiv
e 
do

rm
er
 w
in
do

w
s.
  

 

 

 

 
 

Pr
io
ry
 H
ot
el
, F
ish

er
ga
te
 

Vi
ct
or
ia
 V
ill
a,
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 

Page 62



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

18
 

6.
5 

Th
e 
vi
lla
s 
ar
e 
fo
llo
w
ed
 b
y 
a 
la
rg
e 
va
ca
nt
 

si
te
 w
hi
ch
 r
eq
ui
re
s 
se
ns
iti
ve
 in
fil
l. 

Be
yo
nd
 a
re
 t
w
o 
se
m
i-d

et
ac
he
d 
G
ra
de
 ll
 

Li
st
ed
 h
ou

se
s 
no

w
 c
om

bi
ne
d 
fo
r 
of
fic
e 

us
e 
(L
in
by
 H
ou

se
): 
N
o 
18
2 
w
as
 b
ui
lt 
in
 

th
e 
18
50
’s
, w

ith
 it
s 
sy
m
m
et
ri
ca
l f
ro
nt
 

fa
ça
de
 a
nd
 c
la
ss
ic
al
 p
or
ch
 c
ur
io
us
ly
 

fa
ci
ng
 s
ou

th
, s
id
ew

ay
s 
to
 t
he
 r
oa
d:
 N

o 
18
0 
w
as
 a
dd
ed
 t
o 
th
e 
re
ar
 in
 t
he
 e
ar
ly
 

20
th
 c
en
tu
ry
. T

he
y 
ar
e 
fr
on

te
d 
by
 

m
at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
w
hi
ch
 b
ec
om

e 
m
or
e 

ch
ar
ac
te
ri
st
ic
 o
f t
he
 A
re
a 
m
ov
in
g 

so
ut
hw

ar
ds
.  

6.
6 

Th
is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
fin
is
he
s 

w
ith

 t
he
 A
rn
cl
iff
e 
M
ew

s 
re
tir
em

en
t 

ho
m
e 
at
 t
he
 c
or
ne
r 
of
 A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e.
 

A
lth

ou
gh
 la
rg
e 
in
 m

as
s, 
an
d 
of
 m

od
er
n 

de
si
gn
, i
ts
 s
ca
le
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
du
ce
d 
by
 

ca
re
fu
l m

as
sin

g 
to
 fi
t 
in
 w
ith

 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
an
d 
pr
ev
en
t 
it 
fr
om

 
be
in
g 
to
o 
ob

tr
us
iv
e.
 

6.
7 

Th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
m
ak
es
 a
 d
et
ou

r 
al
on

g 
A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e,
 w
hi
ch
 o
n 
th
e 
so
ut
h 

si
de
 c
on

sis
ts
 o
f a
 t
er
ra
ce
 o
f s
ta
nd
ar
d 

ye
llo
w
 b
ri
ck
 h
ou

se
s 
ty
pi
ca
l o

f l
at
e 

Vi
ct
or
ia
n 
Yo

rk
. T

he
 p
ur
po

se
 o
f t
he
 

de
to
ur
 is
 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
, w

hi
ch
 

is
 a
 c
om

pl
ex
 o
f 3

0 
ho

us
es
 b
ui
lt 
in
 1
91
3 

ar
ou

nd
 t
hr
ee
 s
id
es
 o
f a
 la
nd
sc
ap
ed
 a
re
a.
 

Th
es
e 
ar
e 
th
e 
fir
st
 C
ou

nc
il 
ho

us
es
 t
o 

be
 b
ui
lt 
in
 t
he
 c
ity
, o

ri
gi
na
lly
 p
la
nn
ed
 t
o 

su
rr
ou

nd
 a
 b
ow

lin
g 
gr
ee
n 
w
hi
ch
 d
id
 n
ot
 

m
at
er
ia
lis
e.
 M

an
y 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
al
te
re
d 

ov
er
 t
im
e 
an
d 
w
ith

 s
al
e 
to
 t
he
ir
 t
en
an
ts
 

bu
t 
th
ei
r 
ba
si
c 
fo
rm

 is
 u
nc
ha
ng
ed
. 

6.
8 

A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
 is
 g
iv
en
 a
dd
ed
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 b
y 

th
e 
fo
rm

er
 p
ol
ic
e 
st
at
io
n 
‘C
op

pe
rs
 

Lo
dg
e’
 fa
ci
ng
 in
to
 t
he
 s
qu
ar
e 
fr
om

 A
lm
a 

Te
rr
ac
e.
 T
hi
s 
la
te
 1
9t
h 
ce
nt
ur
y 
so
lid
 

re
d 
br
ic
k 
bu
ild
in
g,
 w
ith

 it
s 
ne
ar
 

sy
m
m
et
ry
, d
ec
or
at
iv
e 
ch
im
ne
ys
 a
nd
 

ar
ch
ed
 w
in
do

w
s,
 w
as
 b
ui
lt 
he
re
 t
o 

m
ai
nt
ai
n 
or
de
r 
in
 t
he
 t
er
ra
ce
d 
ho

us
in
g 

sp
re
ad
in
g 
ou

t 
fr
om

 t
he
 c
ity
 c
en
tr
e 
an
d 

of
fe
ri
ng
 c
on

ve
ni
en
t 
di
st
ra
ct
io
ns
 fo

r 
so
ld
ie
rs
 fr
om

 t
he
 b
ar
ra
ck
s.
 A
 s
he
d 
to
 

th
e 
re
ar
 a
pp
ea
rs
 t
o 
be
 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 

po
lic
e 
st
ab
le
 r
ec
or
de
d 
as
 b
ei
ng
 h
er
e.
 

6.
9 

Th
e 
la
ne
 b
eh
in
d 
A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e 
is
 o
ne
 o
f 

a 
de
cr
ea
si
ng
 n
um

be
r 
of
 la
ne
s 
st
ill
 p
av
ed
 

in
 d
ec
or
at
iv
e 
bl
ue
 V
ic
to
ri
an
 p
av
io
ur
s 

m
ad
e 
fr
om

 fu
rn
ac
e 
sla

g,
 a
nd
 h
as
 

su
rv
iv
ed
 m

uc
h 
as
 it
 w
as
 w
he
n 
fir
st
 la
id
.  
 

6.
10
 
Th

is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

is
 p
ri
m
ar
ily
 o
f a
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
al
 a
nd
 

to
w
ns
ca
pe
 in
te
re
st
, b
ut
 w
ith

 a
 d
eg
re
e 

of
 s
oc
ia
l i
nt
er
es
t. 

 

  

 

 
 

“C
op

pe
rs
 L
od

ge
” 
(o
ld
 p
ol
ic
e 
st
at
io
n)
 

A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
 1
91
3 
C
ou

nc
il 
ho

us
es
 

Page 63



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly

A
lm

a 
T
er

ra
ce

 t
o 
H
os

pi
ta

l F
ie
ld
s 

R
oa

d 

6.
11
 
A
lm
a 
Te

rr
ac
e 
m
ar
ks
 a
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
po

in
t 
in
 

th
e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a,
 w
he
re
 t
he
 

pr
ed
om

in
an
tly
 r
es
id
en
tia
l c
ha
ra
ct
er
 s
o 

fa
r 
is 
ov
er
ta
ke
n 
by
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 

es
ta
bl
is
hm

en
ts
 t
o 
th
e 
so
ut
h.
 T
he
 la
te
 

18
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
an
d 
its
 

as
so
ci
at
ed
 n
ur
se
ry
 g
ar
de
n 
w
hi
ch
 o
nc
e 

do
m
in
at
ed
 t
he
 e
as
t 
si
de
 o
f t
he
 r
oa
d 

ha
ve
 n
ow

 la
rg
el
y 
di
sa
pp
ea
re
d 
le
av
in
g 

on
ly
 t
he
 la
te
r 
gu
ar
d 
ho

us
es
 a
nd
 w
al
ls 
on

 
th
e 
fr
on

ta
ge
, b
ut
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 in
flu
en
ce
 

is
 s
til
l t
an
gi
bl
e.
 

6.
12
 
Th

e 
m
ai
n 
en
tr
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 h
as
 

un
fo
rt
un
at
el
y 
be
en
 c
lo
se
d 
up
 w
ith

 a
 

br
ic
k 
w
al
l b
ut
 t
he
 la
te
 1
9t
h 
ce
nt
ur
y 

gu
ar
dr
oo

m
s 
ei
th
er
 s
id
e 
su
rv
iv
e 
an
d 
ar
e 

di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
du
e 
th
ei
r 
fo
rm

al
 p
ed
im
en
ts
 

an
d 
th
ei
r 
po

ly
ch
ro
m
e 
br
ic
k 
an
d 
st
on

e 
de
ta
ili
ng
: t
he
 le
ad
 c
la
d 
tu
rr
et
 b
eh
in
d 
th
e 

no
rt
he
rn
 g
ua
rd
 h
ou

se
 is
 a
n 
at
tr
ac
tiv
e 

fe
at
ur
e,
 a
nd
 t
he
 s
m
al
l b
ar
re
d 
w
in
do

w
s 

in
 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 c
el
ls
 a
re
 e
vi
de
nc
e 
of
 t
he
ir
 

se
cu
ri
ty
 r
ol
e.
 T
he
 m

at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
be
hi
nd
 

th
e 
gu
ar
dr
oo

m
s 
an
d 
bo

un
da
ry
 w
al
ls
 a
dd
 

st
re
ng
th
 t
o 
th
is
 s
id
e 
of
 th

e 
ro
ad
. 

Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

6.
13
 
W

ith
in
 t
he
 s
ite

 n
ot
hi
ng
 o
f t
he
 o
ri
gi
na
l 

Ba
rr
ac
ks
 s
ur
vi
ve
s,
 a
lth

ou
gh
 t
he
 la
rg
e 

an
d 
de
co
ra
tiv
e 
‘C
oa
de
 s
to
ne
’ c
oa
t 
of
 

ar
m
s 
w
hi
ch
 o
ri
gi
na
lly
 a
do

rn
ed
 t
he
 fr
on

t 
of
 t
he
 1
79
6 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 M

es
s 
w
as
 

re
lo
ca
te
d 
to
 t
he
 In

fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
in
 

19
70
 a
nd
 r
e-
di
sp
la
ye
d 
ea
st
 o
f t
he
 

pa
ra
de
 g
ro
un
d,
 o
ut
si
de
 th

e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
 

6.
14
 
Th

e 
Fu
lfo
rd
 A
rm

s 
pu
bl
ic
 h
ou

se
 ju
st
 

no
rt
h 
of
 t
he
 b
ar
ra
ck
s 
si
te
 - 
or
ig
in
al
ly
 

th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 T
av
er
n)
 is
 o
f s
om

e 
hi
st
or
ic
al
 a
nd
 s
oc
ia
l i
nt
er
es
t, 
ha
vi
ng
 

se
rv
ed
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 s
in
ce
 it
 w
as
 b
ui
lt 

ar
ou

nd
 1
83
0.
 T
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

bo
un
da
ry
 p
as
se
s 
be
hi
nd
 th

e 
pu
bl
ic
 

ho
us
e 
an
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
re
ar
 o
f t
he
 

C
hr
is
tia
n 
Sc
ie
nc
e 
ch
ur
ch
 a
t 
th
e 
co
rn
er
 

of
 K
ilb
ur
n 
Ro

ad
: t
hi
s 
is
 n
ot
 in
te
nd
ed
 t
o 

pr
ot
ec
t 
th
e 
ch
ur
ch
 p
er
 s
e 
(w

hi
ch
 is
 o
f 

ne
ut
ra
l v
al
ue
 t
o 
th
e 
ar
ea
) b

ut
 t
o 
en
su
re
 

th
at
 a
ny
 r
ed
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
is
 c
om

pa
tib

le
 

w
ith

 t
he
 A
re
a 
an
d 
re
la
te
s 
to
 t
he
 p
ub
lic
 

ho
us
e 
ad
jo
in
in
g.
 

   

19
   

 

C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s,
 fo

rm
er
 e
nt
ra
nc
e 

C
oa
de
 s
to
ne
 c
oa
t 
of
 a
rm

s 

Page 64



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

20
 

6.
15
 
O
n 
th
e 
w
es
t 
si
de
 o
f t
he
 r
oa
d 
th
e 
G
ra
de
 

ll 
Li
st
ed
 H
ol
ly
 L
od

ge
 g
ue
st
 h
ou

se
 w
as
 

bu
ilt
 in
 t
he
 m

id
 1
9t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 t
og
et
he
r 

w
ith

 t
w
o 
ad
jo
in
in
g 
co
tt
ag
es
 (N

os
 2
00
-

20
2 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d)
 w
ith

 o
rn
at
e 
tim

be
r 

po
rc
he
s.
 It
 s
ee
m
s 
lik
el
y 
th
at
 t
he
y 
w
er
e 

bu
ilt
 fo

r 
th
e 
ow

ne
r 
an
d 
w
or
ke
rs
 o
f a
 

la
rg
e 
nu
rs
er
y 
on

 t
he
 s
ite

, n
o 
do

ub
t 

se
rv
in
g 
th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 a
s 
m
ili
ta
ry
 d
em

an
d 

be
ga
n 
to
 e
xc
ee
d 
su
pp
ly
. H

ol
ly
 L
od

ge
 is
 

of
 c
la
ss
ic
al
 v
er
na
cu
la
r 
de
si
gn
 w
hi
lst
 t
he
 

co
tt
ag
es
 h
av
e 
a 
se
m
i-r
ur
al
 c
ha
rm

 w
hi
ch
 

is
 u
nu
su
al
 fo

r 
th
is 
co
nt
ex
t. 

6.
16
 
H
ol
ly
 C
ro
ft,
 n
ow

 a
cc
es
se
d 
fr
om

 
W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
, i
s 
an
ot
he
r 
la
rg
e 

cl
as
si
ca
l v
er
na
cu
la
r 
ho

us
e 
bu
ilt
 in
 t
he
 

18
50
’s
 b
eh
in
d 
H
ol
ly
 L
od

ge
. A

lth
ou

gh
 

bu
ilt
 fo

r 
a 
pr
iv
at
e 
bu
sin

es
sm

an
 it
 w
as
 

ow
ne
d 
by
 t
he
 a
rm

y 
th
ro
ug
ho

ut
 m

os
t 
of
 

th
e 
20

th
 c
en
tu
ry
, a
t 
on

e 
tim

e 
ho

us
in
g 

th
e 
C
om

m
an
d 
Pa
ym

as
te
r.
 

6.
17
 
Th

e 
co
m
bi
na
tio

n 
of
 H
ol
ly
 C
ro
ft,
 H
ol
ly
 

Lo
dg
e 
an
d 
th
e 
ad
jo
in
in
g 
co
tt
ag
es
, 

to
ge
th
er
 w
ith

 t
he
 h
ig
h 
w
al
ls
 b
ou

nd
in
g 

th
e 
m
ai
n 
ho

us
es
 a
nd
 t
he
 m

at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 

ne
ar
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d,
 m

ak
e 
an
 in
te
re
st
in
g 

an
d 
at
tr
ac
tiv
e 
co
nt
ri
bu
tio

n 
to
 t
he
 A
re
a.
 

6.
18
 
W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 w
as
 la
id
 o
ut
 a
nd
 b
ui
lt 

in
 1
88
2-
3 
an
d 
is
 q
ui
te
 e
xc
ep
tio

na
l i
n 

Yo
rk
. I
t 
co
m
pr
is
es
 a
 t
er
ra
ce
 o
f 1

2 
m
as
si
ve
 h
ou

se
s 
on

 t
he
 s
ou

th
 s
id
e 
an
d 
a 

te
rr
ac
e 
of
 4
 s
im
ila
r 
ho

us
es
 o
n 
th
e 
no

rt
h 

si
de
, e
ac
h 
ho

us
e 
be
in
g 
5 
st
or
ey
s 
hi
gh
 

w
ith

 fa
m
ily
 r
oo

m
s 
on

 t
hr
ee
 fl
oo

rs
 a
nd
 

se
rv
an
ts
 r
oo

m
s 
in
 t
he
 b
as
em

en
ts
 a
nd
 

at
tic
s.
 T
he
y 
ar
e 
bo

ld
ly
 m

od
el
le
d 
w
ith

 
tu
rr
et
ed
 b
ay
 w
in
do

w
s,
 a
nd
 o
rn
am

en
te
d 

w
ith

 p
ol
yc
hr
om

e 
br
ic
k 
an
d 
st
on

e 
dr
es
sin

gs
: t
he
 G
ot
hi
c 
st
yl
e 
do

or
w
ay
s 

ha
ve
 s
to
ne
 c
ol
um

ns
 a
nd
 la
be
ls
, n
ea
rl
y 
al
l 

th
e 
de
ta
ils
 b
ei
ng
 o
f a
 d
iff
er
en
t 
de
si
gn
. 

Th
e 
bl
oc
k 
fa
ci
ng
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 s
im
ila
r 

bu
t 
co
nt
ai
ns
 fl
at
s 
ov
er
 a
 r
ow

 o
f s
ho

ps
. 

6.
19
 
W

he
n 
fir
st
 b
ui
lt 
W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 w
as
 

on
e 
of
 t
he
 m

os
t 
pr
es
tig
io
us
 a
dd
re
ss
es
 

in
 t
he
 c
ity
, b
ui
lt 
to
 h
ou

se
 h
ig
h 
ra
nk
in
g 

ar
m
y 
pe
rs
on

ne
l a
nd
 t
he
 to

p 
st
ra
ta
 o
f 

Yo
rk
 s
oc
ie
ty
. A

t 
th
e 
w
es
te
rn
 e
nd
, i
n 

A
m
br
os
e 
St
re
et
, a
re
 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 s
ta
bl
es
 

fo
r 
th
e 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 r
ec
en
tly
 c
on

ve
rt
ed
 t
o 

m
ew

s-
ty
pe
 fl
at
s 
an
d 
ho

us
es
 b
ut
 

re
ta
in
in
g 
m
uc
h 
of
 t
he
ir
 o
ri
gi
na
l 

ch
ar
ac
te
r 
an
d 
de
ta
ili
ng
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 t
he
 

‘ta
ki
ng
 in
‘ d
oo

r 
at
 lo

ft 
le
ve
l. 
M
os
t 
of
 t
he
 

or
ig
in
al
 g
as
 li
gh
ts
 in
 W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 

st
ill
 s
ur
vi
ve
, c
on

ve
rt
ed
 to

 e
le
ct
ri
ci
ty
. 

 

  

 

 
 

H
ol
ly
 L
od

ge
 

H
ol
ly
 C
ro
ft 

Page 65



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

21
 

6.
20
 
Th

e 
sh
or
t 
bl
oc
k 
of
 fo

ur
 h
ou

se
s 
on

 t
he
 

no
rt
h 
si
de
 o
f W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 is
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t 
in
 m

ili
ta
ry
 h
ist
or
y 

as
 b
ei
ng
 a
 S
ol
di
er
s 
H
om

e 
du
ri
ng
 t
he
 

Fi
rs
t 
an
d 
Se
co
nd
 W

or
ld
 W

ar
s.
 T
he
 

ho
m
e 
fo
un
de
d 
by
 M

is
s 
M
ab
el
 C
am

pb
el
l-

W
al
ke
r,
 r
ef
er
re
d 
to
 a
s 
th
e 
‘F
lo
re
nc
e 

N
ig
ht
in
ga
le
 o
f t
he
 T
w
en
tie
th
 C
en
tu
ry
’, 

w
ho

 r
an
 it
 w
ith

 a
 b
an
d 
of
 v
ol
un
te
er
s 
as
 

a 
re
st
 h
om

e 
w
he
re
 s
ol
di
er
s 
co
ul
d 
fin
d 

sh
el
te
r,
 e
nt
er
ta
in
m
en
t 
an
d 
re
lig
io
us
 

gu
id
an
ce
, a
nd
 t
o 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
e 
th
e 

re
la
tiv
es
 o
f p

at
ie
nt
s 
in
 t
he
 a
dj
oi
ni
ng
 

m
ili
ta
ry
 h
os
pi
ta
l. 

6.
21
 
So
m
e 
of
 t
he
 w
al
le
d 
an
d 
ra
ile
d 
ba
se
m
en
t 

ar
ea
s 
ar
e 
so
m
ew

ha
t r
un
 d
ow

n 
an
d 

co
ul
d 
be
ne
fit
 fr
om

 r
ep
ai
r 
an
d 

re
st
or
at
io
n.
 A
t 
th
e 
en
tr
an
ce
 t
o 
th
e 

st
re
et
 t
he
re
 is
 a
  d

er
el
ic
t 
bu
ild
in
g 
an
d 

ov
er
gr
ow

n 
ya
rd
 o
n 
th
e 
so
ut
h 
si
de
 

w
hi
ch
 b
ad
ly
 n
ee
ds
 u
pg
ra
di
ng
. 

6.
22
 
Th

is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
te
rm

in
at
es
 

w
ith

 t
he
 s
ite

 o
f t
he
 1
85
4 
m
ili
ta
ry
 

ho
sp
ita
l, 
fin
is
hi
ng
 a
t 
H
os
pi
ta
l F
ie
ld
s 

Ro
ad
. T

he
 s
ite

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
cl
ea
re
d 
an
d 
 

re
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 r
ec
en
t 
ye
ar
s 
as
 a
n 
of
fic
e 

bl
oc
k 
an
d 
is 
no

t 
in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a,
 b
ut
 a
 s
tr
on

g 
w
al
l 

w
ith

 r
ai
lin
gs
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
bu
ilt
 o
n 
th
e 

cu
rt
ila
ge
 t
o 
gi
ve
 a
 c
le
ar
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
to
 t
he
 

hi
gh
w
ay
 a
nd
 e
vo
ke
 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 m

ili
ta
ry
 

us
e.
  

6.
23
 
Ju
st
 b
ef
or
e 
th
e 
ne
w
 o
ffi
ce
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

O
rd
na
nc
e 
La
ne
 r
un
s 
of
f t
o 
th
e 
w
es
t, 

or
ig
in
al
ly
 le
ad
in
g 
to
 t
he
 R
oy
al
 A
rm

y 
O
rd
na
nc
e 
D
ep
ot
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 
be
hi
nd
 t
he
 

ho
sp
ita
l i
n 
18
90
. T

he
 L
an
e 
its
el
f i
s 

ut
ili
ta
ri
an
 b
ut
 it
 in
cl
ud
es
 a
n 
in
te
re
st
in
g 

an
d 
ro
bu
st
 t
er
ra
ce
 o
f f
la
ts
 a
nd
 

m
ai
so
ne
tt
es
 b
ui
lt 
in
 1
90
3 
fo
r 
m
ar
ri
ed
 

ho
sp
ita
l s
ta
ff,
 a
nd
 a
 la
te
r 
19
20
’s
 h
ou

se
 

(N
o 
9)
 p
re
su
m
ab
ly
 fo

r 
hi
gh
er
 r
an
ki
ng
 

pe
rs
on

ne
l. 

6.
24
 
Th

is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

is
 o
f c
on

si
de
ra
bl
e 
ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
 a
nd
 

so
ci
al
 in
te
re
st
, w

ith
 h
ig
h 
m
ili
ta
ry
 

as
so
ci
at
io
ns
. 

 

  

 

 
 

W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 –
 t
yp
ic
al
 c
ol
um

n 
he
ad
 

W
en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 –
 e
nt
ra
nc
e 
do

or
w
ay
s 

Page 66



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

22
 

 

M
ap
 o
f N

or
th
er
n 
A
re
a 

Li
st
ed
 B
ui
ld
in
gs
 +
 S
ite

s

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s 
of

po
sit
iv
e 
va
lu
e 
to
 t
he
 a
re
a

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s 
of
 

ne
ut
ra
l v
al
ue

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s

de
tr
im
en
ta
l t
o 
th
e 
ar
ea

Page 67



7 
T
H
E
 S
O
U
T
H
E
R
N
 A

R
E
A
 

(s
ee
 p
la
n 
pa
ge
 2
7)
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

23
 

H
os

pi
ta

l F
ie
ld
s 
R
oa

d 
to

 F
ul
fo
rd

 
C
ro

ss
 r
oa

d 

7.
1 

Th
e 
en
tir
e 
ea
st
er
n 
pa
rt
 o
f t
hi
s 
se
ct
io
n 

of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
an
d 

do
m
in
at
ed
 b
y 
Im
ph
al
 B
ar
ra
ck
s, 
bu
ilt
 a
s 

th
e 
In
fa
nt
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
in
 1
87
7-
80
. I
t 
is
 

so
fte

ne
d 
by
 t
he
 w
id
e 
gr
as
s 
ve
rg
es
 

ei
th
er
 s
id
e 
of
 t
he
 r
oa
d,
 a
nd
 t
he
 

re
gu
la
rl
y 
sp
ac
ed
 m

at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
pl
an
te
d 

al
on

g 
th
e 
ea
st
er
n 
ve
rg
e 
af
te
r 
th
e 
Fi
rs
t 

W
or
ld
 W

ar
. I
t 
ha
s 
a 
le
ss
 u
rb
an
 fe
el
 d
ue
 

to
 t
he
 a
bs
en
ce
 o
f b

ui
ld
in
gs
 h
ar
d 
ag
ai
ns
t 

th
e 
hi
gh
w
ay
 a
nd
 t
he
 fa
ll 
an
d 
ri
se
 in
 t
he
 

ro
ad
. T

he
 p
ow

er
fu
l p
re
se
nc
e 
of
 t
he
 

Ba
rr
ac
ks
 o
n 
th
e 
ea
st
 s
id
e 
co
m
pe
ns
at
es
 

fo
r 
th
e 
re
la
tiv
e 
la
ck
 o
f i
nt
er
es
t 
on

 t
he
 

w
es
t. 

7.
2 

Th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 a
re
 v
er
y 
cl
ea
rl
y 
de
fin
ed
 b
y 

th
e 
th
ic
k,
 b
ut
tr
es
se
d 
w
al
ls 
al
on

g 
th
e 

no
rt
he
rn
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
(a
 p
ub
lic
 p
at
h 
an
d 

cy
cl
ew

ay
) a
nd
 t
he
 r
ob

us
t w

al
ls
 a
nd
 

ra
ili
ng
s 
al
on

g 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d.
 In

te
rn
al
ly
, 

th
e 
fr
on

t 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 s
ite

 is
 s
of
te
ne
d 
by
 

th
e 
w
id
e 
la
w
ns
 a
nd
 a
 w
ea
lth

 o
f m

at
ur
e 

tr
ee
s.
  

7.
3 

Th
e 
bu
ild
in
gs
 v
isi
bl
e 
w
ith

in
 t
he
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 

si
te
 a
re
 o
f v
ar
yi
ng
 s
ca
le
, t
ho

se
 n
ea
r 
th
e 

fr
on

ta
ge
 g
en
er
al
ly
 b
ei
ng
 o
f s
m
al
l s
ca
le
 

an
d 
in
fo
rm

al
 m

as
sin

g,
 w
ith

 la
rg
er
 s
ca
le
 

an
d 
m
or
e 
po

w
er
fu
l b
lo
ck
s 
fla
nk
in
g 
th
e 

pa
ra
de
 g
ro
un
d 
w
ith

in
. B

ut
 t
he
re
 is
 a
 

co
ns
is
te
nc
y 
of
 m

at
er
ia
l a
nd
 d
et
ai
l 

th
ro
ug
ho

ut
, u
si
ng
 a
 p
al
et
te
 o
f r
ed
di
sh
 

br
ow

n 
br
ic
k,
 b
lu
e 
en
gi
ne
er
in
g 
br
ic
k 

dr
es
sin

gs
, a
nd
 p
itc
he
d 
W

el
sh
 s
la
te
 r
oo

fs
 

w
ith

 c
or
be
lle
d 
ea
ve
s 
an
d 
ve
rg
es
. T

he
y 

pr
oj
ec
t 
an
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 im

ag
e 
of
 

pe
rm

an
en
ce
 a
nd
 s
ol
id
ity
.  
 

7.
4 

Th
e 
Ba
rr
ac
ks
 K
ee
p 
(L
is
te
d 
G
ra
de
 ll
) i
s 

th
e 
m
os
t 
pr
om

in
en
t 
an
d 
di
st
in
ct
iv
e 

bu
ild
in
g 
in
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
 It
s 

m
at
er
ia
ls 
ar
e 
si
m
ila
r 
to
 th

os
e 
us
ed
 

el
se
w
he
re
 b
ut
 it
 h
as
 a
 b
at
tle

m
en
te
d 
fla
t 

ro
of
, c
or
ne
r 
to
w
er
s 
an
d 
sm

al
l b
ar
re
d 

w
in
do

w
s,
 a
ll 
gi
vi
ng
 a
 d
ef
en
si
ve
 

m
ed
ia
ev
al
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e.
 It
 p
ro
te
ct
s 

en
tr
an
ce
 g
at
ew

ay
s 
ei
th
er
 s
id
e 
w
ith

 
m
as
si
ve
 g
at
e 
pi
er
s. 

7.
5 

Th
e 
hi
st
or
ic
 in
te
re
st
 o
f t
he
 c
om

pl
ex
 

de
cr
ea
se
s 
ea
st
w
ar
ds
 d
ue
 t
o 

re
pl
ac
em

en
t 
w
ith

 n
ew

 b
ui
ld
in
gs
, a
nd
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
th
er
ef
or
e 
on

ly
 

in
cl
ud
es
 t
he
 w
es
te
rn
 p
ar
t 
of
 t
he
 s
ite

 
an
d 
its
 r
el
at
ed
 o
ri
gi
na
l b
ui
ld
in
gs
, 

st
op

pi
ng
 a
t 
th
e 
pa
ra
de
 g
ro
un
d 
/ c
ar
pa
rk
, 

w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
th
e 
m
ai
n 
vi
su
al
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d.
 T
he
 o
nl
y 
fe
at
ur
e 
of
 

hi
st
or
ic
 in
te
re
st
 in
 t
he
 e
as
te
rn
 p
ar
t 
of
 

th
e 
si
te
 is
 t
he
 1
79
6 
co
at
 o
f a
rm

s 
br
ou

gh
t 
fr
om

 t
he
 C
av
al
ry
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
in
 

19
70
 a
nd
 m

ou
nt
ed
 in
 a
 lo

w
 b
ri
ck
 

di
sp
la
y 
pa
ne
l. 

 

 

 

 

 

K
ee
p 
 

Ba
rr
ac
k 
bu
ild
in
gs
 

Page 68



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

24
 

7.
6 

Th
e 
w
es
te
rn
 s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
is
 

m
ai
nl
y 
oc
cu
pi
ed
 b
y 
19
30
’s 
an
d 
m
od

er
n 

re
si
de
nt
ia
l d
ev
el
op

m
en
ts
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 

ex
cl
ud
ed
 fr
om

 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a.
 

O
f t
he
se
, t
he
 m

od
er
n 
bl
oc
k 
of
 fl
at
s 
on

 
H
os
pi
ta
l F
ie
ld
s 
La
ne
 is
 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w
ith

 
th
e 
A
re
a 
in
 t
er
m
s 
of
 it
s 
sc
al
e 
an
d 

m
at
er
ia
ls 
bu
t 
M
ap
le
 G
ro
ve
 h
as
 a
 

sp
la
ye
d 
en
tr
an
ce
 w
hi
ch
 is
 d
isr
up
tiv
e.
 

7.
7 

Th
e 
w
es
te
rn
 s
id
e 
is 
fu
rt
he
r 
di
sr
up
te
d 

by
 a
 m

od
er
n 
re
ta
il 
co
m
pl
ex
 a
nd
 it
s 

ca
rp
ar
k,
 b
ui
lt 
on

 t
he
 s
ite

 o
f t
he
 fo

rm
er
 

tr
am

 d
ep
ot
 (1

88
0)
. H

ow
ev
er
 it
 is
 

gr
ad
ua
lly
 b
ec
om

in
g 
m
or
e 
sc
re
en
ed
 b
y 

tr
ee
s 
pl
an
te
d 
be
hi
nd
 t
he
 fr
on

ta
ge
, 

w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ot
ec
te
d 
by
 in
cl
us
io
n 

w
ith

in
 t
he
 r
ev
ise

d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

bo
un
da
ry
.  

7.
8 

Th
e 
an
ci
en
t 
Fu
lfo
rd
 C
ro
ss
 n
ow

 s
ta
nd
s 

ra
th
er
 in
co
ng
ru
ou

sl
y 
ne
xt
 t
o 
th
e 

ca
rp
ar
k 
en
tr
an
ce
, h
al
f e
nc
ir
cl
ed
 b
y 
a 

ra
is
ed
 s
hr
ub
 b
ed
. T

he
 c
ro
ss
 is
 a
n 

A
nc
ie
nt
 M

on
um

en
t 
an
d 
a 
G
ra
de
 ll
 

Li
st
ed
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 e
re
ct
ed
 a
ro
un
d 
14
84
 

pr
ob

ab
ly
 t
o 
m
ar
k 
th
e 
bo

un
da
ry
 o
f 

gr
az
in
g 
ri
gh
ts
 h
el
d 
by
 t
he
 C
ity
 (t
o 
th
e 

no
rt
h)
 a
nd
 S
t 
M
ar
y’
s 
A
bb
ey
 (t
o 
th
e 

so
ut
h)
. I
t 
ha
s 
lo
st
 it
s 
he
ad
 b
ut
 t
he
 lo

w
er
 

pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 s
ha
ft 
an
d 
its
 s
te
pp
ed
 p
lin
th
 

ar
e 
st
ill
 in
ta
ct
.  

7.
9 

A
lth

ou
gh
 m

uc
h 
m
od

er
ni
se
d 
on

 it
s 

w
es
te
rn
 s
id
e 
th
is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
ha
s 
co
ns
id
er
ab
le
 

to
w
ns
ca
pe
 a
nd
 h
ist
or
ic
 in
te
re
st
, w

ith
 a
 

pr
ed
om

in
an
tly
 m

ili
ta
ry
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
. O

n 
th
e 
w
es
t 
si
de
 it
 fi
ni
sh
es
 a
t 
th
e 
ro
ad
 a
ls
o 

(c
on

fu
si
ng
ly
) k

no
w
n 
as
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
. 

 

Fu
lfo

rd
 C

ro
ss
 r
oa

d 
to

 S
t 
O
sw

al
d’
s 

R
oa

d 

7.
10
 
So
ut
h 
of
 t
he
 B
ar
ra
ck
s 
Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 

ri
se
s 
ge
nt
ly
 u
pw

ar
ds
 t
o 
th
e 
so
ut
h 
an
d 

br
ie
fly
 b
ec
om

es
 a
lm
os
t r
ur
al
 in
 

ch
ar
ac
te
r,
 w
ith

 m
at
ur
e 
tr
ee
s 
an
d 

st
re
tc
he
s 
of
 h
ed
ge
ro
w
 li
ni
ng
 t
he
 e
as
t 

si
de
 a
nd
 c
on

ce
al
in
g 
tw

o 
la
rg
e 
de
ta
ch
ed
 

ho
us
es
 o
f h

ig
h 
st
at
us
. ‘
D
an
es
m
ea
d’
 o
f 

19
04
 a
nd
 ‘O

us
ef
ie
ld
’ o

f 1
89
9 
w
er
e 
bo

th
 

de
si
gn
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
no

ta
bl
e 
lo
ca
l a
rc
hi
te
ct
 

W
al
te
r 
Br
ie
rl
ey
 a
nd
 a
re
 L
is
te
d 
G
ra
de
 ll
. 

Th
e 
el
ab
or
at
e 
ba
y 
w
in
do

w
s 
an
d 
ne
o-

G
eo

rg
ia
n 
de
ta
ils
 o
f O

us
ef
ie
ld
 c
an
 b
e 

gl
im
ps
ed
 fr
om

 t
he
 r
oa
d.
 T
he
y 
ar
e 
no

w
 

in
 a
rm

y 
ow

ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
ex
ud
e 
an
 a
ir
 o
f 

qu
ie
t 
ex
cl
us
iv
ity
 a
nd
 p
ri
va
cy
. 

 

  

 

 
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
so
ut
h 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
 

O
us
ef
ie
ld
 

Page 69



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

25
 

7.
11
 
A
 s
ho

rt
 d
ist
an
ce
 b
ey
on

d 
O
us
ef
ie
ld
 is
 a
 

la
rg
e 
la
te
 V
ic
to
ri
an
 v
ill
a,
 b
ui
lt 
of
 w
hi
te
 

br
ic
k 
an
d 
co
m
pl
et
e 
w
ith

 it
s 
st
ab
le
 

bl
oc
k,
 o
ri
gi
na
lly
 k
no

w
n 
as
 ‘W

es
tfi
el
d’
. I
t 

w
as
 c
on

ve
rt
ed
 in
 1
93
6 
to
 b
ec
om

e 
th
e 

m
or
e 
co
m
m
on

ly
 k
no

w
n 
‘G
im
cr
ac
k’
 

lic
en
se
d 
ho

te
l, 
pr
ov
id
in
g 
a 
po

pu
la
r 

re
so
rt
 fo

r 
ar
m
y 
of
fic
er
s,
 b
ut
 it
 h
as
 

re
ce
nt
ly
 b
ee
n 
co
nv
er
te
d 
in
to
 fl
at
s.
  

7.
12
 
Be

tw
ee
n 
O
us
ef
ie
ld
 a
nd
 th

e 
ol
d 

G
im
cr
ac
k 
H
ot
el
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

in
cl
ud
es
 t
w
o 
pa
ir
s 
of
 1
93
0’
s 
se
m
i-

de
ta
ch
ed
 h
ou

se
s 
(N

os
 2
86
-2
92
) s
et
 

w
el
l b
ac
k 
fr
om

 t
he
 r
oa
d:
 t
he
 p
ur
po

se
 is
 

no
t 
to
 p
ro
te
ct
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 p
er
 s
e 
bu
t 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ny
 fu

tu
re
 r
ep
la
ce
m
en
ts
 

re
sp
ec
t 
th
e 
ex
ist
in
g 
bu
ild
in
g 
lin
e 
an
d 

ch
ar
ac
te
r 
of
 t
he
 a
re
a.
  

7.
13
 
By
 c
om

pa
ri
so
n,
 t
he
 e
as
t s
id
e 
of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 

Ro
ad
 h
as
 a
 m

uc
h 
m
or
e 
su
bu
rb
an
 

ch
ar
ac
te
r,
 w
ith

 c
lo
se
ly
 s
pa
ce
d 
de
ta
ch
ed
 

an
d 
se
m
i-d

et
ac
he
d 
ho

us
es
 s
et
 w
ith

in
 

sh
or
te
r 
ga
rd
en
s 
be
hi
nd
 lo

w
 fr
on

t 
w
al
ls
 

or
 h
ed
ge
s. 
D
e 
La
 S
al
le
 H
ou

se
 (N

o 
14
7)
 

is
 t
he
 fo

rm
er
 v
ic
ar
ag
e 
to
 S
t 
O
sw

al
d’
s 

ch
ur
ch
, b
ui
lt 
in
 t
he
 la
te
 1
9t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 

w
ith

 it
s 
fr
on

t 
w
al
l t
op

pe
d 
by
 a
 c
as
t 
ir
on

 
ra
ili
ng
 o
f t
w
ist
ed
 r
op

e 
ca
rr
yi
ng
 

de
co
ra
tiv
e 
sw

ag
s. 

7.
14
 
Th

e 
re
m
ai
nd
er
 a
re
 e
ar
ly
 2
0t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 

ho
us
es
, n
ow

 m
os
tly
 c
on

ve
rt
ed
 t
o 
gu
es
t 

ho
us
es
. T

he
 L
im
es
 (N

o1
35
) i
s 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
du
e 
to
 it
s 
ba
y 

w
in
do

w
s,
 le
ad
ed
 fr
on

t 
po

rc
h 
an
d 

co
rb
el
le
d 
ga
bl
e 
ch
im
ne
ys
: i
t 
w
as
 

de
si
gn
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
no

ta
bl
e 
lo
ca
l a
rc
hi
te
ct
s 

Pe
nt
y 
an
d 
Pe
nt
y 
in
 1
90
3.
 O

th
er
 h
ou

se
s 

ha
ve
 in
te
re
st
in
g 
de
ta
ils
 –
 t
he
 c
la
ss
ic
al
 

po
rc
h 
to
 N

o 
13
7,
 a
nd
 t
he
 s
ub
tly
 

ta
pe
ri
ng
 c
hi
m
ne
ys
 t
o 
M
id
w
ay
 H
ou

se
. 

7.
15
 
Br
oa
dw

ay
 a
nd
 B
ro
ad
w
ay
 W

es
t 
ar
e 

un
fo
rt
un
at
e 
in
tr
us
io
ns
 in
 t
he
 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a,
 b
ei
ng
 t
he
 p
ro
du
ct
 

of
 1
93
0’
s 
ho

us
in
g 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
w
hi
ch
 

al
so
 e
xt
en
ds
 b
ey
on

d 
th
e 
ro
ad
 ju
nc
tio

n 
to
w
ar
ds
 F
ul
fo
rd
 o
n 
th
e 
ea
st
 s
id
e.
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
ch
an
ge
s 
ch
ar
ac
te
r 
at
 t
hi
s 

po
in
t, 
w
ith

 fe
w
er
 t
re
es
 a
nd
 a
 m

or
e 

op
en
 a
sp
ec
t. 
 

7.
16
 
D
es
pi
te
 t
he
 la
te
r 
in
tr
us
io
ns
 t
he
 

ex
te
ns
io
n 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
as
 

fa
r 
as
 S
t 
O
sw

al
d’
s 
Ro

ad
 b
ey
on

d 
is
 

hi
st
or
ic
al
ly
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 s
in
ce
 t
he
 la
tt
er
 

m
ar
ke
d 
th
e 
ol
d 
pa
rl
ia
m
en
ta
ry
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 

of
 Y
or
k,
 a
nd
 t
he
 c
ou

nt
y 
an
d 
bo

ro
ug
h 

bo
un
da
ri
es
 o
f Y

or
k 
af
te
r 
th
e 
A
ct
 o
f 

18
84
.  

 

  

 

 
 

Fo
rm

er
 G
im
cr
ac
k 
H
ot
el
 

Th
e 
Li
m
es
 

Page 70



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

26
 

7.
17
 
A
 v
er
y 
la
rg
e 
te
rr
ac
e 
of
 V
ic
to
ri
an
 h
ou

se
s 

(N
os
 2
98
-3
14
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
an
d 
N
o 
1 
St
 

O
sw

al
d’
s 
Ro

ad
) s
ta
nd
s 
on

 t
he
 w
es
t 
si
de
 

of
 F
ul
fo
rd
 R
oa
d 
an
d 
al
th
ou

gh
 s
om

e 
di
st
an
ce
 a
w
ay
 a
ct
s 
as
 a
 v
isu

al
 ‘s
to
p’
 

w
he
n 
lo
ok

in
g 
so
ut
hw

ar
ds
 a
lo
ng
 F
ul
fo
rd
 

Ro
ad
 fr
om

 t
he
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
 a
re
a.
 

W
hi
ls
t 
m
os
t 
of
 it
s 
de
ta
ili
ng
 is
 t
yp
ic
al
 o
f 

Yo
rk
 (j
oi
ne
ry
, b
ay
 w
in
do

w
s,
 fr
on

t 
ra
ili
ng
s 
an
d 
ga
te
s 
et
c)
 t
he
 b
lo
ck
 is
 

un
us
ua
lly
 la
rg
e 
an
d 
th
e 
tw

o-
st
or
ey
 b
ay
s 

ad
d 
to
 it
s 
sc
al
e.
  

7.
18
 
Th

is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

te
rm

in
at
es
 w
ith

 S
t 
O
sw

al
d’
s 
Ro

ad
, 

w
hi
ch
 b
ra
nc
he
s 
of
f w

es
tw

ar
ds
 t
ow

ar
ds
 

th
e 
Ri
ve
r 
O
us
e.
 It
 is
 a
 s
pa
ci
ou

s 
an
d 

qu
ie
t 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l c
ul
-d
e-
sa
c 
w
ith

 a
 v
er
y 

st
ro
ng
 s
en
se
 o
f i
de
nt
ity
, q
ui
te
 d
iff
er
en
t 

in
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 t
o 
an
yt
hi
ng
 e
ls
e 
in
 t
he
 

A
re
a.
 It
 a
pp
ea
rs
 t
o 
be
 a
 r
oa
d 
cr
ea
te
d 

af
te
r 
th
e 
17
59
 E
nc
lo
su
re
 A
ct
 t
o 
lin
k 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
to
 t
he
 1
2t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 

C
hu
rc
h 
of
 S
t 
O
sw

al
d 
cl
os
e 
to
 t
he
 R
iv
er
 

O
us
e,
 b
ef
or
e 
th
e 
ex
ist
in
g 
Vi
ct
or
ia
n 

ch
ur
ch
 w
as
 b
ui
lt 
in
 F
ul
fo
rd
 v
ill
ag
e:
 t
he
 

ol
d 
ch
ur
ch
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
co
nv
er
te
d 
to
 a
 

dw
el
lin
g 
an
d 
lie
s 
be
yo
nd
 th

e 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
bo

un
da
ry
. 

7.
19
 
W

hi
ls
t 
th
e 
ho

us
es
 v
ar
y 
co
ns
id
er
ab
ly
 in
 

th
ei
r 
de
si
gn
, r
an
gi
ng
 fr
om

 d
et
ac
he
d 

ho
us
es
 t
o 
hu
m
bl
er
 s
ho

rt
 t
er
ra
ce
s,
 t
he
re
 

is
 a
 c
on

si
st
en
cy
 o
f s
ca
le
 a
nd
 m

at
er
ia
ls 

w
hi
ch
 g
iv
es
 u
ni
ty
 t
o 
th
e 
w
ho

le
. T

he
 

ho
us
es
 a
re
 t
w
o 
st
or
ey
s 
hi
gh
 a
pa
rt
 fr
om

 
N
o 
11
 w
hi
ch
 is
 t
hr
ee
 s
to
re
ys
 h
ig
h 
an
d 

ou
t 
of
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
. T

he
y 
ar
e 
m
os
tly
 m

id
 

19
th
 c
en
tu
ry
 in
 d
at
e 
bu
t b

ec
om

e 
la
te
r 

to
w
ar
ds
 t
he
 w
es
t, 
cu
lm
in
at
in
g 
in
 a
 la
rg
e 

de
ta
ch
ed
 y
el
lo
w
 b
ri
ck
 h
ou

se
 o
f l
at
e 
19

th
 

/ e
ar
ly
 2
0t

h  c
en
tu
ry
 d
at
e.
 T
he
y 
ap
pe
ar
 t
o 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
po

pu
la
r 
w
ith

 a
rm

y 
pe
rs
on

ne
l 

w
he
n 
fir
st
 b
ui
lt.
 

7.
20
 
Ro

of
s 
ar
e 
pi
tc
he
d 
an
d 
cl
ad
 in
 b
lu
e-
gr
ey
 

sl
at
e,
 m

os
tly
 a
lig
ne
d 
pa
ra
lle
l t
o 
th
e 

st
re
et
, w

ith
 la
rg
e 
br
ic
k 
ch
im
ne
ys
 

m
ar
ki
ng
 p
ar
ty
 w
al
ls
 a
nd
 g
ab
le
 e
nd
s.
 

W
al
ls
 a
re
 o
f r
ed
di
sh
-b
ro
w
n 
lo
ca
l c
la
m
p 

br
ic
k 
w
ith

 v
er
tic
al
 s
lid
in
g 
sa
sh
 w
in
do

w
s, 

an
d 
m
an
y 
la
rg
er
 h
ou

se
s 
ha
ve
 b
ay
 

w
in
do

w
s 
of
 v
ar
io
us
 d
es
ig
ns
. M

an
y 
of
 

th
e 
sh
or
t 
fr
on

t 
ga
rd
en
s 
ar
e 
bo

un
de
d 
by
 

de
co
ra
tiv
e 
ca
st
 ir
on

 r
ai
lin
gs
, h
ig
h 
he
dg
es
 

or
 o
rn
am

en
ta
l s
hr
ub
s.
  

7.
21
 
G
ap
s 
be
tw

ee
n 
th
e 
ho

us
es
 g
en
er
al
ly
 

re
ve
al
 lo

ng
 g
ar
de
ns
 c
on

ta
in
in
g 
m
at
ur
e 

tr
ee
s 
in
di
ca
tiv
e 
of
 t
he
ir
 o
ri
gi
na
l s
em

i- 

 r
ur
al
 s
et
tin

g.
 O

ne
 u
nu
su
al
ly
 w
id
e 
an
d 

de
ep
 p
lo
t 
ha
s 
ha
d 
a 
ne
w
 h
ou

se
 b
ui
lt 
to
 

th
e 
re
ar
, b
ut
 fu
rt
he
r 
re
ar
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

w
ou

ld
 b
e 
de
tr
im
en
ta
l. 
 

7.
22
 
Th

is
 s
ec
tio

n 
of
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

ha
s 
co
ns
id
er
ab
le
 t
ow

ns
ca
pe
 a
nd
 

ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
 in
te
re
st
. 

 

 

 

 
 

St
. O

sw
al
ds
 R
oa
d 

Page 71



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

27
 

   
 

Li
st
ed
 B
ui
ld
in
gs
 +
 S
ite

s

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s 
of

po
si
tiv
e 
va
lu
e 
to
 t
he
 a
re
a

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s 
of
 

ne
ut
ra
l v
al
ue

Bu
ild
in
gs
 a
nd
 F
ea
tu
re
s

de
tr
im
en
ta
l t
o 
th
e 
ar
ea

M
ap
 o
f S
ou

th
er
n 
A
re
a 

Page 72



8 
FU

T
U
R
E
 M

A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 S
U
G
G
E
ST

IO
N
S
 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
 Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

28
 

8.
1 

In
 s
om

e 
se
ct
io
ns
 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 

A
re
a 
ha
s 
be
co
m
e 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 fr
ag
ile
 d
ue
 

to
 r
ed
ev
el
op

m
en
t, 
so
m
et
im
es
 o
n 
bo

th
 

si
de
s.
 W

he
re
 n
ew

 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 
is
 

pr
op

os
ed
 o
ut
si
de
 t
he
 A
re
a 
bu
t 
af
fe
ct
in
g 

its
 s
et
tin

g 
it 
is 
im
po

rt
an
t t
o 
se
cu
re
 n
ew

 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
w
hi
ch
 s
tr
iv
es
 t
o 
pr
es
er
ve
 

or
 r
ei
nf
or
ce
 t
he
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
f t
he
 A
re
a,
 

an
d 
w
hi
ch
 in
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 h
as
 r
ob

us
t 

fr
on

ta
ge
s 
w
ith

 m
in
im
al
 b
re
ak
s, 
in
 o
rd
er
 

to
 a
vo
id
 d
is
ru
pt
in
g 
th
e 
fir
m
 h
ig
hw

ay
 

bo
un
da
ry
.  

8.
2 

Th
e 
de
si
gn
 o
f n

ew
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 n
ee
ds
 t
o 

ob
se
rv
e 
cl
os
el
y 
th
e 
ch
ar
ac
te
ri
st
ic
s 
of
 

th
e 
A
re
a 
an
d 
be
 g
ui
de
d 
by
 t
he
m
: a
nd
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
co
nt
ro
l p
ol
ic
ie
s 
sh
ou

ld
 

at
te
m
pt
 t
o 
re
st
or
e 
tr
ad
iti
on

al
 fo

rm
s 

an
d 
de
ta
ils
 w
he
re
 t
he
se
 h
av
e 
be
en
 lo

st
. 

8.
3 

W
he
re
 o
ri
gi
na
l f
ro
nt
 b
ou

nd
ar
y 
w
al
ls
 

ar
e 
im
po

rt
an
t 
fe
at
ur
es
 th

ey
 s
ho

ul
d 
be
 

re
ta
in
ed
 a
nd
 e
nc
ou

ra
ge
m
en
t 
gi
ve
n 
to
 

th
ei
r 
re
in
st
at
em

en
t 
w
he
re
 lo

st
 e
g 
in
 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
, W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 a
nd
 S
t 

O
sw

al
ds
 R
oa
d.
 

8.
4 

A
rt
ic
le
 4
 D

ir
ec
tio

ns
 m

ig
ht
 b
e 
w
or
th
 

co
ns
id
er
in
g 
w
he
re
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 h
av
e 

re
m
ai
ne
d 
re
la
tiv
el
y 
un
al
te
re
d 
by
 fo

r 
ex
am

pl
e 
m
od

er
n,
 d
or
m
er
 w
in
do

w
s,
 

w
in
do

w
s 
an
d 
w
al
l f
in
ish

es
 e
g 
in
 

Fi
sh
er
ga
te
, W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
 a
nd
 S
t 

O
sw

al
ds
 R
oa
d.
 

8.
5 

La
rg
e 
pa
rt
s 
w
ith

 t
he
 C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 

ar
e 
st
ill
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
by
 t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
. 

Pl
an
ni
ng
 c
on

tr
ol
 in
 t
he
se
 a
re
as
 is
 

su
bj
ec
t 
to
 n
eg
ot
ia
tio

n 
w
ith

 t
he
 L
oc
al
 

Pl
an
ni
ng
 A
ut
ho

ri
ty
 r
at
he
r 
th
an
 t
he
 

no
rm

al
 p
la
nn
in
g 
co
nt
ro
l p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
nd
 

a 
m
ut
ua
l u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f d

ut
ie
s 
an
d 

pr
io
ri
tie

s 
is 
es
se
nt
ia
l. 
 

8.
6 

Th
e 
hi
gh
 v
ol
um

e 
an
d 
sp
ee
d 
of
 t
ra
ffi
c 

pa
ss
in
g 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
A
re
a 
de
tr
ac
ts
 fr
om

 
its
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
an
d 
am

en
ity
, a
nd
 m

ak
es
 

cr
os
si
ng
 t
he
 r
oa
d 
an
 o
bs
ta
cl
e:
 m

ea
su
re
s 

to
 r
ed
uc
e 
an
d 
sl
ow

 t
he
 tr
af
fic
 w
ou

ld
 b
e 

ve
ry
 d
es
ir
ab
le
, i
f d

es
ig
ne
d 
to
 b
e 

co
m
pa
tib

le
 w
ith

 t
he
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 o
f t
he
 

A
re
a.
 A
ny
 k
er
b 
re
-a
lig
nm

en
t 
an
d 

su
rf
ac
e 
de
m
ar
ca
tio

n 
to
 id
en
tif
y 
cy
cl
e 
or
 

bu
s 
ro
ut
es
 e
tc
 s
ho

ul
d 
be
 d
on

e 
se
ns
iti
ve
ly
 in
 li
ai
so
n 
w
ith

 th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
O
ffi
ce
r.
 

8.
7 

Th
e 
ta
ll 
st
ee
l l
ig
ht
in
g 
st
an
da
rd
s 
lin
in
g 

Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
ar
e 
re
as
on

ab
ly
 d
isc

re
et
 

bu
t 
ar
e 
in
 v
er
y 
po

or
 c
on

di
tio

n 
an
d 
ne
ed
 

re
de
co
ra
tin

g;
 a
ny
 r
ep
la
ce
m
en
ts
 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o
f a
n 
eq
ua
lly
 d
isc

re
et
 a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e.
 

W
en
lo
ck
 S
tr
ee
t 
is
 s
til
l l
it 
fr
om

 o
ri
gi
na
l 

de
co
ra
tiv
e 
ca
st
 ir
on

 la
m
p 
po

st
s 
w
hi
ch
 

ou
gh
t 
to
 b
e 
re
ta
in
ed
: t
ho

se
 in
 A
lm
a 

Te
rr
ac
e 
an
d 
A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
 a
re
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
n 
bu
t 
fit
 t
he
 s
ca
le
 a
nd
 c
ha
ra
ct
er
 

of
 t
he
 s
tr
ee
t 
an
d 
an
y 
re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
 

sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
eq
ua
lly
 w
el
l c
ho

se
n.
 

8.
8 

Th
e 
hi
gh
w
ay
 is
 v
ul
ne
ra
bl
e 
to
 in
tr
us
io
n 

by
 u
til
ity
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 S
om

e 
fo
ot
pa
th
s 
ar
e 

he
av
ily
 p
at
ch
ed
 b
y 
tr
en
ch
in
g 
an
d 
co
ul
d 

be
ne
fit
 fr
om

 r
e-
su
rf
ac
in
g 
eg
 b
et
w
ee
n 

M
ap
le
 G
ro
ve
 a
nd
 F
ul
fo
rd
 C
ro
ss
, w

he
re
 

it 
w
ou

ld
 a
ls
o 
ap
pe
ar
 p
os
si
bl
e 
to
 n
ar
ro
w
 

th
e 
fo
ot
pa
th
 a
nd
 r
ei
ns
ta
te
 t
he
 g
ra
ss
 

ve
rg
es
. 

8.
9 

It 
w
ou

ld
 b
e 
a 
gr
ea
t 
as
se
t i
f t
he
 

m
ul
tit
ud
e 
of
 o
ve
rh
ea
d 
te
le
ph
on

e 
w
ir
es
 

in
 A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
 a
nd
 S
t 
O
sw

al
ds
 R
oa
d 

co
ul
d 
be
 p
ut
 u
nd
er
gr
ou

nd
 o
r 
ro
ut
ed
 

ou
t 
of
 s
ig
ht
. 

 
 

Page 73



 Fu
lfo
rd
 R
oa
d 
C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
re
a 
A
pp
ra
isa

l  
   
Ju
ly
 2
00
9 

29
 

8.
10
 
So
m
e 
se
at
s 
on

 t
he
 fo

ot
pa
th
 a
re
 o
f 

cr
ud
e 
m
od

er
n 
de
si
gn
, c
on

si
st
in
g 
of
 

tim
be
r 
pl
an
ks
 s
et
 in
to
 c
on

cr
et
e 
fr
am

es
. 

Th
e 
tim

be
r 
is
 r
ot
tin

g 
an
d 
th
e 
se
at
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
re
pl
ac
ed
 w
ith

 s
om

et
hi
ng
 

m
or
e 
ap
pr
op

ri
at
e.
 L
itt
er
 b
in
s 
ar
e 

de
si
gn
ed
 fo

r 
be
in
g 
w
al
l m

ou
nt
ed
 b
ut
 in
 

m
os
t 
ca
se
s 
ar
e 
fr
ee
 s
ta
nd
in
g 
an
d 
lo
ok

 
un
tid

y:
 t
he
y 
ou

gh
t 
to
 b
e 
re
pl
ac
ed
 w
ith

 a
 

fr
ee
-s
ta
nd
in
g 
de
si
gn
. 

8.
11
 
Th

e 
w
al
le
d 
am

en
ity
 a
re
a 
at
 t
he
 ju
nc
tio

n 
of
 F
is
he
rg
at
e 
an
d 
C
em

et
er
y 
Ro

ad
 is
 in
 

po
or
 c
on

di
tio

n 
an
d 
po

or
ly
 p
re
se
nt
ed
: 

th
e 
w
al
ls
 n
ee
d 
re
pa
ir
 a
nd
 t
he
 a
re
a 
re
-

la
nd
sc
ap
ed
.  

8.
12
 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pl
aq
ue
s 
w
ou

ld
 b
e 
an
 a
ss
et
 

to
 e
xp
la
in
 t
he
 h
is
to
ry
 o
f t
he
 a
re
a,
 e
g 

ou
ts
id
e 
ea
ch
 o
f t
he
 m

ili
ta
ry
 b
ar
ra
ck
s, 
in
 

A
lm
a 
G
ro
ve
, a
nd
 in
 W

en
lo
ck
 T
er
ra
ce
. 

Th
e 
pl
aq
ue
 c
om

m
em

or
at
in
g 
Fu
lfo
rd
 

C
ro
ss
 is
 t
oo

 h
ig
h 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 

in
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 fo

r 
w
he
el
ch
ai
rs
, a
nd
 

pe
rh
ap
s 
ou

gh
t 
to
 b
e 
lo
w
er
ed
 a
nd
 

br
ou

gh
t 
fo
rw

ar
d 
to
 t
he
 p
av
em

en
t. 

Page 74



BI
SH

O
P

TH
O

R
PE

R
O

AD

13.4m E
B

O
R

STREET

Court

ROMAN
BURIAL

GROUND

LOWER DARNBOROUGH STREET

Caravan Site

8.8m

Sloping

m
asonry

5

16

33
23

13
311104to9

3

1

10 22 34

15

23to39

17
to

21

7
3

2 4

6

8 t o 12

11

31

14

16

1

CLEMENTHORPE

1413

41

7.9m

Blue Bridge
(Foot Bridge)SM

37
41

Club

HORSMAN AVENUE

Church

6

2

11

Club

Hotel

6

Melbourne
Court

39

Ps

7
9

12
6

8
12

14

19

25

WILLIAM COURT

11
13

15
17

19
33

343228
3024262022161814

10

HORSMAN AVENUE

B
E

LLE
V

U
E

S
TR

E
E

T

A
P

O
LLO

S
T

R
E

E
T

Works

APOLLO COURT

7
12

9
13

9
15

47

40

4

7

3 5

B
E

LLE
V

U
E

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

Fairfax House

99

Walmgate
Stray Lamel Beeches

27.4m

3

7

1 1
1 1a

The Old

Coach house

York Rise

43

The Retreat

10.4m

Path
(um

)

Pavilion

Tennis Courts

YO
R

K

13.1m

KILBURN ROAD

19

23 37

24

34

12.8m

51

53
59

66
56

48

76

BM 11.95m

10.7m

Path (um
)

Path
(um

)

EDGWARE ROAD

5

12

19

25

32

37
33

Allotment Gardens

Walmgate Stray

12.8m

Cholera Burial Ground

16.2m

BM 14.83m

P
at h

(u m
)

Mortury Chapel
(General)

Cemetery

BM 19.07m

18.3m

23.8m

YORK

ST ANN'S COURT

8

11
15

19

34

36

2

4

14

16

12

ALNE TERRACE

A
P

O
L LO

STR
E

ET

38 10

8
12
10

24
22

6
5

24
19

14

2
1

B
E

LLE
V

U
E

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

B
E

LLE
V

U
E

S
TR

E
E

T

25

2 9

33

1

4

9
11

13
15

Belle Vue

Cottages

W
ILLIAM

PLO
W

S
AV

ENU
E

The
Bungalow

1
2

4 3

12
11

1

Fairfax
House

Dower
Court

2 to 37

Lamel Hill
Battery
(site of)

29.0m

BM 26.62 m

Lamel Beeches

26to48

16

8.8m

BM 9.70m

89

103

105

7.3m

92
86

1

41

4

BM
5.94m

H
ol

ly
Te

rra
ce

33

65

55
45

33
21

74
60

46

75
61

PH

51

11
1

7
1

28a30a32

39

37
a

37

25

24
30

11
15

StoneC
A

R
E

Y
S

T R
E

E
T

ALMA TERRACE

ALMA GROVE

1 8
0

18
2

19
8

19
41a1

6

7
4
1

9
6
3

8
5
2

17
14
11

16
13
10

18
15
12

15.2m

Stone

Arncliffe
Mews

El
Sub
Sta

Garage

KILBURN ROAD

Christian

PH

117

5

17

20

10

1 21

13.7m

La
st

i n
gh

am
Te

rra
ce

Well House

12

11

5

SM

SM

7.3m

15

28
40

52

1

4

27
41

55

14
28

42
56

FARNDALE STREET

HARTOFT STREET

60
48

74

14
2

2

13
1

2

4

13
18

11

2
12 22

1
11

23

9
1

LEVISHAM STREET

R
O

SE
D

A
LE

ST
R

EE
T

16.2m

BM 15.80m

1

15
4

16
2

1 7
2

109
10 7

105
23

21

9

F U
L FO

R
D

R
O

A
D

3
13

20

124

4
1

MAIDA GROVE

18

8.5m

8.5m

Car Park

Ri
ve

r O
us

e

1830

25

N
ew

W
al

k

7.0m

W
at

er
G

a t
e

18
13

12a

34

6

37

24

19

The Croft

The
Grange

GRANGE GARTH

14 2 15
2

15
0

14
8

13
6

12
6

1

89

1 01

78

Club

Hotel

14.0m

14.6m

BM
14.73m

TCB
GRANGE STREET

El Sub Sta

KENSAL RISE

16.5m

14

1 to 4 9 to 12

64

Caravan

Site

8.5m

TE
R

R
Y

A
V

E
N

U
E

6 14

7

31

17

BM 8.22m

M
el

b o
u r

ne
H

o u
s e

M
a r

lb
or

ou
gh

V
il l

as

7.6m

6 1

2

12
425

20

27

1

114

12
0

Hotel

G
le

nt
on

Ty
ro

ne

13.4m

BM
13.68m

NEW WALK TERRACE

SANDRINGHAM STREET

19

12

63

73

79

87

15

2

14

HOW
ARD

STREET

St George's
RC

Primary
School

49

36

50

15.5m

BM 17.02m

Lodge

Playground

Cemetery

C
E

M
E

TE
R

Y
R

O
A

D

29

8.8m

W
ar

eh
ou

se

C
ar

av
an

Si
te

SM

SM

1

12

7

BLUE BRIDGE LANE

7.6m

H
ouse

Fis herga te

MARLBOROUGH GROVE

BM 14.34m

13.4m

3.4m

Stone
LB

WINTERSCALE STREET

FIS
H

ER
G

A T
E

Offices

98
to

10
2

11
2

10
4

1

1 5

YORK

MELBOURNE STREET

10 11 12 18

253137

Stone

Stone

BM 15.20m

14.9m

14.6m

ST ANN'S COURT

PH

19

6

3

1

6

7

15

Science
Church

Rowntree
Park

D
o ub le

W
a ll

Do
ub

le
W

al
l

Do
ub

le

Melbourne Court

10
to
16

86

1
to

5

2 to
4

8
10

to
16

18
to

24
26

to
34

WINTERSCALE CT

32

W
al

l

20

1
7

Ellwood

Court

8 to 11

1to
7

23

1

26

12
3

ALMA COURT

Tower House

1

38391
to

9

1 2

1 5

10

13

11 14

M
a rl bo r ou g h

W
ha rf

Posts

Posts

Hotel

11 3b

ST CLEMENT'S GROVE

ALDRETH GROVE

3

4

3

17

14

15

27

16

28

31

Tennis CourtsPond

8.5m

Ri
ve

r O
us

e

Pavilion

TE
R

R
Y

A
VE

N
U

E

3

4

Tennis Court

RICHARDSON STREET

NORFOLK STREET

15

22

29

15

27

26

14

8.5m

BM 9.24m

PC

Playground

Bowling Green

Bowling Green

86

1

88

100

17.4m

R
O

A
D

BI
S

H
O

P
TH

O
R

P
E

47

17

12

6

31

25

18 18a
18b

1

7

14

BEWLAY STREET

FENWICK STREET

PCs

El
Sub Sta

The
Lodge

Pond

Car
Park

Rowntree Park

CLEMENTHORPE

7 6

64

2

CHARLTON STREET

B
M

1 7.27m

26

18

2

8

16

57

35

23

11

1

2

12

59

67

13.1m

ANNE STREET

46

10

BM 13.44m
17

5

1

22

23 21

31 29

43 41

77

20

Caravan Site

22

4

3

YORK

9to11
15

13

15

21

16

28

40

15

25

35
47

7

17

20
28

6

1

44

12.2m

12.8m

12.5m

VINE STREET

C
H

E
R

R
Y

S
TR

E
E

T

12

17

LO
V

E
LL

S
TR

E
E

T

B
O

A
R

D
S

TR
E

E
T

TE
C

K
S

T R
E

E
T

LOWER EBOR STREET

35
23

11
1

3
1 3 14

2

1
7

65

2

18

19

44
32

BM 9.39m
10.1m

C
ar

l S
tr e

et

57
47

56
68

Warehouse

8.5m

Caravan Site

t o13

to
15

to
3

1 3

Health Centre

Play
Area

D
W

1b

1a

The Courtyard

1
2

27

C
hapm

an
H

ouse

1
to

14

1 to 6

De Little
Court

1 to 10

Woodyard
Mews

Pond

9

15

York Steiner School

FULFORD
CROSS

Homeyork

House

13

Stone

7

1

2 5
8

25
4

2 6
2

127

26

14.0m

131

Posts

Allotment

Gardens

79
67

Fulford

Cross
School

55 45

MAPLE GROVE

25

19

25
35

LB

24
6

13

1

12.5m

Cross
(remains of)

BM

12.85m

Imphal Barracks

Posts
80

70

34

25

28to32

H
osp italF ield s

26

22

9
16

36

60
48

HOSPITAL FIELDS ROAD

1
8

17
20

24

F
U

LF
O

R
D

R
O

A
D

Stone

4

24
2

24
0

14

14.3m

14.0m

Stone

Posts

10.4m
El

Sub Sta

Works

Store29

3127

33

39

to 16

to

14 9

1

4

BM 14.12m

15.8m

St George's

Church

TA Centre

YORK

Factory

42a 42
54

90 78 64

597787

12

6

14 13

48

N
ew

W
al

k
H

ol
ly

Te
rra

ce

12.5m
BM 13.64m

AMBROSE STREET

FRANCES STREET

47 37 25 13

52 38 26

67 73

13 11a 11

37

60

C
A

R
E

Y
S

T R
E

E
T

ORDNANCE LANE

Club

1

14 2

3

85
79

7
1 2

13
7

14 17

12

WENLOCK TERRACE

TCBs

14.6m

BM
15.15m

BM
15.21m

Surgery

21
0

to
21

4
21

6

2

20

20
4

20
2

1

6

13.7m

Police Station

El
Sub Sta

to

5

10

Surgery

111215

toto

1722

2327 2832 3337

35

Stone

S
t o

ne

Stone

Stone

Stone

78

1
2 3 4

The
Stables

The Guard House

19a

El Sub Sta

Fulford Place

79 to 92

52 to 74

Aldwark House

38 to 51

Escrick House

15 to 37

Heslington House

1
to

1 4

Le nd alH
ou se

Mulberry House

75 to 78

Victoria

House

Mast

Pond

9

15

York Steiner School

FULFORD
CROSS

Homeyork

House

13

Stone

7

1

2 5
8

2 5
4

2 6
2

127

26

14.0m

131

Posts

Allotment

Gardens

79
67

Fulford

Cross
School

55 45

MAPLE GROVE

25

19

25
35

LB

24
6

13

1

12.5m

Cross
(remains of)

BM

12.85m

Imphal Barracks

Posts
80

70

34

25

28to32

H
osp italF ield s

26

22

9
16

36

60
48

HOSPITAL FIELDS ROAD

1
8

17
20

24

F
U

LF
O

R
D

R
O

A
D

Stone

4

24
2

24
0

14

14.3m

14.0m

Stone

Posts

10.4m
El

Sub Sta

Works

Store29

3127

33

39

to 16

to

14 9

1

4

BM 14.12m

15.8m

St George's

Church

TA Centre

YORK

Factory

42a 42
54

90 78 64

597787

12

6

14 13

48

N
ew

W
al

k
H

ol
ly

Te
rra

ce

12.5m
BM 13.64m

AMBROSE STREET

FRANCES STREET

47 37 25 13

52 38 26

67 73

13 11a 11

37

60

C
A

R
E

Y
S

T R
E

E
T

ORDNANCE LANE

Club

1

14 2

3

85
79

7
1 2

13
7

14 17

12

WENLOCK TERRACE

TCBs

14.6m

BM
15.15m

BM
15.21m

Surgery

21
0

to
21

4
21

6

2

20

20
4

20
2

1

6

13.7m

Police Station

El
Sub Sta

to

5

10

Surgery

111215

toto

1722

2327 2832 3337

35

Stone

S
t o

ne

Stone

Stone

Stone

78

1
2 3 4

The
Stables

The Guard House

19a

El Sub Sta

Fulford Place

79 to 92

52 to 74

Aldwark House

38 to 51

Escrick House

15 to 37

Heslington House

1
to

1 4

Le nd alH
ou se

Mulberry House

75 to 78

Victoria

House

Mast

7.9m

Allotment Gardens

Lilac House

Pa
th

MAPLE GROVE

8.2m

91

81

Stone

Stone

Stone

MH

BM 8.23m

92 82

11.0m

BM
11.11m

2

15

7

18

16
16

a

18

20

BUTCHER TERRACE

1

26
24
22

7.9m

7.6m

Works

N
ew

W
al

k

13

6
10

10

16

14

25

3028

BM
9.00m

Drain

Rowntree Park

8.2m

TE
R

R
Y

AV
EN

UE

Clementhorpe Beck

8.2m

7.6m

BM
8.29m

Stone

H
ol

ly
Te

rra
ce

19
20

12

18

28

13

23

TE
R

R
Y

S
TR

E
E

T

Rive
r O

us
e

C
yc

le
w

ay

Post

Foot Bridge

12.5m

BM 13.25m

Posts

12.5m

BM 13.59m

37 40 1

BM 12.84m

6

10

Imphal Barracks Tennis Courts

Sports Ground

BM 14.48m

BM 14.35m

13.7m

Chy

15.2m

14.0m

BM 14.93m

13.1m

BM 13.79m

Stone

YO
R

K

El Sub Sta

Police
Station

12.8m

12.8m

Stone

Path (um)

P
ath

(um
)

Tank

Mast

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Walmgate Stray

TCBs

El Sub Sta

CG

Sports Centre

Stone

Sports Ground

Stone

Imphal Barracks

Stone

FB

P
at h

( um
)

2

113

1

115

86

1

2

94

3

14 117

NEVINSO
N

GROVE

HESLIN
G

TO
N

C
RO

FT

Fulford

12.2m

84

YO
R

K

11

16

8

7

118
128

26 21

BROADWAY GROVE

BRAY
ROAD

15

25

39

33

28

26

18

16

Fulford School

Fu
lfo

rd

8

16

21

12

HESLINGTON CROFT

Fulford

17
43

47

49

16

11

6

67

59
61

GARTH'S END

81

1 2

2

83
97

3

3

1

HESLINGTON LANE

12.5m

1

2

99

109

78

80

5

BM

12.45m

11.9m

11.9m

Stone

7

6

25

27

Telephone
Exchange

7

Sports Ground

11
8

5

1

9

7

12

6

1

5

ENDFIELDS ROAD

CROSSLANDS ROAD

17
13

2 2

G
R

A
N

TS
A

V
E

N
U

E

11.9m

22

12

10

7

B
A

R
M

B
Y

A
V

E N
U

E

26

3

15

27

8

16

12

1

18

D
A N

U
M

D
R

IV
E

39
51

32

12

34

1

48

10

5

C
O

R
N

W
A

L L
D

R
IVE

6

63

75

8
2

50

62

1
4

17

13

W
ELW

YN
D

R
I V

E

DANUM ROAD

TH
E

L I
N

K

9

77

87

97

44

42
34

70

64

31

12.2m BM 12.41m

106

110

116

107

1

38

6

BR
O

AD
W

AY
G

R
O

VE

8

18

28

27

39

51

14

14b

14a

18
16

22

63

1

30to40

42
54PO

13.4m

TCB

LB

BM 14.14m

73

BROADWAY

LESLEY AVENUE

11.9m

12.5m

13

8

18

83

66

78

2 2a
4 6

75 77
79 81

11.9m

28

38

95

107

117

1 80

92

YORK

19

29

41

20

30

42

13

23

MOORLAND ROAD

M
O

O
R

LA
N

D
R

O
A

D

DERWENT ROAD

Stone

Imphal Barracks

43
49

36

36

33
46

45

32

25

25

27

44
41

Moorlands

12
13

19

35

43

11.3m

Stone

Sports Ground

15

25

41a
41c

34b34a

BRAY ROAD

1

11

13

St Aidens Court

2

3

27

Field

108

34

36

Garbutt
House

45

Home
Nursing

33a

43a

44

Fulford School

29

35

34

45

31

26

St Oswalds

C of E

School

Tennis Courts

20

Swimming
Pool

El Sub Sta

13

7

2

Tennis Courts

BM 16.23m

Works

9
21 23a 23

33

14

2

20
16

15.8m

Fulfordgate
Working
Mens'
Club

20

Fulford
Socia

l

Hall

HESLINGTON LANE

LB

41

22

FU
L F

O
R

D
G

A
TE

13.1m

BM 13.72m

38

40

1

2

10

EASTWARD AVENUE

5

16

1

21

11

52

26

38

31

64

18
19

YORK

East
Moor

H
otel

Library

A
TC

H
E

R
LE

Y
C

LO
S

E

52

50

2

12

16

26

1

48

Bowling Green

Chapel

Connaught Court

11

1

4

(private)

Fulford

2 4

3

10

9

8

7

6
5

24

21

3

20

15

16.2m
Hall

Sta
Sub
El

War
Meml BM 16.65m

13

11

11

9

11.0m

25
25a

26

31

BM 13.43m

12.5m

ST OSWALD'S ROAD

El Sub Sta

17

20

42

14.9m

BM 15.54m

The Cottage

11

10

25

26

7

12

M
A

IN
STR

EE
T

15.5m

15.2m

Sir John J Hunt
Memorial Cottage Homes

1

6

17

42

32

22

3

23

193

191

181

179

177

63

56

51

39

3646

BROADWAY WEST

15
27

LB

16.2m

2 1a

1

31
4

30
6

29
8

3

DANUM ROAD

A
N

S
O

N
D

R
IV

E

4
2

15

1

6

18

4

4
2

153
16 5

REDM
AN

CLOSE

6

1

1

D
AN

E
S

M
E

A
D

D
AN

E
S

C
R

O
FT

2

1
9

1

9

34

2 W
E

S
T FI E

LD
D

R
IV

E

12
22

2
14

24

39

27

13
1

24

The Gimcrack Hotel

(PH)

15.5m

F U
L FO

R
D

R
O

A
D

29
2

29
6

2 BROADWAY

DERWENT ROAD

El
Sub
Sta

23

13

15 1

14 7

2

8

2

3

5

9

N
O

RW
AY

D
R

IV
E

11

21

YORK

Homeyork
House

20

28

Ousefield

1 2

14.9m

BM 15.17m

Tennis Court

28
6

145
137

135

MOORLAND ROAD

Imphal Barracks

9

1
1a

2

17

9

1

STOCKHOLM

C
LO

S
E

14

10

8

2

6

12

14

1

5

2

6

1

St Aidens Court

1

33

Hideaway

9

3

1 0

4

1c

18

5

York
Steiner
School

Tel
Ex

St
Oswald's
Church

9a

Cycle Track

Drain

30

28

Raddon House

Gate Fulford Lodge

FE
N

W
IC

K
'S

LA
N

E

BM 16.37m

15.5m

White House South

White House

White House North

Inn

Fulford

Methodist

Church

M
AIN

STR
EET 27

41
43

22

16

Bowling Green

34

Connaught Court

Stable

Cottage

10

20

1
2

11

1

Vicarage

FU
LF O

R
D

P
A

R
K

Office

Fulford
Park

House

HESLINGTON LANE

12
10

8
6

4

1
to

4

17

2 4

7

1

13

2

15

12

27

23

29

The Hollies

1

2

19

Chestnut

Lodge

The Beeches

23

Ful ford
R

each

P
ath

(um
)

MP

MP

Lych Gate

ST OSWALD'S ROAD

60

56

10.4m

Fulford

BM
8.62m

7.9m

Works

St Oswald's Church

7.9m

R
iver O

use

L O
V

E
L A

N
E

7.9m

BM 8.61m

New Walk Orchard

Posts

P
ath

(um
)

7.6m

Fulford Ings

YORK

7.9m

C
y c

le
Pa

t h

C
yc

le
P

at
h

Mast

Mast

Path (um)

Caravan Park

Cycle Track

Path
(um

)

Fulford
R

each

River Ouse

York Motor Boat
Club House

Fulford Ings

Fulford

Boat House

Slipway

Slipway

Track

Path (um)

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SCALE

Originating Group

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

Project

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

DRAWN BY

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818

Telephone: 01904 551550

20/8/2009PSL

N

S

EW

CA7PE

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

Existing Conservation Area Boundary

NTS

H

CONSERVATION AREA 7 - Proposed Amendments

Proposed Amendments to Conservation
 Area Boundary

Annex B

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX C – Consultee List for Fulford Road Conservation Area Character Appraisal, Sept 2009 
 
NAME POSITION ORGANISATION 

Cllr D’Agorne Fishergate Ward Councillor City of York Council 
Cllr Taylor Fishergate Ward Councillor City of York Council 
Clerk currently vacant c/o Ward Councillors Fishergate Planning Panel 
Mrs J M Fletcher Clerk Fulford Parish Council 
Major Fowler Site Manager Imphal Barracks 
Sir Site Manager North Yorkshire Police 
Sir Site Manager Territorial Army Centre 
TBC Applicant Christian Science Church, Kilburn Road 
Mrs M Cade Manager Connaught Court (RMBI) 
Andrew White   Royal Masonic Benevolent Institution HQ 
Mr A Ware Clerk to Trustees Sir John Hunt Almshouses 
Sir Store Manager Aldi Store 
Sir Store Manager Iceland Store  
Sir Manager Bathrooms By Design 
Sir Site Manager Shepherd Construction Ltd
Sir  Yorkshire Water Services 
Sir  Northern Electric Distribution Ltd 
Sir  National Grid Transco 
Alison Sinclair Chair York Open Planning Forum 
Verlie Riley Coordinator Conservation Area Advisory Panel 
Lynne Walker   Council for British Archaeology 
Dr G Woolley Chair CPRE (York and Selby District) 
Ms Alison Fisher   English Heritage 
Mr Steve Roskams   York Archaeological Forum 
Mr Peter Brown Director York Civic Trust 
Mr David Brinklow 

Chairman 
Yorkshire Architectural & Archaeological 
Society 

Susie Cawood Chief Executive York & NY Chamber of Commerce 
Barry Potter Chair York Natural Environment Panel 
Sir Coordinator Twentieth Century Society 
Michael Slater Assistant Director  CYC City Strategy 
Martin Grainger Principle Forward Planning Officer CYC City Development  
Derek Gauld Principle Development Officer CYC City Development  
Esther Priestley Landscape Architect CYC DCSD  
Bob Missin Countryside Officer CYC DCSD 
John Oxley City Archaeologist CYC DCSD 
Simon Glazier Team Leader East Area Planning Team CYC Development Control 
Jonathan Carr Head of Development Control CYC Development Control 
Ian Stokes Principle Transport Planner - Strategy CYC Transport Planning Unit 
Howard Watson Area Engineer CYC Highway Development 
Dave Webster Project Leader (Fulford Cycle Route) CYC Development & Transport 
Karen Streeton Support Services Manager CYC Development Control 
Pete Audin Head of Local Land Charges City of York Council 
Quentin Baker Head of Legal Services City of York Council 
Oliver Collins Neighbourhood Pride Officer CYC Neighbourhood Pride 
 
 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SCALE

Originating Group

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

Project

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

DRAWN BY

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818

Telephone: 01904 551550

1:5000 20/8/2009

CA7DA

PSL

N

S

EW

PROPOSED DELIVERY AREA

PROPOSED AMENDMENT AREAS

CONSERVATION AREA 7

CONSERVATION AREA 7 - Proposed Delivery Area

Annex D

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 

East Area Planning Sub Committee 

West and City Centre Area Planning Sub 
Committee 

Planning Committee 

10th September 2009 

17th September 2009 

24th September 2009 

Appeals Performance  

 

Summary 

1 This report (presented to both Sub Committees and Main Planning 
Committee) informs Members of the Council’s performance in relation to 
appeals determined by the Planning Inspectorate in the 12-month and 3 
month periods to 31st July 2009 and provides a summary of the salient 
points from appeals determined in the 3 month period. Going forward it is 
intended that a quarterly report will be presented to regularly update 
Members on appeals determined in the previous 3 month period.  

Background  

2 Appeals statistics are collated by the Planning Inspectorate on a quarterly 
basis. Whilst  the percentage of appeals allowed against the Council’s 
decision  is no longer a Best Value Performance Indicator, it has been  used 
to abate the amount of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG) 
received by an Authority performing badly against the average appeals 
performance. To date, there has been no abatement of this Counci’s level of 
HPDG as a result of appeals performance, as performance has been close 
to the national average for a number of years.  

3  Members will be aware that appeal decisions are currently circulated directly 
to Members when received. However the decisions are not accompanied by 
an analysis of appeal performance or a case summary. The summaries of 
appeals determined in the last 3 months to 31st July 2009  at Annex A of  the 
report is provided following requests from Members for a precis of the 
relevant points for future reference in considering applications.  Details as to 
whether the application was dealt with under delegated powers or 
Committee (and in those cases the original officer recommendation) is 
included with each summary. 

Agenda Item 6Page 81



 

4    As this is the first appeals performance report, it contains statistics on  
appeals decided in the 12 months  to  31st  July, as well as the 3 month 
period as below.  Whilst the Inspectorate breaks down the appeals by type 
in reporting performance, the table below includes all types of appeals such 
as those against refusal of planing permission, against conditions of 
approval, enforcement notices, listed building applications and lawful 
development certificates.  The intention is to present updates on appeal 
performance with summaries on a quarterly basis. 

           
       Fig 1 : Appeals Decided by the Planning Inspectorate 
       For 12 and 3 months to 31st July 2009 
 

 East Area  West Area    Combined 
 12 mths  3 mths  12 mths  3 mths  12 mths 3 mths 
Allowed      7   0    15   3     22     3 
% Allowed    21.21%   0%   45.45%   50%   33.33%   27.27% 
Part Allowed      2   0     2    2      4     2 
% Part Allowed      6.1%   0%    6.1% 33.33%    6.1% 18.18%   
Dismissed    24    5    16   1   40       6 
% Dismissed    72.27%   100%   48.48% 16.66%   60.61% 45.45% 
Total Determined     33    5   33   6   66      11 

Withdrawn       2    1     2   1    4         2 
 

Analysis 

5    The table shows that for the year up 31st July 2009, a total of 66 appeals   
relating to CYC decisions were determined by the Inspectorate. Of those,    
33.33% were allowed and 6.1% part-allowed (e.g in the case of an 
Advertisement Consent  application for a shop, an Inspector may approve a 
fascia sign but not a hanging sign). This rate of appeals allowed is about the 
current  national average.  However for the last 3 months of the period, the 
proportion allowed was  27.27%, which is a notable improvement.    

6    Whilst the number of appeals  is very similar for the two teams, there is a  
discrepency between the number of appeals allowed in each area. The 
figures were to some extent affected by the upholding of a contentious  triple 
appeal in the West area at Stud Farm in Middlethorpe during this period.   

     Consultation  

7   This is essentially an information report for Members and therefore no 
consultation has taken place regarding its content. 

 Options   

8 This is the first information report on appeals, and so whilst in future there   
will be no specific options provided, views are sought here as to the content, 
frequency and format of future reports as follows: - 

Page 82



 

Option A - Receive quarterly reports with the annex of case 
summaries as presented (recommended). 

  Option B  -  Receive reports in an amended format, as may be  
resolved by Members, with different performance information 
and/or frequency e.g. 6 monthly. 

  Option C - Do not receive future appeals performance reports. 

 Corporate Objectives  

9 The report is relevant to the furthering of the Council’s objectives of making 
York a sustainable City, maintaining its special qualities, making it a safer 
city, and providing an effective organisation with high standards.  

  Implications 

  10 Financial – There are no financial implications directly arising from the report 

  11     Human Resources – There are no Human Resources implications directly  
involved within this report and the recommendations within it other than the 
need to allocate officer time towards the provision of the information  

12 Legal – There are no known legal implications associated with this report or   
the recommendations within it. 

13 There are no known Equalities, Property, Crime & Disorder or other 
implications associated with the recommendations within this report. 

  Risk Management 

 14 In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, there are no  
known risks associated with the recommendations of this report. 

  Recommendation   

15 That Members agree to Option A, to approve the format, content and 
frequency of this update report.  

               Reason: So that Members can continue to be appraised of appeal decisions 
within the CYC area and be informed of the planning issues surrounding 
each case for future reference in determining planning applications. 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Jonathan Carr, 
Head of Development Control 
Directorate of City Strategy 
 
01904 551303 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director Planning & Sustainable 
Development, Directorate of City Strategy 
 
Report Approved ü Date 28th August 2009 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None. 
Wards Affected:  All ü 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

 

Background Papers: None 

 

Annexes: Annex A – Appeal Cases Summaries  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



                        ANNEX A       
               
 
Appeal Summaries for Cases Determined  1st May 2009 to 
31st July 2009 
 
Application No: 08/01238/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Daniel Scott 
Proposal: Two storey side extension and single storey rear 

extension with skylight after demolition of existing garage 
Site: 2 The Covert York YO24 1JN   
Decision Level:  Delegated 
 
Delegated refusal of an application for a single storey rear extension and a two-storey side 
extension to a two storey semi-detached house. The proposed side extension was not 
subservient to the existing property in terms of massing and scale and was considered to 
be too large and dominant when viewed in the street scene contrary to policy H7 and the 
Householder Design Guide SPG. 
 
The Inspector considered that the design objectives behind the SPG were laudable but 
that it was difficult to achieve consistency against the background of the variety of design 
that he had seen within the estate.  His opinion was that the cul-de-sac was symmetrical 
and the proposed design would match that of the semi on the other side of the street; the 
proposed design would therefore assist in creating a balanced approach to the cul-de-sac 
as a whole.  He concluded that the extension would not have a detrimental impact on the 
appearance of the dwelling or wider street scene. He added that there would be other 
situations within the estate, where such an approach would not be appropriate and he did 
not consider that allowing the present proposal undermined the importance of the SPG. 
Appeal Allowed. 
 
Application No: 08/02281/FUL 
Appeal By: Ms Tracey Sinclair 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension, two no. rear dormers and 

rooflight windows to front and rear 
Site: 63 Huntington Road York YO31 8RL   
Decision Level:  Delegated 
 
Delegated refusal of an application for a single storey rear extension, two no. rear dormers 
and front and rear roof lights at a two-storey terraced house.  The refusal reason 
concerned the siting of the two dormers in the rear roof slope which were considered to be 
incongruous and harmful to the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
The Inspector considered that, viewed from Diamond Street, the uniformity of the 
unaltered roofs was a pleasing part of the character of the conservation area and that 
there would have been a sound case for resisting any dormer windows in the roof slope.  
However, he noted that permission had been granted for a single dormer window by an 
earlier permission and that this introduced the principle of dormers in the terrace and 
undermined the Council's case. The two dormers would introduce a degree of symmetry 
that a single dormer would not and as such the proposal would not be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. Appeal Allowed 
 
 
 

Page 85



Application No: 08/01962/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Raymond Fresson 
Proposal: First floor front extension over existing garage 
Site: 18 College Road Copmanthorpe York YO23 3US  
Decision Level:  Delegated 
 
The detached dwelling lies within a row of similar dwellings, with a strong building line,  all 
of which have small single storey front extensions in place.  The application sought a first 
floor front extension over an existing garage. The reasons for refusal were: The proposal 
would be an unsympathetic addition to the front elevation of this detached dwelling.  The 
massing of the proposal would not harmonise with the uniformity of surrounding buildings 
and would be unacceptable having a detrimental impact on the host dwelling and the 
visual amenity of the surrounding area and that which neighbouring residents could 
reasonably enjoy.   
 
The Inspector noted that there are a variety of dwelling types in the street with no 
predominant house type or pattern.  Several of these have been previously extended.  
Whilst the proposed extension would bring the first floor elevation forward by 1.8m the 
ground floor building line would be retained.  It was not considered that the proposal would 
have a significantly harmful effect on the street scene. The design is considered 
sympathetic to main dwelling. Appeal Allowed.   
 
 
Application No: 08/02274/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Patten 
Proposal: Two storey side extension and first floor extension to part 

of the existing dwelling (resubmission) 
Site: Knoll Cottage Cinder Lane Upper Poppleton York  
Decision Level:  Delegated 
 
The appeal was determined by the method of written representations  
 
The key issues were identified as: whether the proposal was inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt, the effect of the proposed development on the openness of the Green 
Belt, the effect on the character and  appearance of the surrounding area and the Green 
Belt and whether harm by reason of inappropriateness would be outweighed by other 
considerations so as to amount to very special circumstances to justify the development. 
 
The application for a substantial two storey extension to an essentially single storey 
property had previously been refused as having a detrimental impact upon the local street 
scene and being inappropriate development in the Green Belt by virtue of its scale and 
design. 
 
The inspector having weighed up the case put forward by the appellant notably the nature 
and scale of recent and proposed development in the vicinity, decided to dismiss the 
appeal on the basis that the proposal by virtue of its scale and design represented 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt and additionally had a materially adverse 
impact upon the openness of the Green Belt and the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area. Appeal Dismissed.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



Application No: 08/01478/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Peter Addyman 
Proposal: Three storey rear extension, including external steel 

staircase. Also detached double garage 
Site: 15 St Marys York YO30 7DD   
Decision Level:  Delegated 
 
The application related to a 4-storey (including basement) terraced house in the 
conservation area. A rear extension covering just over half the width of the house a 2-
storey extension was proposed at ground and first floor level, which would extend outward 
3.4m. A smaller element was also proposed at ground floor level.  Although the extensions 
were described as single and two-storey, in appearance they were taller as the ground 
floor level immediately outside the house was at basement level.   
 
The rear of the house had an ordered and simple form, as it had not been extended and 
due to the arrangement and design of windows.  Also within the terrace predominantly 
there were no extensions at the height proposed which interrupted the building line, 
although there were some old extensions which where prominent and detracted from the 
appearance of the terrace. 
 
The application was refused as due to the shape, detailing and scale of the extension, it 
would detract from the appearance of the house and the terrace. Also as the taller 
extension was adjacent to the side boundary, it would be overbearing and overdominant 
over the neighbour. 
 
The inspector ruled :- 

• Due to the size of the extension it would appear 'obtrusive' & 'dominant'. 
• The window design and arrangement would 'complicate and clutter' the rear 

elevation. 
• Despite no objection from the neighbours (flats), the extension due to its height 

and projection from the building would be overdominant & overbearing. 
Appeal Dismissed. 

 
Application No: 08/02546/ADV 
Appeal By: Mr Tony Pinkstone 
Proposal: Display 2 No. externally illuminated built up logo signs, 1 

No. double sided externally illuminated projecting sign 
and 2No. internally illuminated poster cases 
(resubmission). 

Site: Tru Nightclub 3 Toft Green York YO1 1UA  
Decision Level  Delegated 

 
Consent was refused for a side hung sign and 2 internally illuminated poster cases. 
 
Signage is low key on this street and it was considered the projecting sign, due to its 
modern design would detract from the appearance of the area and the overall amount of 
signs and illumination made them over dominant. The inspector agreed that the hanging 
sign harmed the appearance of the building / street, and that a more traditional sign would 
be more appropriate. 
 
Because there were only 2 poster cases on the premises, their size was restrained and the 
illumination subtle, the inspector found these were an appropriate means of advertising 
upcoming events and did not detract from the appearance of the building or area. 
Appeal Part Allowed (poster cases) Part Dismissed (hanging sign)  

Page 87



 
Application No: 07/01843/CLU 
Appeal By: Barbara Wood 
Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for the existing use of the 

riverbed as residential boat mooring and use of riverbank 
as residential curtilage with uses ancillary to boat mooring 

Site: M V Gringley Fulford Reach Mooring St Oswalds Road 
York YO10 4PF 

Decision Level  Delegated 
 
CYC had issued a Certificate  for the residential mooring for one houseboat but refused to 
certify that the adjacent riverbank could lawfully be used for purposes ancillary  to the boat 
mooring. The site had the appearance of a yard and garden  with a car, domestic storage 
and other domestic paraphernalia associated with the houseboat.  Submitted evidence 
including Council tax records showed occupation of the houseboat since 1997.  
 
The Inspector felt a distinction between the two continuous use of the mooring for 
domestic purposes since 1997 as opposed occasional, causal use, was required to 
demonstrate a lawful use. Submissions including photos suggested since 2003.   
Evidence from the Parish Council and a local resident convinced the Inspector that before 
2000, the moored boats here were largely screened by vegetation and that a garden did 
not fully develop until 2003.   Further photographs taken in 1999 showed the appellant’s 
houseboat moored elsewhere along the river. The inspector concluded that the appellant 
did not occupy the mooring continuously prior to 2000, and so the residential use of the 
land adjoining mooring cannot have been continuous. Appeal Dismissed.   
 
 
Application No: 08/02559/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Martyn Inwood 
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling (resubmission) 
Site: Stockton Lodge Sandy Lane Stockton On The Forest 

York YO32 9UT 
Decision Level  Delegated 
 
This application proposed the erection of a detached, 1.5-storey, 5-bedroom dwelling with 
attached, pitch-roofed double garage.  Access would be from Sandy Lane via an existing  
crossover, which would continue to be used for accessing the agricultural land to the rear.   
The proposal was refused on the grounds that, its size, scale, design and narrow,  
back land location result in an over-prominent and incongruous form of development  
that would be out of keeping with the character and appearance of the street scene,  
contrary to Central Government advice in Planning Policy Statement 1: "Delivering  
Sustainable Development" and Planning Policy Statement 3: "Housing" and policies  
GP1, GP10 and H5a. 
 
The inspector agreed that the applicant had failed to demonstrate that the site could  
not accommodate two dwellings, and therefore should not provide for a level of 
affordable housing. The inspector considered that the outstanding drainage issues  
could be conditioned, and open space provision secured through a section 106, or  
unilateral undertaking. However, she did not consider that would outweigh the harm 
to the character and appearance of the surrounding area, and the implications for  
affordable housing provision. Appeal Dismissed.   
 
 
 

Page 88



 
Application No: 08/01844/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Martin Cockerill 
Proposal: Extension to existing farmhouse to form self contained 

living accommodation for employee 
Site: Providence Farm Stamford Bridge Road Dunnington York 

YO19 5LQ 
Decision Level  Delegated 
 
Application was refused on the grounds that the proposal represented inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt due to the disproportionate size of the extension over and 
above the size of the original building and that this harmed the openness of the Green 
belt.  Appellants argued that the footprint was not increasing and that the first floor 
extension merely filled in a gap that was unseen anyway from public views. It was also 
claimed that greater weight should be attached to the need for the extension because it 
was required in connection with a full time stud manager who could foal the horses at 
short notice or in case of emergency.  
Council argued that this did not represent Very Special Circumstances and that the 
appellant had not provided sufficient information to prove this need. With regard to the 
impact on the green belt the Council argued that whilst the footprint of the property was 
not increasing the first floor extension extended the ridge line of the house and that if filled 
an otherwise quite extensive gap between the appeal building and a two storey barn next 
door, so extending the built form of the site. The Council disagreed that this extension 
could not be seen from public views and showed the Inspector from where the extension 
would be visible. The Inspector agreed with the Council on all points and dismissed the 
appeal.  Appeal Dismissed.   
 
Application No: 09/00082/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Anthony Clarke 
Proposal: Raise roof to create second floor extension 

(resubmission) 
Site: 37 St Marks Grove York YO30 5TS   
Decision Level  Delegated 
 
This application proposed the extension of 37 St. Marks Grove through the addition of a 
second floor and a side dormer. The dwelling had previously been extended through a two 
storey side extension which created two additional bedrooms bringing the total to five. It 
was considered that the proposed raised roof extension with dormer would, by virtue of its 
design and height, harm the character and appearance of the street scene.  St. Marks 
Grove is characterised by dwellings of a consistent design and scale located within a 
rhythmic pattern.  The proposed extensions were considered to upset the balance of the 
street scene through the addition of an incongruous design feature on a dwelling which 
follows the design principles of the surrounding area.  
 
The inspector considered the key issue in this case was the effect of the proposed 
development on the character and appearance of the street scene. She considered 
that, as the extension would result in both the eaves and ridge height being notably  
higher than surrounding dwellings, it would impact adversely on the streetscene. 
She did not afford full weight to policies GP1 and H7, given the status of the local plan. 
However, she did consider the proposal would conflict with Government advice in PPS1.  
Delivering Sustainable Development. Appeal Dismissed.   
 
 
 

Page 89



Application No: 08/00181/FUL 
Appeal By: Mr Kevin Marsden 
Proposal: Erection of 2 no.two storey pitched roof detached 

dwellings after demolition of existing dwelling and garage 
Site: 8 Hall Rise Haxby York YO32 3LP  
Decision Level  Committee (Officer Recommendation Approve) 
 
This application was refused on the grounds that its siting, design, external appearance 
and materials of construction would constitutes a form of development that would be 
incongruous, out of keeping and inappropriate in its context. As such, the visual 
appearance and amenity of the area would be compromised by the development. 
 
The Inspector agreed with the Council’s reasons for refusal. In his opinion, although this is 
a corner site and the degree of prominence is somewhat reduced on the Station Road 
frontage by the existing trees and vegetation, the plot facing Hall Rise would be clearly 
visible from Station Road junction and from Hall Rise. In the context of the area he 
considered that the proposed design and external materials conflict with those of 
neighbouring properties and introduce a style and design that is out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The scale of the development would also be visible and 
incongruous when viewed alongside neighbouring development. Hence the inspector 
concluded that the proposal would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area 
and contrary to the aims of policy GP1 of the draft local plan. Appeal Dismissed.   
 
 

Page 90


	Agenda
	
	About CYC Meetings

	2 Minutes
	4a Sim Hills, Tadcaster Road, Dringhouses, York (09/01313/FULM)
	09-01313-fulm 1 10000

	4b Proposed University Campus Lying between Field Lane and Low Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York (09/01472/REMM)
	0901472

	5 Fulford Road Conservation Area Appraisal: Consultation Draft
	ANNEX A Fulford Road CA draft  Report for consultation LC 31'07'09
	ANNEX B Proposed Amendments Map
	Annex C Consultee List Sept'09
	ANNEX D Delivery Area Map

	6 Appeals Performance
	Annex A summaries 1.5.09 to 31.7.09


